75-510-XPE 1991 c.2 Labour Division

Division du travail

STATISTICS STATISTIQUE CANADA CANADA

C.715 197

LICHARY BIBLIOTHEQUE



# Canadian Work Injuries Standard

January 1, 1991

Labour Division

Statistics Canada

Price: \$60.00

# Table of Contents

P	age
Month of Injury	. 3
Year of Injury	. 4
The Injury Standards	5
Nature of Injury	7
Part of Body	12
Source of Injury	16
Type of Accident	. 23
Sex	29
Age	30
Fatality	31
Industrial Classification	32
Occupational Classification	57
Standard Record Layout	67
Invalid Code Combinations	68
Alphabetical Index for:	
Nature of Injury, Part of Body, Source of Injury and Accident Type	81

# **MONTH OF INJURY**

INJURY - The date the accident occurred.

ILLNESS - The date the illness was reported to the Board.

- 00 Unknown
- 01 January
- 02 February
- 03 March
- 04 April
- 05 May
- 06 June
- 07 July
- 08 August
- 09 September
- 10 October
- 11 November
- 12 December

NOTE: In case of FATAL (page 31) record month of first compensation.

YEAR OF INJURY

Last 2 digits of year

THE INJURY STANDARDS

## THE INJURY STANDARDS

## General Rules for Use

There are four injury standards: Nature of Injury, Part of Body, Source of Injury, and Type of Accident. These standards are directly related to each other. For example, the nature of the injury logically limits the parts of the body that can be affected. Similarly, the type of accident is partly determined by the source of the injury. For this reason, when coding a work injury case, the four standards should be used in the order in which they are shown in this manual. That is, the first code selected should be that for the Nature of Injury; the second, that for the Part of Body affected; etc.

Using the standards in this sequence should minimize the selection of invalid combinations of codes. These are defined as combinations of valid codes which between them contain contradictory information. An example of an invalid code combination would be Nature of Injury: concussion (code 140) with Part of Body: knee (code 513).

To further safeguard against invalid code combinations, once the code for Nature of Injury has been chosen, subsequent selections of codes for Part of Body, Source of Injury, and Type of Accident, should be checked against the appropriate table of invalid code combinations. If an invalid combination occurs, the original description of the injury should be reassessed, and the coding of the injury should be modified.

## General Rules for "UNS" and "NEC" Codes

"UNSPECIFIED" (UNS) codes should be selected when the information available is insufficient to assign an existing detailed code.

"NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED" (NEC) codes should be selected when the information is sufficient for coding purposes, but none of the existing detailed codes applies.

NATURE OF INJURY

## **NATURE OF INJURY**

## Definition

The nature of injury code identifies the injury or illness in terms of its principal physical characteristics.

## General Rule

To avoid erroneous coding, first code Nature of Injury, followed by Part of Body, then Source of Injury, and then Type of Accident. Code for the primary or original injury or illness sustained, not for the consequence or sequelae of the primary injury. An exception to this rule applies to cases of amputations performed as a consequence of an injury. In these cases, select the code for the amputation and not the code for the original injury.

## Rules for Selection

First choosing between the following broad groups may simplify the selection of the most appropriate detailed code:

- 1) Impact injuries (140, 160, 172, 178)
- 2) Body surface wounds (100, 170, 185)
- 3) Exertion injuries (182, 188)
- 4) Effects of extreme temperature, chemicals, and radiation (120, 175, 203, 220, 240, 290, 291, 293, 294, 295)
- 5) Inflammations (215, 260)
- 6) Respiratory injuries and illnesses (110, 273, 274, 281, 283, 284, 285, 286, 289)
- 7) Other injuries and illnesses

## Rules for Selection in Cases of Multiple Injuries

When one injury is obviously more severe than any of the others, select that injury. Severity is to be interpreted in terms of impairment of work performance.

When there are several injuries of different natures, such as cuts and sprains, none of which is indicated as being more serious than the others, code as "multiple injuries".

## Rules for "UNS" and "NEC" Codes

"UNSPECIFIED" (UNS) codes should be selected when the information available is insufficient to assign an existing detailed code.

"NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED" (NEC) codes should be selected when the information available is sufficient for coding purposes, but none of the existing detailed codes applies.

## NATURE OF INJURY - continued

## Code Occupational Injuries

## 000 Occupational injury, UNS

- 100 Amputation or enucleation
  Applies to cases where a limb, appendage, or any
  part thereof is entirely removed from the
  body. Enucleation applies to cases where the
  eyeball is removed following severement of the eye
  muscles and the optic nerve.
- Asphyxia, strangulation, drowning
  Applies to cases where the injury caused a
  cessation of breathing, or reduction in the capacity
  or ability to breathe. Asphyxia applies to a
  deficiency in the oxygen content of the respired
  air. Strangulation applies to choking or a
  throttling arrest of respiration, due to occlusion of
  the air passages by an external force or object.
  Drowning applies to respiratory arrest following
  filling of the lungs with water, or another liquid.
- 120 Burn or scald (hot or cold)
  Applies to the effects of contact with hot or cold substances. Does not include electric burns (175), chemical burns (203), sunburn (291), friction burns (185) or systemic disability such as heat stroke (240).
- 140 Concussion Brain, cerebral Applies to a loss of consciousness resulting from a blow to the head. <u>Does not</u> include skull fractures (178).
- 160 Contusion, crushing, bruise Applies to injuries producing no rupture of the skin surface. Bruise applies to any superficial injury produced by impact, without rupture of the skin.
- 170 Cut, laceration, puncture
  Applies to injuries producing rupture or tearing of
  the skin. Usually applies to cases of open wounds.
- 172 Dislocation Applies to injuries producing displacement of bones from their normal anatomical position, usually occurring in a joint cavity. Also called luxation.
- 175 Electric shock, electrocution
  Applies to injuries resulting from the passage of
  an electric current through the body. Includes
  electric burns.
- 178 Fracture

  Applies to injuries producing the breaking, or rupture of bones. Includes damage to teeth.

## Code Ocupational Injuries

- 182 Hernia, rupture
  Applies to injuries resulting from the protusion of
  a loop or knuckle of an organ or tissue through
  an abnormal opening. Includes cases of inguinal,
  femoral, and esophageal hernias, displaced lumbar
  discs or ruptured intervertebral discs (slipped
- 185 Scratches, abrasions (superficial wounds)
  Applies to producing the wearing away or removal of a skin surface or mucous membrane. The injuries are superficial, and do not involve deeper body structures. Includes friction burns, and superficial wounds resulting from foreign bodies in the eye, ear, nose, etc.
- 188 Sprains, strains
  Applies to joint injuries where some, but not all, of the fibers in a supporting ligament are ruptured, but the continuity of the ligament is preserved. Commonly associated with overuse or overexertion of body muscles.
- 195 Multiple injuries Applies to cases involving several injuries of different natures, none of which is indicated as being more serious than the others.
- 199 Occupational injury, NEC

## NATURE OF INJURY - continued

## Code Occupational Illnesses

- 200 Occupational illness, UNS
- 203 Chemical burn
  Applies to tissue damage resulting from the corrosive action of chemicals, chemical derivatives, acids, alkalies, fumes, etc.
- 205 Contagious or infectious illness (disease), bodily infection Applies to injuries resulting from the multiplication of organisms in body tissues, which can be transmitted from person to person. Usually these illnesses are due to the action of virulent bacterial, viral, fungal or parasitic agents originating from conditions, plants, animals, persons, etc. in the working environment. Includes cases of amebiasis, anthrax, brucellosis, coccidioidomycosis, histoplasmosis, bacterial and viral food poisoning, conjunctivitis and ophthalmia, infectious hepatitis (exclude toxic hepatitis) (999), septicemia, tetanus, tuberculosis, etc. Bodily infections include cases of boils, furuncles, and carbuncles.

## 215 Dermaiitis

Applies to injuries producing the inflammation of the skin and generally results from direct contact of the affected tissue(s) with irritants or sensitizing chemicals such as drugs, dusts, pollens, oils, biological compounds, plants, woods, metals or other agents in any form (solid, paste, gel, liquid, gas, etc.) which can be contacted in the pure state, in compounds or in combination with other materials. Includes cases of rashes, does not include cases of skin or tissue damage resulting from the corrosive action of chemicals (203), burns from contact with hot or cold substances (120), effects of exposure to low temperatures (220), or inflammation or irritation resulting from friction or impact (260).

- 216 Allergic condition, allergic reaction Applies to injuries following exposure to a sensitizing agent resulting in an immediate allergic-type reaction (for example, a bee sting). Includes cases of anaphylactic reaction, and anaphylactic shock.
- 220 Freezing, frostbite, and other effects of exposure to low environmental temperature.
  <u>Does not</u> include cold burns (120).

## Code Occupational Illnesses

- 230 Hearing loss, or impairment (when the primary injury, and not the consequences of another injury).
  Applies to injuries producing reduction in the ability to discriminate normally audible sounds.
- Heat stroke, sunstroke, heat cramps, heat exhaustion, and other effects of environmental heat.
   Does not include sunburn (291) or other effects of radiation (290).
- 260 Inflammation or irritation of joints, tendons or muscles
  Applies to injuries producing inflammation of a joint cavity, or any of its surrounding and supporting structures, including tendons, ligaments, bursae and muscles acting upon the joint cavity. These injuries usually result from repeated activity over a period of time. Includes inflammation or irritation resulting from friction or impact, cases of bursitis, synovitis, tenosynovitis, etc. <u>Does not</u> include cases of sprains, strains (188) or dislocation (172), or their after-effects.

# 270 Poisoning, systemic

Applies to systemic morbid conditions resulting from the inhalation, ingestion or skin absorption of a toxic substance affecting the normal function of the metabolic system, the nervous system, the circulatory system, the digestive system, the respiratory system, the genito-urinary system, the musculo-skeletal system, etc. Includes cases of chemical or drug poisoning, metal poisoning, organic diseases, and venomous animal bites.

Does not include effects of radiations (290 and 294), pneumoconiosis (280), corrosive action of chemicals (203), anaphylactic shock (216), allergic reaction (216), skin surface irritations (215), septicemia (205) or infected wounds (205).

- 273 Upper respiratory conditions Includes rhinitis, pharyngitis, sinusitis and hay fever.
- 274 Lower respiratory conditions Includes injuries usually limited to the lungs such as asthma, bronchitis, emphysema, influenza, and pneumonia.

## NATURE OF INJURY - concluded

## Code Occupational Illnesses

## 280 Pneumoconiosis, NEC

A condition characterized by an inflammatory reaction to the permanent deposition of unspecified particulate matter in the lungs and respiratory system. This usually results from exposure to particles in the working environment over a long time period. Includes byssinosis, siderosis, and pneumoconiosis with tuberculosis.

## 281 Aluminosis

A condition characterized by an inflammatory reaction due to the permanent deposition of aluminium and alumina-based dusts in the lungs and respiratory system. This usually results from exposure to particles in the working environment over a long time period.

#### 283 Asbestosis

A condition characterized by an inflammatory reaction due to the permanent deposition of fibers of asbestos in the lungs and respiratory system. This usually results from exposure to particles in the working environment over a long time period.

#### 286 Siticosis

A condition characterized by an inflammatory reaction due to the permanent deposition of stone dust, sand or silica-containing flints in the lungs and respiratory system. This usually results from exposure to particles in the working environment over a long time period.

- 290 Radiation effects, UNS
  Includes injuries due to exposure to either ionizing
  or non-ionizing radiations, of unspecified origin.
- 291 Effects of non-ionizing radiations Includes microwaves injuries and superficial and systemic effects of sunburns and ultraviolet burns. <u>Does not</u> include welder's flash (295), heat stroke (240), exhaustion, etc.
- 293 Effects of ionizing radiations X-rays Includes superficial and systemic effects of exposure to X-rays.
- 294 Effects of ionizing radiations Isotopes Includes superficial and systemic effects of exposure to ionizing radiations of isotopes such as uranium, cobalt, plutonium.

## Code Occupational Illnesses

- 295 Welder's flash
- 399 Occupational illness, NEC Includes cases of Raynaud's phenomenon and white finger vibration disease.
- 405 Non personal damage only Includes damage to eyeglasses, hearing aids, artificial teeth, prostheses, pacemakers, etc.
- 500 Effects of changes in atmospheric pressure Includes aero-otitis media, barotrauma, and caisson's disease.
- 550 Neoplasm, tumour, UNS Toxic and nontoxic.
- 551 Neoplasm, tumour, malignant Includes cancer and leukemia.
- 552 Neoplasm, tumour, benign
- 560 Disease of the nervous system Includes Bell's palsy, carpat tunnel syndrome, cerebral paralysis, and migraines.
- 570 AIDS (Acquired immunodeficiency syndrome)
- 600 Psychological disorders (includes burn out, functional disorders, mental disorders, etc.)
- 605 Stress
- 991 Heart condition Includes cases of typical and atypical angina as well as heart attacks, of non-toxic origin.
- 999 Occupational injury or illness, NEC (includes toxic hepatitis)

PART OF BODY

#### PART OF BODY

## Definition

The part of body code identifies the part of the injured person's body directly affected by the injury or illness previously identified.

## General Rule

It is essential that a direct relationship between this classification and the Nature of Injury classification be maintained in order to permit significant analytical cross-tabulations of Part of Body by Nature of Injury.

## Rules for Selection

When the previously named nature of injury is localized in one part of the body, select that part.

First choosing between the following broad groups may simplify the selection of the most appropriate detailed code:

- 1) Head injuries(100-199)
- 2) Neck injuries(200)
- 3) Upper extremity injuries(300-399)
- 4) Trunk injuries (400-499)
- 5) Lower extremity injuries(500-599)
- 6) Multiple parts injuries(700)
- 7) Body system injuries(800-899)

When the previously named nature of injury or injuries extends to several sections of a major body part, select that major body part. For example, in the case of a burn affecting the fingers, the hand, the wrist, and the forearm, select "upper extremities, multiple" as the body part affected.

When the previously named nature of injury applies to the same subpart on two similar major members, select the subpart. For example, in the case of cuts on the fingers of both hands, select "fingers" as the part of body affected.

When the previously named nature of injury applies to different subparts of two similar major members, select the major members. For example, in the case of cuts on one foot and on the thigh of the other leg, select "lower extremities, multiple" as the part of body affected.

When the previously named nature of injury applies to different and dissimilar major body parts, select "multiple parts" as the body part affected. For example, in the case of bruises on an arm and also on a leg, select "multiple parts".

In the event of an amputation, select the location of the point of amputation. For example, in the case of an amputation between the elbow and shoulder, select "upper arm" rather than "upper extremities, multiple".

Select "body system" only when the injury or illness applies directly to the selected system and it is not a corollary of an external injury to an external part of the body. For example, drowning or asphyxia would be considered injuries to the respiratory system. Similarly, the ingestion, inhalation, or absorption of poisons affecting the nerve centers would be considered injuries to the nervous system. But an external injury to the head involving brain damage with resulting paralysis would be considered a head injury. Muscular strains or sprains should be considered external injuries.

## Rules for "UNS" and "NEC" Codes

"UNSPECIFIED" (UNS) codes should be selected when the information available is insufficient to assign an existing detailed code.

"NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED" (NEC) codes should be selected when the information available is sufficient for coding purposes, but none of the existing detailed codes applies.

## Rules for Invalid Code Combinations

After completing the coding, check for invalid combinations of codes for Part of Body with codes for Nature of Injury using the invalid code combinations tables. In the event of an invalid code combination (for example, if the nature of injury has been coded as a "concussion", the Part of Body affected cannot be the "knee"), reassess the original description of the injury or illness and modify the coding.

## PART OF BODY - continued

#### Code

## 000 Part of body, UNS

## 100 Head, UNS

110 Brain (does not include skull)

120 Ear(s), UNS

121 Ear(s) external (includes the pinna, tragus, and the ear canal)

124 Ear(s) internal (includes eardrum, cochlea, semi-circular canals, auditory nerve, and hearing)

129 Ear(s), NEC

130 Eye(s) (includes eyeball, lacrimal apparatus, optic nerve, eyelid, and vision)

140 Face, UNS

141 Jaw (includes chin)

144 Mouth (includes lips, teeth, tongue, throat, gums, and taste)

146 Nose (includes nasal passages, sinus, and sense of smell)

148 Face, multiple parts (any combination of above parts)

149 Face, NEC

150 Scalp (includes hair, but not wigs or toupee)

160 Skul

198 Head, multiple (any combination of above parts)

199 Head, NEC

#### 200 Neck

## 300 Upper extremities, UNS

310 Arm(s) (above wrist), UNS

311 Upper arm

313 Elbow

315 Forearm

318 Arm, multiple (any combination of above parts)

319 Arm(s), NEC

320 Wrist (does not include radius, cubitus (315))

330 Hand (not wrist or fingers)

340 Finger(s) (use if fingers only are affected)

398 Upper extremities, multiple (any combination of above parts)

399 Upper extremities, NEC

## 400 Trunk, UNS

410 Abdomen (includes internal organs e.g. stomach, liver, spleen, pancreas, adrenals, kidneys, intestines - only if injured as separate entities, not as body systems)

420 Back, UNS (includes back muscles, spine, spinal cord and skin)

423 Thoracic spine

425 Lumbar spine

426 Sacrum and coccyx

428 Back, multiple (any combination of above parts)

#### Code

#### 429 Back, NEC

430 Chest (includes ribs, breast bone, and internal organs of the chest e.g. heart, lungs - only if injured as separate entities, not as body systems)

440 Hips (includes pelvis, and pelvic organs e.g. bladder, uterus, ovaries, prostate, external genitalia)

450 Shoulder(s) (includes clavicle and scapula)

498 Trunk, multiple (any combination of above parts)

499 Trunk, NEC

## 500 Lower extremities, UNS

510 Leg(s) (above ankle), UNS

511 Thigh (includes femur, and thigh muscles)

513 Knee

515 Lower leg (includes tibia, fibula, calf)

518 Leg, multiple (any combination of above parts)

519 Leg(s), NEC

520 Ankle

530 Foot (includes heel, <u>does not</u> include ankle or toes)

540 Toe(s)

598 Lower extremities, multiple (any combination of above parts)

599 Lower extremities, NEC

## 700 Multiple parts

Applies when more than one major body part has been affected, such as an arm and a leg.

Code

Code

800 Body system, UNS

- 801 Circulatory system (includes heart, blood, arteries, veins, etc.)
- 810 Digestive system (includes digestion and defecation)
- 820 Genito-urinary system (includes reproductive function and urine production <u>but not</u> defecation)
- 830 Musculo-skeletal system (bones, joints, tendons, muscles, etc.)
- 840 Nervous system (includes hearing, vision, smell, taste, and touch)
- 850 Respiratory system (includes trachea, bronchi, and lungs, etc.)
- 899 Body system, NEC (includes endocrine, immune system, etc.)

Applies when the functioning of an entire body system has been affected without specific injury to any other part, as in the case of systemic poisoning or infections, corrosive action affecting internal organs, damage to nerve centers, etc.

Does not apply when the systemic damage results from an external injury affecting an external part such as the back or the eye which includes damage to the nerves of the spinal cord or the optic nerve.

- 990 Non-personal damage only (including damage to prostheses, e.g. eyeglasses, hearing aids, and artificial teeth and limbs.)
- 999 Part of body, NEC

SOURCE OF INJURY

## SOURCE OF INJURY

#### **Definition**

The source of injury code identifies the object, substance, exposure, or bodily motion which directly produced, transmited or inflicted the injury or illness previously identified.

## General Rule

It is essential that a direct relationship between this classification and the Nature of Injury and Part of Body classification be maintained in order to permit significant analytical cross-tabulations, for example, Source of Injury by Nature of Injury.

#### Rules for Selection

Select as the source of injury the object, substance, exposure or bodily motion which directly produced the injury or illness previously identified in the nature of injury classification.

The code selected should provide a maximum of information to individuals interested in the injury or illness. For example, it is useful to know that a "knife" and not a "hand tool" was the source of the injury.

When an injury results from forcible contact with two or more objects, either simultaneously or in rapid sequence, and it is impossible to determine which object directly produced the injury, select the source of injury as follows:

- (1) When the choice is between a moving object and a stationary object, select the moving object. E.g. if a person is struck by a moving vehicle and thrown against a post, select the vehicle as the source of injury.
- (2) When the choice is between two moving objects or between two stationary objects, select the object which was contacted last. For example, if a person falls from an elevation, striking one or more objects in the course of the fall, but finally striking the floor or other working surface, select the working surface as the source of injury.

Select "bodily motion" as the source of injury only when the injury resulted solely from the stress or strain induced by a free movement of the body or its parts (voluntary or involuntary), or from the assumption of a strained or unnatural body position.

This should include cases of strains, sprains, etc., resulting from stretching, reaching, turning, twisting, bending, walking, climbing, running, or from efforts to recover from a loss of equilibrium, provided that the loss of equilibrium does not culminate in a fall or in

forcible contact with an object above the supporting surface.

Do not select "bodily motion" as the source of injury if the injury occurred in the course of a fall; resulted from bumping into or striking an external object; or arose from lifting, pushing, pulling, wielding, or throwing an external object. (In the case of a fall, select the surface or object on which the person's body came to rest. In cases of lifting, pushing, pulling, wielding, or throwing, select the object to which the physical effort was being applied.)

If, as a result of an accident to a vehicle, a person who was in or on the vehicle is injured, select the vehicle as the source of injury.

When an injury is caused by fragments of a larger item, or parts which cannot be identified as separate components, select a source of injury code describing the larger item, not the fragments or parts. For example, for an injury caused by flying metal items from an exploding boiler, select a source of injury code to describe the "boiler" (0501), not the "metal items". However, if the injury was caused by distinct parts or components of a larger items and if there exits a distinct code for these parts or components, select a source of injury code describing the component. For example, if the injury was caused by a car's tire rim, select a source of injury code which describes the "automobile part" (4110), not the car. This coding rule also applies to cases where an illness is caused by bacteria, viruses, etc. In this case, select the transmitting agent (e.g. persons, animals, water, or dust if identified on the source document) and not the bacteria or viruses.

## Rules for "UNS" and "NEC" Codes

"UNSPECIFIED" (UNS) codes should be selected when the information available is insufficient to assign an existing detailed code.

"NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED" (NEC) codes should be selected when the information available is sufficient for coding purposes, but none of the existing detailed codes applies.

## Rules for Invalid Code Combinations

After completing the coding, check for invalid combinations of codes for Source of Injury with codes for Nature of Injury and Part of Body. In the event of an invalid code combination (for example, if "dislocation" has been selected as the Nature of Injury, the Source of Injury cannot be "heat, atmospheric, environmental"), reassess the original description of the injury or illness and modify the coding.

Codo			
Code		Code	
0000	Source of injury, UNS		Includes containers which are either empty or
0100	Air pressure (abnormal, environmental, changes of), UNS 0101 High pressure (includes, caisson work,		full, unless the contents caused the injury; in which case code for the contents.
	deep diving etc., but excludes explosions)	0700	Buildings and structures, UNS
	0120 Low pressure (rarefied air as at extreme elevations)		0701 Buildings, office, plant, residential, etc. 0705 Doors, gates
	0199 Air pressure, NEC		0708 Windows, window frames 0710 Bridges
0200	Animals, insects, birds, reptiles, persons and others, UNS		0720 Dams, locks, etc. 0730 Grandstands, stadia, etc.
	0201 Mammals (not persons)		0740 Scaffolds, staging, etc.
	0230 Birds		0750 Towers, poles, etc.
	0250 Invertebrates, e.g. insects 0270 Reptiles		0755 Walls, fences 0760 Wharfs, docks, etc.
	0280 Persons		0799 Buildings and structures, NEC (includes
	0299 Animals, NEC (includes amphibians, fish, bodily secretions e.g. saliva and urine, and		lockers and other structures which are fixed and are considered part of buildings
	discharges e.g. stool)		or structures, either finished or under construction; not included are building
0300	Animal products (not food), UNS 0301 Bones		materials or components which have not
	0310 Feathers		been installed)
	0320 Fur, hair, wool, etc. (raw)		Includes buildings and structures under
	0330 Hides, leather 0399 Animal products, NEC		construction and items being installed. <u>Does not</u> include floors, working surfaces or walkways; see "working surfaces" classification (5800). <u>Does</u>
0400	Bodily motion, UNS		not include unattached components of, or a
	0401 due to repetitive motion 0402 due to running, walking, climbing,		building material for a building or structure,
	stretching reaching twisting, bending, etc.		e.g. windows, pipes, furniture heating equipment. In these cases, code for the
	0403 due to tripping or stepping on		component, e.g. glass item (2000).
	0404 due to slipping 0409 bodily motion, NEC	0800	Ceramic items, UNS
	over sound money, 1120	0000	0801 Brick
	Does not include lifting, pulling, pushing, etc.		0810 China
0500	Boilers, pressure vessels, UNS		0820 Drain tile, sewer pipe, flue lining, etc. 0830 Glazed tile (decorative not load bearing,
0000	0501 Boilers		mosaic tile, etc.)
	0510 Pressurized containers (for gases or liquids)		0840 Pottery
	0530 Pressure lines (hose or pipe for		0850 Structural tile (glazed or plain) 0899 Ceramic items, NEC
	pressurized liquids, gases, or vapors)		
	0599 Pressure vessels, NEC	0900	Chemicals, chemical compounds (solids, liquids, gases), UNS
0600	Boxes, barrels, containers, packages, UNS		0903 Acetone and other ketones
	0601 Barrels, kegs, drums 0605 Bags, sacks		0910 Acids, UNS 0911 Hydrochloric acid (includes
	0610 Pots, pans, dishes, trays		muriatic acid)
	0615 Cans		0912 Hydrofluoric acid
	0620 Pails, buckets, baskets 0630 Boxes, crates, cartons		0913 Nitric acid (includes aqua fortis) 0914 Phosphoric acid
	0650 Bottles, jugs, flasks, jars (any type), etc.		0915 Sulfuric acid (includes battery acid)
	0660 Bundles, bales		0919 Acids, NEC (includes acetic acid)
	0665 Reels, rolls (includes beams of yarn) 0670 Tanks, bins, etc. (not pressurized)		0920 Alcohols (includes glycol, methanol, and antifreeze)
	0699 Containers, NEC		0925 Carbon bisulphide

_	•	
	~	
•	~~	

1010 Gloves

1020 Hats, head coverings

~~	_		~~~	•	
	0930	Alkalies, UNS		1030	Outer coats
	0,50	0931 Calcium hydroxide (includes lime)			Shirts, blous
		0932 Sodium or potassium hydroxide			Suits, pants
		(includes lye, and caustic soda)		1050	Stockings, s
	0040	0939 Alkalies, NEC (includes soda ash)			Underwear
	0940	•		1099	Apparel, N
		(includes ammonium hydroxide, and			
		anhydrous ammonia)	1100		and petroleu
	0942	, ,			Coal
		toluene, phenol, carbolic acid, xylene, and			Coke
		aniline)		1120	Crude oil, f
		Arsenic compounds (includes arsine gas)		1130	Gasoline an
	0946	Beauty preparations, cosmetics (use when			compounds
		no specific chemical is named)		1140	Hydrocarbo
	0952	Carbon dioxide (includes dry ice)			naturally oc
		Carbon monoxide			e.g. gas from
	0958	Chlorine and its compounds (includes			propane, bu
		bleach, methyl chloride, pentachlorophenol,			isobutylene,
		trichloroethylene, and perchloroethylene)		1150	Kerosene
	0960	Cyanides or cyanogen compounds			Lubricating
		Disinfectant (use when no specific			Naphtha sol
	0,01	chemical is named)		1100	
	0063	Ethylene oxide			mineral spir
				1100	solvents, etc
	0903	Fertilizer (used when no specific chemical			Petroleum a
	0064	is named)		1199	Coal and pe
	0964	Formaldehyde and other aldehydes	1000		
		(includes formalin, and acetaldehyde)	1200		UNS
		Glue, adhesive, paste		1201	Cold (atmos
	0970	Halogenated compounds (includes freon,			not include
		fluorocarbons, refrigerants, and ethylene		1202	Ice, snow (in
		dibromide) Excludes chlorine and its		1299	Cold, NEC
		compounds(0958)			the coldness
	0975	Hydrogen sulphide			
	0976	Oxides of nitrogen (nitrous fumes)	1300	Conve	eyors, UNS
		Insecticide (organophosphate) (includes			Gravity conv
		these brand names: Malthion, Diazinon,		1350	Powered con
		and Systox)			Conveyors,
	0979	Insecticide, fungicide, fumigant herbicide,			Conveyors,
	0,,,	NEC (includes weed killers, NEC)	1400	Drum	and medicin
	0084	Lead and its compounds (includes solder)	1400		
	0085	Metal and metallic compounds, NEC		1401	Biologic pro antitoxins, va
	0703			1400	
		(includes welding fumes, aluminum,		1490	Drugs and r
		magnesium, cadmium, chromium mercury,		A1'	
	0007	zinc, and brass)			es to injuries
	0987	,,,		expos	ure to prepar
	0388	Plastics, resins, etc. (includes polymer,			ts. Does not
		urethane, cyanates, and silicone resin)		or alc	ohols (0920)
	0990	Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCB's)			
	0992	Solvents and degreasers (includes paint	1500		ic apparatus,
	•	thinner, paint remover, and turpentine)			Motors
		Tear gas, Mace		1505	Generators
	0999	Chemicals, chemical compounds, NEC			Transformer
		(includes carbon tetrachloride)			Conductors
		•			Switchboard
1000	Clothi	ng, apparel, shoes, UNS			circuit break
= =		Boots, shoes, etc.		1530	Rheostats, st
		Gloves		-550	conneitators

## Code ...

	1030	Outer coats, raincoats
	1040	
		Suits, pants, coveralls, dresses
		Stockings, socks
	1070	Underwear
		Apparel, NEC
100	Coal	and petroleum products, UNS
		Coal
	1110	Coke
	1120	Crude oil, fuel oil
		Gasoline and liquid hydrocarbon
		compounds (Paraffins, olefins, etc.)
	1140	Hydrocarbon gases, manufactured or
		naturally occuring (methane, biogas
		e.g. gas from manure), ethane, ethylene,
		propane, butane, isobutane, butylene,
		isobutylene, LP gas, etc.)
	1150	Kerosene
		Lubricating and cutting oils and greases
		Naphtha solvents (petroleum, ether,
		mineral spirits, cleaners naphtha, rubber
		solvents, etc.)
	1190	Petroleum asphalts and road oils
	1199	Coal and petroleum products, NEC
		production, 1120
200	Cold,	UNS
	1201	
		not include cold substances.)
	1202	Ice, snow (includes avalanches)
		Cold, NEC (includes injuries caused by
		the coldness of substances)
300		eyors, UNS
	1301	Gravity conveyors
		Powered conveyors
	1399	Conveyors, NEC
400	D	
400		and medicines, UNS
	1401	Biologic products (serum, toxins,
	1400	antitoxins, vaccines, plasma, blood, etc.)
	1490	Drugs and medicines, NEC
	Annlie	es to injuries caused by direct contact or
	exposi	ure to preparations administered to
	patien	ts. Does not include nitrous oxide (0976),
	or alc	ohols (0920) and disinfectants (0961).
	0. 0.0	-110D (07D) and Chimodhia (0701).
500	Electr	ic apparatus, UNS
		Motors
	1505	Generators
		Transformers, converters
		Conductors
		Switchboard and bus structures, switches,
	-5-0	circuit breakers, fuses
	1530	Rheostats, starters and control apparatus,
		capacitators, rectifiers, storage batteries
	1540	
		( L

	SOURCE O	F INJUKI - C	ontinued
Code	•	Code	
	1550 Heating appliances 1560 Cooling appliances 1599 Electric apparatus, NEC  Does not include hand powered tools (2300), heating equipment (2500), machines (3000), pumps and prime movers (4900)		2270 Rope, chain 2275 Saw 2280 Scissors, shears 2285 Screwdriver 2290 Shovel, spade 2292 Syringe 2295 Wrench
1 <b>7</b> 01	Flame and fire		2299 Hand tools, not powered, NEC. Includes sewing needles when not part of a sewing machine, etc.
1702	Smoke		
	Food Products (including animal foods), UNS 1810 Fruits and fruit products 1820 Grains and grain products 1840 Meats and meat products 1850 Milk and milk products 1870 Vegetables and vegetable products 1890 Food products, NEC  Furniture, fixtures, furnishings (not fixed parts of buildings or structures), UNS 1901 Cabinets, file cases, bookcases, etc. (including lockers found in gymnasiums which are not fixed or are not part of buildings) 1910 Chairs, benches, sofas, etc. 1920 Counters, work benches, etc. 1930 Desks 1950 Floor coverings, carpets, rugs, mats, etc. 1960 Lighting equipment, lamps, bulbs, etc. 1970 Tables 1999 Furniture (e.g. beds), fixtures, furnishings, shelf (as found in stores), home entertainment equipment (e.g. television, radio, stereo, amplifier, etc.), baker's	f	Does not include machines (3000).  Hand tools, powered, UNS 2301 Abrasive stone or wheel grinder 2305 Buffer, polisher, waxer 2310 Chisel 2315 Drill 2320 Hammer, tamper 2325 Ironer 2330 Knife 2335 Powder actuated tools, ramset gun 2340 Punch 2345 Riveter 2350 Sandblaster 2355 Saw, other than chain saw 2356 Chain saw 2360 Screwdriver, bolt setter 2370 Welding tools 2399 Hand tools, powered, NEC. Includes vacuum cleaner, tools using compressed air e.g. air gun, staple gun.  Does not include machines (3000)  Heat, atmospheric, environmental
2000	dough board, NEC	2500	<u>Does not</u> include hot objects or substances.
2000	Glass items Includes, glass fibers, sheets, (not installed),etc. <u>Does not</u> include finished product such as bottles, jars, and flasks (0650)	2500	Heating equipment Includes furnaces, retorts, space heaters, stoves, ranges, etc not electric.
2200	Hand tools, not powered, UNS 2201 Axe 2205 Blow Torch 2210 Chisel 2215 Crowbar, pry bar 2220 File 2225 Fork 2230 Hammer, sledge, mallet 2235 Hatchet 2240 Hoe 2245 Knife 2250 Pick		Hoisting apparatus, UNS 2610 Cranes, derricks 2620 Elevators 2630 Shovels, dredges 2641 Air hoist 2642 Chain hoist, chain blocks 2643 Electric hoist 2644 Gin pole 2645 Jacks (mechanical, hydraulic, air, etc.) 2646 Jammer (logging) 2647 Mine buckets 2699 Hoisting apparatus, NEC
	2255 Plane 2260 Pliers, tongs 2265 Punch	2700	Infectious and parasitic agents (use this code if a carrier or transmitter of the illness has not been identified). Includes bacteria, fungi,

Code

parasitic organisms, viruses, mold (e.g. as found on mushroom farms), spores, cells, etc. - <u>not</u> when part of identifiable objects, chemicals (0900), drugs, prepared medicinal items (1400) or food infestations (1800).

2800 Ladders (fixed or portable), UNS

2810 Fixed ladders

2831 Extension ladders

2833 Step ladders

2835 Straight, single ladders

2899 Ladders, NEC

2900 Liquids, UNS

2910 Water

2999 Liquids, NEC

<u>Does not</u> include liquid chemicals (0900), liquid coal and petroleum products (1100), and liquid food products (1800).

3000 Machines, UNS

3001 Agitators, mixers, tumblers, etc.

3050 Agricultural machines

3100 Buffers, polishers, sanders, grinders

3150 Casting, forging and welding machines

3200 Crushing, pulverizing etc., machines

3250 Drilling, boring, turning machines and lathe

3300 Earth moving and highway construction machines

3350 Mining and tunnelling machines

3400 Office machines

3450 Packaging and wrapping machines

3500 Picking, carding and combing machines

3550 Planers, shapers

3600 Presses (not printing presses (3650))

3650 Printing machines

3700 Rolls

3750 Saws

3800 Screening and separating machines

3850 Shears, slitters, slicers

3900 Stitching and sewing machines

3950 Weaving, knitting, spinning machines

3999 Machines, NEC (e.g. compressor)

4000 Mechanical power transmission apparatus, UNS

4010 Belts

4020 Chains, ropes, cables

4030 Drums, pulleys, sheaves

4040 Friction clutches

4050 Gears

4099 Mechanical power transmission apparatus, NEC

Includes all mechanical means of transmitting power from a prime mover up to, but not including, a shaft (or any pulleys or gears on the shaft), the bearings of which form an integral

Code

part of a machine. Directly connected prime movers are defined as having no transmission apparatus.

4100 Metal items, UNS

4110 Automobile parts

4115 Structural metal (bars, beams, panels, rails, rods, chafts, grates, angles, sheet metal, plates)

4120 Bullets, pellets

4125 Dies, molds, patterns

4130 Molten metal

4140 Pipe and fittings (valves, gutters, duct, forcets, spigots, pipe, pipe valves)

4150 Metal parts (castings, weights, forgings, storgings, and parts of unassembled equipment. <u>Does not</u> include automobile parts (4110).)

4155 Metal fasteners (bolts, nails, nuts, pins, rivets, screws, spikes, staples, clamps, couplings)

4160 Metal binders (strapping, wires, bands)

4165 Metal chips, splinters, and other metal particles

4199 Metal items, NEC

<u>Does not</u> include ore or other raw
materials (4200).

4200 Mineral items, metallic Includes products of mining, raw or semi-processed, such as ores and ore concentrates.

4300 Mineral items, non-metallic Includes products of mining, excavating, landslides, etc., such as clay, sand, gravel, stone, dirt, marble, etc.

4400 Noise

4500 Paper and pulp items

4600 Particles not otherwise identified

4700 Plants, trees, vegetation (in natural or unprocessed condition, for example, unlimbed logs - does not include threshed grains (1820), harvested fruits (1810), limbed logs (5710), etc.)

4800 Plastic items
Includes powders, sheets, rods, shapes, etc. but

not uncombined chemicals or components used in plastic manufacturing.

4900 Pumps and prime movers, UNS

4910 Engines (steam, internal combustion, etc.)

4930 Pumps

4950 Turbines (hydraulic, air, etc.)

# SOURCE OF INJURY - concluded

Code			Code	
		Pumps and prime movers, NEC		shingles, poles, etc. not installed) 5730 Skids, pallets
5000		ating substances and equipment, UNS Isotopes or irradiated substances for	5000	5749 Wood items, NEC
	5020	industrial or medical use Radium	5800	Working surfaces (surfaces in use as support for people), UNS
	5040	Reactor fuel, raw or processed Reactor wastes		5801 Floor (of a building, a mine, a vehicle, etc.)
	5050 5060	Sun Ultraviolet equipment		5810 Ground (outdoors) 5815 Ramps
	5070	Welding equipment, electric arc		5820 Roofs
		X-ray and fluoroscope equipment Microwave equipment		5825 Runways or platforms (permanent, fixed and elevated surfaces)
		Lasers Radiating substances and equipment, NEC		5830 Sidewalks, paths, walkways (outdoors) 5840 Stairs, steps
	3099	(e.g. gamma rays, light flashes, magnetic		5845 Street, road
		radiation)		5899 Working surfaces, NEC
	Inclu	des cases of radiation injuries only	6000	Explosives, UNS
5100	Soaps	s, detergents, cleaning compounds		6010 Dynamite 6099 Explosives, NEC
5200	Silica,	asbestos		Includes all compounds used as explosives.
5300	Scrap	, debris, waste material	6200	Rubber products, UNS 6210 Tires
5400	Steam	n		6299 Rubber Products, NEC
5500	Includ	e items des animal fibers after first scouring and ng, vegetable and synthetic fibers (except (2000)), yarn, thread, yard goods, felts,		Acts of God Includes tornado, flood, earthquake, lightning.
		n dust, lint and textile products.	9999	Source of Injury, NEC Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	cotto	dust, lint and textile products.	9999	
5600	Vehice 5601	dust, lint and textile products. eles, UNS Animal drawn	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehice 5601 5605	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered))	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehice 5601 5605 5610	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehice 5601 5605 5610 5620	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS		Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehice 5601 5605 5610 5620	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered		Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehice 5601 5605 5610 5620	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers 5638 Mules, tractors and other powered		Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehice 5601 5605 5610 5620	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehici 5601 5605 5610 5620 5630	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers 5638 Mules, tractors and other powered towing vehicles 5639 Plant or industrial vehicles, NEC Rail vehicles	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehici 5601 5605 5610 5620 5630 5640 5650 5660	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers 5638 Mules, tractors and other powered towing vehicles 5639 Plant or industrial vehicles, NEC Rail vehicles Sleds, snow and ice vehicles Water vehicles	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
5600	Vehic 5601 5605 5610 5620 5630 5650 5660 5670	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers 5638 Mules, tractors and other powered towing vehicles 5639 Plant or industrial vehicles, NEC Rail vehicles Sleds, snow and ice vehicles	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
	Vehic 5601 5605 5610 5620 5630 5650 5650 5660 5670 5699	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers 5638 Mules, tractors and other powered towing vehicles 5639 Plant or industrial vehicles, NEC Rail vehicles Sleds, snow and ice vehicles Water vehicles All Terrain Vehicles Vehicles, NEC (e.g. lawn mower, powered sit-on type)	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete
	Vehics 5601 5605 5610 5620 5630 5650 5660 5670 5699 Wood 5710	cles, UNS Animal drawn Person-powered(includes bicycles, wheelchairs (powered and unpowered)) Aircraft Highway vehicles, powered Plant or industrial vehicles, UNS 5631 Handtrucks, dollies and other non-powered vehicles 5635 Forklift, stackers, lumber carriers and other powered carriers 5638 Mules, tractors and other powered towing vehicles 5639 Plant or industrial vehicles, NEC Rail vehicles Sleds, snow and ice vehicles Water vehicles All Terrain Vehicles Vehicles, NEC (e.g. lawn mower, powered	9999	Includes sports equipment, pre-cast concrete

TYPE OF ACCIDENT

## TYPE OF ACCIDENT

## Definition

The accident type code identifies the event or exposure which directly caused the injury or illness.

## General Rule

It is essential that a direct relationship between this classification and the Nature of Injury, Part of Body and Source of Injury classifications be maintained in order to permit significant analytical cross-tabulations, for example, Type of Accident by Source of Injury.

## Rules for Selection

When the injury or illness occurred as a result of contact with an object or substance previously named as the source of injury, select the type of accident code which best describes the manner in which that contact occurred.

First choosing between the following broad groups may simplify selecting the most appropriate detailed code:

- 1) Impact injuries (010-159)
- 2) Non-impact injuries (060-189, 500)
- 3) Motor vehicle injuries (200-400)

When an accident results from a series of associated events, select the injury-producing event, and select the code which best describes how the previously selected source of injury caused the injury. For example, if a worker slips from a scaffold, falls, and slides down stairs to hit the floor and sustains a concussion - the type of accident code should be "fall from elevation", not "bodily reaction".

## Rules for "UNS" and "NEC" Codes

"UNSPECIFIED" (UNS) codes should be selected when the information available is insufficient to assign an existing detailed code.

"NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED" (NEC) codes should be selected when the information available is sufficient for coding purposes, but none of the existing detailed codes applies.

## Rules for Invalid Code Combinations

After completing the coding, check for invalid combinations of codes for Accident Type with codes for Nature of Injury, Part of Body and Source of Injury. In the event of an invalid code combination (for example, if "noise" has been identified as the Source of Injury, the Type of Accident cannot be "contact with noxious substances by inhalation"), reassess the original description of the injury or illness and modify the coding.

## TYPE OF ACCIDENT - continued

Code

000 Type of accident, UNS

010 Struck against, UNS

012 Struck against moving object

013 Step on stationary object

014 Struck against stationary object

019 Struck against, NEC

Applies to cases in which the injury was produced by impact between the injured person and the source of injury, the motion producing the contact being primarily that of the person rather than of the source of injury, except when the motion of the person was generated in a fall. Include cases of bumping into objects, stepping on objects, kicking objects, being pushed or thrown against objects, etc. <u>Does not</u> include cases of jumping from elevations.

020 Struck by, UNS

022 Flying object

023 Falling object during handling

024 Falling object, NEC

029 Struck by, NEC

Applies to cases in which the injury was produced by impact between the injured person and the source of injury, the motion producing the contact being primarily that of the source of injury rather than that of the person.

030 Fall from elevation, UNS

031 From scaffolds, walkways, platforms, etc.

032 From ladders

033 From piled materials

034 From vehicles

035 On stairs

O36 Into shafts, excavations, floor openings, etc. (from edge of opening)

039 Fall from elevation, NEC

A fall from elevation if defined as a loss of contact with the surface supporting the worker and where the injured worker's body comes to rest at a lower level after the fall. This includes falls from low elevation such as a fall from the first rung of a ladder, and situations where the worker maintains contact in rapid succession with surfaces or objects at lower levels, for example, in falling down a series of steps.

Applies to cases in which the injury was produced by impact between the injured person and the source of injury, the motion producing the contact being that of the person, under the following circumstances:

Code

 The motion of the person and the force of impact were generated by gravity.

(2) The point of contact with the source of injury was lower than the surface supporting the person at the start of the fall.

Includes jumping from elevations.

050 Fall on same level, UNS

051 Fall to the walkway or working surface

052 Fall onto or against objects

059 Fall on same level, NEC

Falls on the same level are falls where, usually, the point of contact is at or above the surface supporting the person before the fall, but included are situations where the injured worker establishes contact immediately with a lower surface, for example, where he/she falls when stepping off a curb.

Applies to cases in which the injury was produced by impact between the injured person and an external object and where the motion of the fall was generated by a loss of equilibrium and inability to maintain an upright position.

060 Caught in, under, or between, UNS

061 In running or meshing objects

062 A moving and a stationary object

O63 Two or more moving (not meshing) objects

065 Land slides and cave-ins

O66 Collapsing structures (buildings, bridges, etc.)

069 Caught in, under or between, NEC

Applies to non-impact cases in which the injury was produced by squeezing, pinching, or crushing between a moving object and a stationary object, between two moving objects, or between parts of an object.

<u>Does not</u> apply when the source of injury is a freely flying or falling object.

080 Rubbed or abraded, UNS

081 By leaning, kneeling or sitting on objects (not vibrating)

082 By objects being handled (not vibrating)

083 By vibrating objects

084 By foreign matter in the eye

085 By repetition of pressure

089 Rubbed or abraded, NEC

Applies to non-impact cases in which the injury was produced by pressure, vibration, or friction

## TYPE OF ACCIDENT - continued

Code

between the person and the source of injury. Includes cases of foreign matter in the eye or ear.

100 Bodily reaction, UNS

101 From involuntary motions

102 From voluntary motions

109 Bodily reaction, NEC

Applies to non-impact cases in which the injury resulted solely from a free bodily motion which imposed stress or strain upon some part of the body.

If "bodily motion" has been selected for Source of Injury, then "bodily reaction" must be selected for Type of Accident.

Generally applies to the occurrence of strains, sprains, ruptures, or other internal injuries (including white finger or vibration disease) resulting from the assumption of an unnatural position or from involuntary motions induced by sudden noise, fright, vibrating tools, or efforts to recover from slips or loss of balance. Includes cases involving nervous shock and cases of muscular or internal injury resulting from the execution of personal movements such as walking, climbing, running, reaching, turning, bending, etc. when such movement in itself was the source of injury.

<u>Does not</u> apply to overexertion cases involving the lifting, pulling, or pushing of objects, or to cases in which a bodily movement, voluntary or involuntary, results in forcible contact with an external object.

120 Overexertion, UNS

121 In lifting objects

122 In pulling or pushing objects

123 In wielding or throwing objects

129 Overexertion, NEC

Applies to non-impact cases in which the injury resulted from excessive physical effort, as in lifting, pulling, pushing, wielding, or throwing the source of injury (includes objects or persons). The nature of injuries which can be associated with overexertion include sprains, strains, hernias, and ruptures, if the injury was strictly due to excessive physical effort.

130 Contact with electric current
Applies only to non-impact cases in which the
injury consisted of electric shock, or
electrocution. Includes cases of electrical burns.

Code

150 Contact with temperature extremes, UNS

151 General heat - atmospheric or environmental

152 General cold - atmospheric or environmental

153 Hot objects or substances

154 Cold objects or substances

159 Contact with temperature extremes, NEC

Applies to non-impact cases in which the injury consisted of a burn, heat exhaustion, freezing, frostbite, etc. resulting from contact with, or exposure to, hot or cold objects, air, gases, vapors, or liquids.

Applies also to impact cases such as being struck against or struck by a hot or cold object where the nature of injury is a burn.

<u>Does not</u> apply in cases of injury from contact with sun's rays or other radiations, or injury by the toxic or caustic characteristics of chemicals, etc.

170 Contact with extremes of air pressure (does not include cases of caisson disease [751])

180 Contact with radiations, caustics, toxic or noxious subtances, UNS

181 By inhalation

182 By ingestion

183 By absorption

189 Contact with radiations, caustics, toxic and noxious substances, NEC (including viruses, bacteria, body lice, animals, etc.)

Applies only to non-impact cases in which the injury resulted from the inhalation, absorption (skin contact), or ingestion of harmful substances. Generally covers the occurrence of injuries of the following natures: Poisoning, chemical burns or irritations, allergic reactions, contagious diseases, and damage to the body from exposure to the sun's rays or other radiations.

<u>Does not</u> apply in cases of burns or freezing from contact with temperature extremes, or of burns from contact with electric current.

200 Public transportation accidents, UNS

201 Aircraft accident

203 Bus accident

205 Ship or boat accident

207 Streetcar or subway accident

209 Taxi accident

211 Train accident

299 Public transportation, NEC

Code for type of vehicle in which the injured was a passenger.

Applies only to cases in which the injury resulted from an accident to a public transportation vehicle, or from the movement of such vehicle, in which the injured was riding as a passenger, such as a train, taxi, or bus collision; an airplane crash; a ship sinking, grounding, etc.

<u>Does not</u> apply to accidents of a personal nature which occur aboard a public vehicle, such as a fall while moving about in the vehicle or simply striking against a part of the vehicle during normal movement in the vehicle. However, if the passenger is thrown to the floor or against a part of the vehicle as a result of a sudden stopping, starting, or lurching of the vehicle, the case falls in this classification.

<u>Does not</u> apply to cases in which the injured was not a passenger on a public vehicle at the time of injury, even though a public vehicle may have been involved.

300 Highway-type motor vehicle accidents, UNS

- 310 Collision or sideswipe with another vehicle, both vehicles in motion, UNS
  - 311 With an oncoming vehicle on same road, street, or trafficway
  - 312 With a vehicle moving in same direction on same road, street, or trafficway
  - 313 With a vehicle moving in an intersecting trafficway
  - 319 Collision or sideswipe with another vehicle, both vehicles in motion, NEC
- 320 Collision or sideswipe with a standing vehicle or stationary object, UNS
  - 321 Running into or sideswiping a standing vehicle or object in the roadway.
  - 322 Running into or sideswiping a standing vehicle or object at side of road (not in trafficway)
  - 323 Struck by another vehicle while standing in roadway
  - 324 Struck by another vehicle while standing off the roadway
  - 329 Collision or sideswipe with a standing vehicle or stationary object, NEC
- 330 Non-collision accidents, UNS

331 Overturned

- 332 Ran off roadway (out of control)
- 333 Sudden stop or start (throwing occupants out of, or against interior parts of the vehicle; or throwing contents of vehicle against occupants)
- 339 Non-collision accidents, NEC

399 Highway-type motor vehicle accidents, NEC

A motor vehicle must have been chosen for Source of Injury if "Highway-type motor vehicle accident " is selected for Type of Accident.

Highway-type motor vehicles are vehicles which are mainly used for the transport of freight or persons on public or private highways, roads, and streets.

Applies to cases in which the injured person was an occupant in a highway-type motor vehicle at the time of the injury, and the injury resulted from an accident involving the vehicle, or from the movement of the vehicle.

Does not apply to the following types of case:

- Falls on or from a vehicle which do not result from an accident to the vehicle or from the motion of the vehicle.
- (2) Striking against or being struck by parts of a vehicle or its cargo while in or on the vehicle, unless the event resulted from an accident to the vehicle or from the motion of the vehicle.
- (3) Accidents occurring in the course of servicing, repairing, loading, or unloading a vehicle, unless the event resulted from an accident to the vehicle or from the motion of the vehicle.
- (4) Accidents in which the injured was not in or on the vehicle as operator or passenger at the time of the accident.

400 Exposure to noise

- 402 Sudden or single exposure
- 405 Repeated noise

Applies to cases in which the injury resulted from exposure to noise over either a brief or a long time period. <u>Does not</u> include cases where the noise resulted from an explosion (500).

Code

## 500 Explosions

An explosion is defined as a rapid expansion, bursting, or upheaval of gases and/or liquids and/or solid matter. Includes explosions of large objects (e.g. buildings, tank cars) and small objects (e.g. bottles, aerosol cans). The explosion may be of intentional or accidental origin. Includes cases of injury resulting from contact with hot objects or substances produced by explosions, and cases of hearing loss, and other effects of noise from explosions. Does not include electrical short circuits ("blown fuses"); however, exploding automobile batteries would be included.

600 Nonhighway-type motor vehicle accidents, UNS

- 610 Collision or sideswipe with another vehicle, both vehicles in motion
- 620 Collision or sideswipe with a standing vehicle or stationary object (includes injury to occupants of a standing vehicle when struck by another vehicle)
- 630 Non-collision accidents, UNS
  - 631 Overturned
  - 632 Out of control
  - 633 Sudden stop or start (injury resulting from bodily motion or from striking against interior parts of the vehicle)
  - 634 Struck by shifting load or falling object (occupant of vehicle struck by shifting or falling load as result of movement, including sudden stops or starts, of the vehicle)
  - 635 Fall from vehicle (as result of an accident to the vehicle or from the movement of the vehicle)
  - 636 Vehicle movement (bodily conditions incurred as result of movement of vehicle, such as a back injury resulting from a wheel of vehicle hitting a hole)
  - 639 Non-collision accidents, NEC

699 Nonhighway-type motor vehicle accidents, NEC

Applies to cases in which the injured person was an occupant in a nonhighway-type motor vehicle at the time of the injury, and the injury resulted from an accident involving the vehicle, or from the movement of the vehicle.

Nonhighway-type motor vehicles are vehicles which usually perform certain functions at work sites or are used for off-road transport. Included are industrial, agricultural, construction, mining,

Code

excavation, and other light and heavy equipment (e.g. fork lifts, backhoes, graders, and motorized all-terrain vehicles).

Although nonhighway-type vehicles make use of, or are used on roads, streets, and highways (e.g. to move from one work site to another, or to perform such functions as snow clearing), accidents involving nonhighway-type motor vehicles are to be classified in the "600" series regardless of where the accident occurred.

Does not apply to the following types of case:

- Falls on or from a vehicle which do not result from an accident to the vehicle or from the motion of the vehicle.
- (2) Striking against or being struck by parts of a vehicle or its cargo while in or on the vehicle, unless the even resulted from an accident to the vehicle or from the motion of the vehicle.
- (3) Accidents occurring in the course of servicing, repairing, loading, or unloading a vehicle, unless the event resulted from an accident to the vehicle or from the motion of the vehicle.
- (4) Accidents in which the injured was not in or on the vehicle as operator or passenger at the time of the accident.
- Other vehicle accidents, including vehicles which are not motor-powered (e.g. bicycles and calashes).
- 750 Drowning other than diving accidents
- 751 Diving accidents (Includes caisson disease)
- 900 Acts of violence
- 999 Type of accident, NEC

# <u>SEX</u>

- 1 Male
- 2 Female
- 3 Unknown

# <u>AGE</u>

Age at date of accident

00 - Unknown

# **FATALITY**

# Definition

A work related injury that results in a death. Claims of first compensation in calendar year.

- 8 Fatalities
- 0 Non-Fatalities

# **INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION**

(Standard Industrial Classification Manual, 1980) (S.I.C.)

		LIST OF DIVISIONS, MAJOR GROUPS, IND	USTRY	GROU	IPS AND INDUSTRY CLASSES
I	OIVISI(	ON A - AGRICULTURAL AND RELATED SERVICE INDUSTRIES	017	Livesto Farms	ock, Field Crop and Horticultural Combination
	AAAA	Agricultural and Related Service Industries, UNS		0171	Livestock, Field Crop and Horticultural
M.A	JOR C	GROUP 01 - AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRIES			Combination Farms
	0100	Agricultural Industries, UNS	1		GROUP 02 - SERVICE INDUSTRIES
011	Livesto	ock Farms (Except Animal Specialties)			
	0110	Livestock Farms (Except Animal Specialties), UNS		0200	Service Industries Incidental to Agriculture, UNS
	0111 0112	Dairy Farms Cattle Farms	021	Service	es Incidental to Livestock and Animal Specialtie
	0113	Hog Farms		0210	
	0114			0011	Specialties, UNS
	0115 0119	Sheep and Goat Farms Livestock Combination Farms		0211 0212	•
012	Anima	l Specialty Farms		0213	
012		Animal Specialty Farms, UNS		0219	Other Services Incidental to Livestock and Animal Specialties
	0121	Honey and Other Apiary Product Farms			
		Horse and Other Equine Farms	022	Service	es Incidental to Agricultural Crops
	0123	Furs and Skins, Ranch			-
010		Other Animal Specialty Farms NEC		0220 0221	Soil Preparation, Planting and Cultivating
013	rieid (	Crop Farms		0222	Services Crop Dusting and Spraying Services
	0130	Field Crop Farms, UNS		0223	
		Wheat Farms		0229	Other Services Incidental to Agricultural Crop
	0132				о ше от тем от т
	0133 0134	Oilseed Farms (Except Corn)	023	Other	Services Incidental to Agriculture
	0135			0230	,,,,
	0136 0137			0231	Agricultural Management and Consulting Services
	0138			0239	Other Services Incidental to Agriculture NEC
		Other Field Crop Farms			
014	Field (	Crop Combination Farms		DIV	ISION B - FISHING AND TRAPPING INDUSTRIES
	0141	Field Crop Combination Farms	•	BBBB	Fishing & Trapping Industries, UNS
015	Fruit a	and Other Vegetable Farms	N		GROUP 03 - FISHING AND TRAPPING
	0150 0151	Fruit and Other Vegetable Farms, UNS Fruit Farms			INDUSTRIES
	0152		031	Fishin	g Industries
	0159	•	ų.		
016	Hortic	ultural Specialties		0310 0311 0312	Fishing Industries, UNS Salt Water Fishing Industry Inland Fishing Industry
	0160	Varioultural Specialties LINC			

032 Services Incidental to Fishing

0321 Services Incidental to Fishing

0161

0162

0163

Mushrooms

Greenhouse Products

0169 Other Horticultural Specialties

**Nursery Products** 

# LIST OF DIVISIONS, MAJOR GROUPS, INDUSTRY GROUPS AND INDUSTRY CLASSES

033	Trapp	ing	063	Coal	Mines .
	0330	Trapping, UNS		0630	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	0331			0631	
	0339	Other Trapping		0632	
				0633	Lignite Mines
	DIV	ISION C - LOGGING AND FORESTRY INDUSTRIES	М	AJOR	GROUP 07 - CRUDE PETROLEUM AND NATURAL GAS INDUSTRIES
	cccc	Logging and Forestry Industries, UNS	071	Crud	e Petroleum and Natural Gas Industries
	MAJO	OR GROUP 04 - LOGGING INDUSTRY		0710	Crude Petroleum & Natural Gas Industries, UNS
041	Loggir	ng Industry		0711	
		Logging Industry, UNS		0712	Non-Conventional Crude Oil Industry
		Logging Industry (Except Contract Logging) Contract Logging Industry	N	IAJOR	GROUP 08 - QUARRY AND SAND PIT INDUSTRIES
	MAJO	R GROUP 05 - FORESTRY SERVICES			
		INDUSTRY		0800	Quarry & Sand Pit Industries, UNS
051	Forest	ry Services Industry	081	Stone	Quarries
	0511	Forestry Services Industry		0810	Stone Quarries, UNS
		•		0811	
				0812	
D	<b>IVISIO</b>	N D - MINING (INCLUDING MILLING),		0813	<del>-</del>
	QUAF	RRYING AND OIL WELL INDUSTRIES"		0814	<del>-</del>
				0815	
	DDDI	Mining (Including Milling), Quarrying & Oil			•
		Well Industries, UNS	082	Sand	and Gravel Pits
	MAJC	OR GROUP 06 - MINING INDUSTRIES		0821	Sand and Gravel Pits
	0600	Mining, Industries, UNS			R GROUP 09 - SERVICE INDUSTRIES
061	Metal	Mines		INCL	DENTAL TO MINERAL EXTRACTION
•••	1110141	Trilles		0900	Service Industries Incidental to Mineral
	0610	Metal Mines, UNS		0300	Extraction, UNS
	0611				Extraction, O143
		Copper and Copper-Zinc Mines	001	Service	e Industries Incidental to Crude Petroleum and
	0613	Nickel-Copper Mines	071		al Gas
	0614	Silver-Lead-Zinc Mines		Ivatur	ai Gas
		Molybdenum Mines		0910	Service Industries Incidental to Crude
		Uranium Mines		0310	Petroleum and Natural Gas, UNS
		Iron Mines		0911	Contract Drilling, Oil and Gas Industry
	0619			0919	Other Service Industries Incidental to Crude
062	Non-M	etal Mines (Except Coal)			Petroleum and Natural Gas
	0.00	N. 36. 136	092	Service	e Industries Incidental to Mining
	0620	Non-Metal Mines (Except Coal), UNS			-
		Asbestos Mines		0920	Service Incidental to Mining, UNS
	00 <i>22</i> 0622	Peat Industry		0921	Contract Drilling Industry (Except Oil and
		Gypsum Mines			Gas)
		Potash Mines		0929	Other Service Industries Incidental to Mining
		Salt Mines			•
,	0029	Other Non-Metal Mines (Except Coal)			

LIST O	F DIVISIONS, MAJOR	GROUPS, IN	DUSTRY	GROUPS AN	ID INDUSTRY C	LASSES - conti	nued
TOTON E	MANUTEACTIONIC 1	DIDITION DIEC		1000	Other Food Prod	lucte Industriae	TIME

	L				
T	אוצועונ	ON E - MANUFACTURING INDUSTRIES		1090	Other Food Products Industries, UNS
	)	ON E - MANOI ACTORNIO E INDOORMES		1091	
	FFFF	Manufacturing Industries LINE		1092	
	EEEE	Manufacturing Industries, UNS			
				1093	
	MAJ	OR GROUP 10 - FOOD INDUSTRIES			Malt and Malt Flour Industry
				1099	Other Food Products Industries NEC
	1000	Food Industries, UNS			•
			N	<b>(AJOR</b>	<b>GROUP 11 - BEVERAGE INDUSTRIES</b>
101	Meat :	and Poultry Products Industries			
				1100	Beverage Industries, UNS
	1010	Meat & Poultry Products Industries, UNS			•
	1011	Meat and Meat Products Industry (Except	111	Soft D	rink Industry
	1011	Poultry)	• • • • •	JOIL 2	
	1010			1111	Soft Deink Industry
	1012	Poultry Products Industry		1111	Soft Drink Industry
				D:	
102	Fish P	roducts Industry	112	Distille	ry Products Industry
	1021	Fish Products Industry		1121	Distillery Products Industry
103	Fruit a	and Vegetable Industries	113	Brewe	ry Products Industry
					•
	1030	Fruit and Vegetable Industries, UNS		1131	Brewery Products Industry
	1031	Canned and Preserved Fruit and Vegetable			<b>,</b>
	1051	Industry	114	Wine !	Industry
	1022	Frozen Fruit and Vegetable Industry	•••	********	
	1032	1102011 11th and Vegetable Industry		1141	Wine Industry
104	Dain.	Dandiises Indicatains		1141	wine industry
104	Dairy .	Products Industries			
				1/410	D CDCID 10 DOD 1000 BDCDI/CTD
				MAJO	R GROUP 12 - TOBACCO PRODUCTS
		Dairy Products Industries, UNS		MAJO	R GROUP 12 - TOBACCO PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
	1040 1041	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry			INDUSTRIES
		Dairy Products Industries, UNS		MAJO 1200	
	1041	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry			INDUSTRIES
105	1041 1049	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries	121	1200	INDUSTRIES
105	1041 1049	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry	121	1200	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS
105	1041 1049 Flour,	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries	121	1200 Leaf T	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS  Tobacco Industry
105	1041 1049	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed	121	1200	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS
105	1041 1049 Flour, 1050	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS		1200 Leaf T 1211	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS  Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry
105	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry		1200 Leaf T 1211	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS  Tobacco Industry
105	1041 1049 Flour, 1050	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry To Products Industry
105	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry		1200 Leaf T 1211	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS  Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry
105	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry
	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS
	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry
	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  the Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS
	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  the Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)		1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
106	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry The Industrian In	122	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS
106	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  the Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)	122	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
106	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  tible Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)	122	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS  and Tube Industry
106	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  Able Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS	122	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  OR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS
106	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  tible Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS Biscuit Industry	122 151	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS  and Tube Industry  Tire and Tube Industry
106	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  Able Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS	122 151	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS  and Tube Industry
106 107	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery 1070 1071 1072	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  The Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS Biscuit Industry Bread and Other Bakery Products Industry	122 151	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar 1511 Rubbe	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS The Industry  Tire and Tube Industry  The and Belting Industry
106 107	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery 1070 1071 1072	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  tible Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS Biscuit Industry	122 151	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS  and Tube Industry  Tire and Tube Industry
106 107	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery 1070 1071 1072 Sugar	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry The Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS Biscuit Industry Bread and Other Bakery Products Industry  and Sugar Confectionery Industries	122 151 152	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar 1511 Rubbe 1521	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS The Industry  Tire and Tube Industry  The and Belting Industry  Rubber Hose and Belting Industry
106 107	1041 1049 Flour, 1050 1051 1052 1053 Vegeta 1061 Bakery 1070 1071 1072	Dairy Products Industries, UNS Fluid Milk Industry Other Dairy Products Industries  Prepared Cereal Food and Feed Industries  Flour, Prepared Cereal Food & Feed Industries, UNS Cereal Grain Flour Industry Prepared Flour Mixes and Prepared Cereal Foods Industry Feed Industry  The Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Vegetable Oil Mills (Except Corn Oil)  Products Industries  Bakery Products Industries, UNS Biscuit Industry Bread and Other Bakery Products Industry	122 151 152	1200 Leaf T 1211 Tobacc 1221 MAJC 1500 Tire ar 1511 Rubbe 1521	INDUSTRIES  Tobacco Products Industries, UNS Tobacco Industry  Leaf Tobacco Industry Tobacco Products Industry  Tobacco Products Industry  PR GROUP 15 - RUBBER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES  Rubber Products Industries, UNS The Industry  Tire and Tube Industry  The and Belting Industry

109 Other Food Products Industries

Cane and Beet Sugar Industry

Chewing Gum Industry
Sugar and Chocolate Confectionery Industry

1081

1082

1083

1599 Other Rubber Products Industries

	MAI	OR GROUP 16 - PLASTIC PRODUCTS			•
		INDUSTRIES		1911	Natural Fibres Processing and Felt Products Industry
	1600	Plastic Products Industries, UNS	102	Carnet	, Mat and Rug Industry
161	Foame	d and Expanded Plastic Products Industry	192		·
	1611	Foamed and Expanded Plastic Products Industry	193	1921 Canvas	Carpet, Mat and Rug Industry and Related Products Industry
162	Plastic	Pipe and Pipe Fittings Industry		1931	Canvas and Related Products Industry
	1621	Plastic Pipe and Pipe Fittings Industry	199	Other	Textile Products Industries
163	Plastic	Film and Sheeting Industry		1990 1991	Other Textile Products Industries, UNS Narrow Fabric Industry
	1631	Plastic Film and Sheeting Industry		1992 1993	Contract Textile Dyeing and Finishing Industry Household Products of Textile Materials
169	Other	Plastic Products Industries		1994	Industry Hygiene Products of Textile Materials Industry
	1690 1691	Other Plastic Products Industries UNS Plastic Bag Industry		1995 1999	Tire Cord Fabric Industry Other Textile Products Industries NEC
	1699	Other Plastic Products Industries NEC	_		
	MAIO	R GROUP 17 - LEATHER AND ALLIED	V	AAJOR	GROUP 24 - CLOTHING INDUSTRIES
	<i></i> <b> </b>	PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES		2400	Clothing Industries, UNS
171	Leathe	r and Allied Products Industries	243	Men's	and Boys' Clothing Industries
	1710	•		2430	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
		Leather Tanneries		2431	Men's and Boys' Coat Industry
		Footwear Industry		2432	Men's and Boys' Suit and Jacket Industry
		Luggage, Purse and Handbag Industry		2433	Men's and Boys' Pants Industry
	1719	Other Leather and Allied Products Industries		2434	Men's and Boys' Shirt and Underwear Industry
	MAJ	OR GROUP 18 - PRIMARY TEXTILE INDUSTRIES		2435	Men's and Boys' Clothing Contractors
	1800	Primary Textile Industries, UNS	244	Womer	3's Clothing Industries
	1000	2.1111111111111111111111111111111111111		2440	Women's Clothing Industries, UNS
181	Man-M	lade Fibre and Filament Yarn Industry		2441	Women's Coat and Jacket Industry
		•		2442	Women's Sportswear Industry
	1811	Man-Made Fibre and Filament Yarn Industry		2443	Women's Dress Industry
				2444	Women's Blouse and Shirt Industry
182	Spun Y	arn and Woven Cloth Industries		2445	Women's Clothing Contractors
	1820 1821	Spun Yarn & Woven Cloth Industries, UNS Wool Yarn and Woven Cloth Industry	245	Childre	n's Clothing Industry
	1829	Other Spun Yarn and Woven Cloth Industries		2451	Children's Clothing Industry
183	Broad	Knitted Fabric Industry	249	Other (	Clothing and Apparel Industries
	1831	Broad Knitted Fabric Industry		2490 2491	Other Clothing and Apparel Industries, UNS Sweater Industry
	MAIC	OR GROUP 19 - TEXTILE PRODUCTS		2492	Occupational Clothing Industry
		INDUSTRIES			Glove Industry

2493

2495

Glove Industry 2494 Hosièry Industry

Fur Goods Industry 2496 Foundation Garment Industry

2499 Other Clothing and Apparel Industries NEC

**INDUSTRIES** 

191 Natural Fibres Processing and Felt Products Industry

1900 Textile Products Industries, UNS

	MAJ	OR GROUP 25 - WOOD INDUSTRIES	264	Office	Furniture Industries
	2500	Wood Industries, UNS		2640	Office Furniture Industries, UNS
251	Sawmi	ill, Planing Mill and Shingle Mill Products		2641 2649	Metal Office Furniture Industry Other Office Furniture Industries
	Indust	ries	269	Other	Furniture and Fixture Industries
	2510		207	01,701	
	2511	Products Industries, UNS		2690	Other Furniture and Fixture Industries, UNS
	2511 2512	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		2691 2692	Bed Spring and Mattress Industry Hotel, Restaurant and Institutional Furniture
		(Except Shingles and Shakes)		2072	and Fixture Industry
252	Venee	er and Phywood Industries		2699	Other Furniture and Fixture Industries NEC
2.72	Venec	and Trywood industries		MAJ	OR GROUP 27 - PAPER AND ALLIED
	2520 2521				PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
	2522	Softwood Veneer and Plywood Industry		2700	Paper and Allied Products Industries, UNS
254	Sash,	Door and Other Millwork Industries	271	Pulp a	and Paper Industries
	2540	Sash, Door and Other Millwork Industries,		2710	Pulp and Paper Industries, UNS
		UNS		2711	Pulp Industry
	2541 2542	Prefabricated Wooden Buildings Industry Wooden Kitchen Cabinet and Bathroom Vanity		2712 2713	Newsprint Industry
	2342	Industry		2713	Paperboard Industry Building Board Industry
	2543			2719	Other Paper Industries
	2549	Other Millwork Industries			•
256	Mond	on Dan and Battat Indiates	272	Aspha	It Roofing Industry
200	WUUUd	en Box and Pallet Industry		2721	Asphalt Roofing Industry
	2561	Wooden Box and Pallet Industry		~.~.	rapidit Rooming industry
258	Coffin	and Casket Industry	273	Paper	Box and Bag Industries
		and subject industry		2730	Paper Box and Bag Industries, UNS
	2581	Coffin and Casket Industry		2731	Folding Carton and Set-Up Box Industry
				2732	Corrugated Box Industry
259	Other	Wood Industries		2733	Paper Bag Industry
		Other Wood Industries, UNS	279	Other	Converted Paper Products Industries
	2591				
	2592 2593	Particle Board Industry Wafer Board Industry		2790	Other Converted Paper Products Industries,
	2599	Wafer Board Industry Other Wood Industries NEC		2791	UNS Coated and Treated Paper Industry
				2792	Stationery Paper Products Industry
M	AJOR •	GROUP 26 - FURNITURE AND FIXTURE		2793	Paper Consumer Products Industry
		INDUSTRIES		2799	Other Converted Paper Products Industries NEC
	2600	Furniture and Fixture Industries, UNS			
261	House	hold Furniture Industries	MA	JOR G	ROUP 28 - PRINTING, PUBLISHING AND ALLIED INDUSTRIES
	2610	Household Furniture Industries, UNS		2800	Printing, Publishing and Allied Industries,
	2611	Wooden Household Furniture Industry			UNS
	2612			_	
	2619	Other Household Furniture Industries	281	Comm	ercial Printing Industries
				2810	Commercial Printing Industries, UNS
				2811	Business Forms Printing Industry

	2819	Other Commercial Printing Industries	299		Rolled, Cast and Extruded Non-Ferrous Metal cts Industries
282	2821	Platemaking, Typesetting and Bindery Industry  Platemaking, Typesetting and Bindery Industry	•	2999	Other Rolled, Cast and Extruded Non-Ferrous Metal Products Industries
283		ning Industries	PI	RODUC	OR GROUP 30 - FABRICATED METAL CTS INDUSTRIES (EXCEPT MACHINERY
	2830 2831 2839	Publishing Industries, UNS Book Publishing Industry Other Publishing Industries		AN	D TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT INDUSTRIES)
284		ned Publishing and Printing Industries		3000	Fabricated Metal Products Industries (Except Machinery and Transportation Equipment Industries), UNS
	2840	Combined Publishing and Printing Industries, UNS	301	Power	Boiler and Heat Exchanger Industry
	2841 2849	Newspaper, Magazine and Periodical (Combined Publishing and Printing) Industry Other Combined Publishing and Printing		3011	Power Boiler and Heat Exchanger Industry
	2047	Industries	302	Fabric	ated Structural Metal Products Industries
MA	JOR G	ROUP 29 - PRIMARY METAL INDUSTRIES		3020	Fabricated Structural Metal Products Industries, UNS
	2900	Primary Metal Industries, UNS		3021 3022	Metal Tanks (Heavy Gauge) Industry Plate Work Industry
291	Primar	y Steel Industries		3023	Pre-Engineered Metal Buildings Industry (Except Portable)
	2910 2911 2912	Ferro-Alloys Industry		3029	Other Fabricated Structural Metal Products Industries
	2919		303	Ornan Indust	nental and Architectural Metal Products ries
292	Steel I	Pipe and Tube Industry		3030	Ornamental and Architectural Metal Products
	2921	Steel Pipe and Tube Industry		3031	Industries, UNS Metal Door and Window Industry
294	Iron F	oundries		3032	Prefabricated Portable Metal Buildings Industry
	2941	Iron Foundries		3039	Other Ornamental and Architectural Metal Products Industries
295	Non-F	errous Metal Smelting and Refining Industries	304	Stamn	ed, Pressed and Coated Metal Products
	2950	Non-Ferrous Metal Smelting and Refining Industries, UNS	304	Indust	
	2951 2959	Primary Production of Aluminum Industry Other Primary Smelting and Refining of		3040	Stamped, Pressed and Coated Metal Products Industries, UNS
206	<b>41</b>	Non-Ferrous Metal Industries		3041 3042	Custom Coating of Metal Products Industry Metal Closure and Container Industry Other Comments of Products Industry
290		num Rolling, Casting and Extruding Industry		3049	Other Stamped and Pressed Metal Products Industries
	2961	Aluminum Rolling, Casting and Extruding Industry	305	Wire a	and Wire Products Industries
297		r and Copper Alloy Rolling, Casting and ling Industry		3050 3051	Wire and Wire Products Industries, UNS Upholstery and Coil Spring Industry
	2971	Copper and Copper Alloy Rolling, Casting and Extruding Industry		3052 3053 3059	Wire and Wire Rope Industry Industrial Fastener Industry Other Wire Products Industries
			306	Hardw	vare, Tool and Cutlery Industries

			323	Moto	r Vehicle Industry
	3060	Hardware, Tool and Cutlery Industries, UNS	320		· Vollote Madestry
	3061			3231	Motor Vehicle Industry
		Metal Dies, Moulds and Patterns Industry			musty
		Hand Tool and Implement Industry	324	Truck	and Bus Body and Trailer Industries
	3069		J		and Des Doey and Italier Industries
				3240	Truck and Bus Body and Trailer Industries,
307	/ Heati	ng Equipment Industry		3210	UNS
50.	110011	ng Edulburan mannil		3241	
	3071	Heating Equipment Industry		3242	
	5071	Troums Equipment moustry		3243	
200	Moch	ing Chan Industry			
300	VIVIACII	ine Shop Industry		3244	Mobile Home Industry
	3081	Machine Shop Industry	225	Moto	r Vehicle Parts and Accessories Industries
	2001	Machine Shop Industry	32	MOLO	venicle Parts and Accessories Industries
200	Other	Matel Echalentina Industries		2050	Managaratical David and Av.
303	Other	Metal Fabricating Industries		3250	Motor Vehicle Parts and Accessories
	2000	Out a March Policy of a Table of Third			Industries, UNS
	3090	,,,		3251	Motor Vehicle Engine and Engine Parts
	3091				Industry
		Metal Valve Industry		3252	Motor Vehicle Wiring Assemblies Industry
	3099	Other Metal Fabricating Industries NEC		3253	Motor Vehicle Stampings Industry
				3254	Motor Vehicle Steering and Suspension Parts
]		GROUP 31 - MACHINERY INDUSTRIES			Industry
	(E	XCEPT ELECTRICAL MACHINERY)		3255	Motor Vehicle Wheel and Brake Industry
				3256	Plastic Parts and Accessories for Motor
	3100	Machinery Industries (Except Electrical			Vehicles Industry
		Machinery), UNS		3257	Motor Vehicle Fabric Accessories Industry
				3259	Other Motor Vehicle Accessories, Parts and
311	Agricu	altural Implement Industry			Assemblies Industries
	_	·			
	3111	Agricultural Implement Industry	326	Railro	ad Rolling Stock Industry
					<b>6</b>
312	Comm	nercial Refrigeration and Air Conditioning		3261	Railroad Rolling Stock Industry
		ment Industry			3
		·	327	Shipby	uilding and Repair Industry
	3121	Commercial Refrigeration and Air Conditioning		•	6 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		Equipment Industry		3271	Shipbuilding and Repair Industry
		••			and topic the training
319	Other	Machinery and Equipment Industries	328	Boatb	uilding and Repair Industry
					- ment in put in
	3190	Other Machinery and Equipment Industries,		3281	Boatbuilding and Repair Industry
		UNS		5201	Doutouning and Repair Medicity
	3191	Compressor, Pump and Industrial Fan Industry	320	Other	Transportation Equipment Industries
		omproson, a mark machina and maching	327	Other	Transportation Equipment industries
	3192	Construction and Mining Machinery and		3299	Other Transportation Equipment Industries
	J., 2	Materials Handling Equipment Industry		3699	Other Transportation Equipment Industries
	3193	Sawmill and Woodworking Machinery Industry		3.64	IOD ODOLID OS TIL DOMENIO A LAND
	3194	Turbine and Mechanical Power Transmission			OR GROUP 33 - ELECTRICAL AND
	3134			ELE	CTRONIC PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
	3199	Equipment Industry Other Machinery and Equipment Industries		2200	The adviser of The section of the se
	3177	Other Machinery and Equipment Industries		3300	Electrical and Electronic Products Industries,
		NEC			UNS
	MAI	OR GROUP 32 - TRANSPORTATION	221	C!!	Clostained Appliance Variety
	IVLAS		331	Small	Electrical Appliance Industry
		EQUIPMENT INDUSTRIES		2211	Coroll Discovery 4 - 4 - 4
	3200	Transportation Equipment Industries IDIC		3311	Small Electrical Appliance Industry
	J200	Transportation Equipment Industries, UNS	444	<b>1</b> /	Anathana Tadasa (menangan)
201	A:	and Aireach Donta Tadanta	332	Major	Appliance Industry (Electric and Non-Electric)
321	Aircraf	t and Aircraft Parts Industry			
	2011	Alaman A. and Alaman A. Waren V. S. and A. And A. S. and A. And A.		3321	Major Appliance Industry (Electric and
	3211	Aircraft and Aircraft Parts Industry			Non-Electric)

333	Electri	c Lighting Industries	351	Clay P	roducts Industries
		Electric Lighting Industries, UNS Lighting Fixture Industry Electric Lamp and Shade Industry (Except Bulb and Tube)		3510 3511 3512	Clay Products Industries, UNS Clay Products Industry (From Domestic Clay) Clay Products Industry (From Imported Clay)
	3333		352	Hydra	ulic Cement Industry
334	Record	Player, Radio and Television Receiver Industry		3521	Hydraulic Cement Industry
	3341	Record Player, Radio and Television Receiver Industry	354	Concre	ete Products Industries
335	Comm	unication and Other Electronic Equipment ries		3540 3541 3542 3549	Concrete Products Industries, UNS Concrete Pipe Industry Structural Concrete Products Industry Other Concrete Products Industries
	3350	Communication and Other Electronic Equipment Industries, UNS	355	Ready	-Mix Concrete Industry
	3351 3352 3359	Telecommunication Equipment Industry Electronic Parts and Components Industry Other Communication and Electronic		3551	Ready-Mix Concrete Industry
	3337	Equipment Industries	356	Glass	and Glass Products Industries
336	Office,	Store and Business Machine Industries		3560 3561	Glass and Glass Products Industries, UNS Primary Glass and Glass Containers Industry
	3360	Office, Store and Business Machine Industries, UNS		3562	Glass Products Industry (Except Glass Containers)
	3361	Electronic Computing and Peripheral Equipment Industry	357	Abrasi	ves Industry
		Electronic Office, Store and Business Machine Industry		3571	Abrasives Industry
	3369	Other Office, Store and Business Machine Industries	358	Lime 1	Industry
337	Electric	cal Industrial Equipment Industries	•	3581	Lime Industry
	3370 3371		359	Other	Non-Metallic Mineral Products Industries
	3372	Electrical Switchgear and Protective Equipment Industry		3590	Other Non-Metallic Mineral Products Industries, UNS
	3379	Other Electrical Industrial Equipment Industries		3591 3592	Refractories Industry Asbestos Products Industry
338	Comm	unications and Energy Wire and Cable Industry		.3593 3594	Gypsum Products Industry Non-Metallic Mineral Insulating Materials
	3381	Communications and Energy Wire and Cable Industry		3599	Industry Other Non-Metallic Mineral Products Industries NEC
339	Other	Electrical Products Industries	M.		GROUP 36 - REFINED PETROLEUM AND COAL PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES
	3390 3391	Other Eléctrical Products Industries, UNS Battery Industry		3600	Refined Petroleum and Coal Products
	3392 3399	Non-Current Carrying Wiring Devices Industry Other Electrical Products Industries NEC	. 0	D . 5	Industries, UNS
N	(AJOR	GROUP 35 - NON-METALLIC MINERAL PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES	361	Refine	d Petroleum Products Industries  Refined Petroleum Products Industries, UNS
	3500	Non-Metallic Mineral Products Industries, UNS		3611	Refined Petroleum Products Industry (Except Lubricating Oil and Grease)

		251 OF DIVISIONS, WESON GROUPS, INDUST	KI OKO	015/1	- Continued
	3612	Lubricating Oil and Grease Industry		r a ton	CDOID 20 OTHER MANUEL CITYDIA
369	Other	Petroleum and Coal Products Industries	M	LAJUK	GROUP 39 - OTHER MANUFACTURING INDUSTRIES
	3699	Other Petroleum and Coal Products Industries		3900	Other Manufacturing Industries, UNS
M	AJOR	GROUP 37 - CHEMICAL AND CHEMICAL PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES	391	Scient	tific and Professional Equipment Industries
	3700	Chemical and Chemical Products Industries, UNS		3910 3911	
371	Indust	rial Chemicals Industries NEC		3912	Instruments Industry Other Instruments and Related Products Industry
	3710 3711 3712	Industrial Chemicals Industries, UNS Industrial Inorganic Chemical Industries NEC Industrial Organic Chemical Industries NEC		3913 3914	Clock and Watch Industry Ophthalmic Goods Industry
372	Agricu	altural Chemical Industries	392	Jewell	lery and Precious Metal Industries
	3720 3721	Agricultural Chemical Industries, UNS Chemical Fertilizer and Fertilizer Materials Industry		3920 3921 3922	
	3722 3729	Mixed Fertilizer Industry Other Agricultural Chemical Industries	393	•	ing Goods and Toy Industries
373	Plastic	and Synthetic Resin Industry		3930 3931 3932	Sporting Goods Industry
	3731	Plastic and Synthetic Resin Industry	207		·
374	Pharm	aceutical and Medicine Industry	371	-	and Display Industry
	3741	Pharmaceutical and Medicine Industry	200	3971	Sign and Display Industry
375	Paint a	and Varnish Industry	399	Other	Manufactured Products Industries
	3751	Paint and Varnish Industry		3990 3991 3992	Broom, Brush and Mop Industry
376	Soap a	and Cleaning Compounds Industry		3993	Floor Tile, Linoleum and Coated Fabric Industry
	3761	Soap and Cleaning Compounds Industry		3994	Musical Instrument and Sound Recording Industry
377	Toilet	Preparations Industry		3999	Other Manufactured Products Industries NEC
	3771	Toilet Preparations Industry			
379	Other	Chemical Products Industries		DIVIS	ION F - CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRIES
	3790 3791	Other Chemical Products Industries, UNS Printing Ink Industry		FFFF	Construction Industries, UNS
	3792 3799	Adhesives Industry Other Chemical Products Industries NEC	MA	IOR G GEN	ROUP 40 - BUILDING, DEVELOPING AND IERAL CONTRACTING INDUSTRIES
				4000	Building, Developing and General Contracting Industries, UNS
			401	Reside	ential Building and Development
		•		4010 4011	Residential Building and Development, UNS Single Family Housing

	4012			4223	Steel Reinforcing
	4013	Residential Renovation		4224	
		_ * .		4225	
402	Non-R	esidential Building and Development		4226	Rough and Framing Carpentry
				4227	Structural Steel Erection
	4020	Non-Residential Building and Development, UNS		4229	Other Structural and Related Work
	4021	Manufacturing and Light Industrial Building	423	Exteri	or Close-In Work
	4022	Commercial Building			
	4023	Institutional Building		4230	Exterior Close-In Work, UNS
		•		4231	Masonry Work
		GROUP 41 - INDUSTRIAL AND HEAVY		4232	Siding Work
(1	ENGIN	EERING) CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRIES		4233	•
				4234	Insulation Work
	4100	Industrial and Heavy (Engineering)		4235	Roof Shingling
		Construction Industries, UNS		4236	Sheet Metal and Built-Up Roofing
				4239	Other Exterior Close-In Work
411	Industr	rial Construction (Other than Buildings)			
			424		ping, Heating and Air Conditioning, Mechanical
	4110	Industrial Construction (Other than Buildings), UNS		Work	
		Power Plants (Except Hydroelectric)		4240	Plumbing, Heating and Air Conditioning,
	4112	Gas, Oil and Other Energy Related Structures			Mechanical Work, UNS
		(Except Pipelines)		4241	Plumbing
		Gas and Oil Pipelines		4242	Dry Heating and Gas Piping Work
	4119	Other Industrial Construction		4243	
				4244	Sheet Metal and Other Duct Work
412	Highwa	ay and Heavy Construction			
	4100	History and Hanse Construction HISC	425	меспа	anical Specialty Work
		Highway and Heavy Construction, UNS	•	4250	Machanical Consister Work TDIC
		Highways, Streets and Bridges Waterworks and Sewage Systems		4250	Mechanical Specialty Work, UNS
		Hydroelectric Power Plants and Related		4251 4252	
	٦١٣	Structures (Except Transmission Lines)		4253	Automatic Sprinkler System Installation Commercial Refrigeration Work
	4124	Power and Telecommunication Transmission		4254	Environmental Control Work
	4124	Lines		4255	
	4129	Other Heavy Construction		4256	Milwright and Rigging Work Thermal Insulation Work
	4127	Other Heavy Construction	•	4259	
	MAIOI	R GROUP 42 - TRADE CONTRACTING		4239	Other Mechanical Specialty Work
	MLADOI	INDUSTRIES	126	Electri	cal Work
		MOOSINGS	420	Licti	Cai Work
	4200	Trade Contracting Industries, UNS		4261	Electrical Work
421	Site Wo	ork	427	Interio	or and Finishing Work
	4210	Site Work, UNS		4270	Interior and Finishing Work TING
	4211	Wrecking and Demolition		4271	Interior and Finishing Work, UNS Plastering and Stucco Work
		Water Well Drilling		4272	<b>0</b> * *** = *** <del>***</del>
		Septic System Installation		4273	
		Excavating and Grading		4274	
		Equipment Rental (With Operator)			Painting and Decorating Work
		Asphalt Paving		4276	Terrazzo and Tile Work
		Fencing Installation		4277	
		Other Site Work		4278	Resilient Flooring and Carpet Work
		•		4279	Other Interior and Finishing Work
122	Structu	ral and Related Work		·~//	one more and imbining work
			429	Other	Trade Work
	4220	Structural and Related Work, UNS			·
	4221	Piledriving Work		4290	Other Trade Work, UNS
	4222	Form Work		4291	Elevator and Escalator Installation

	4292	Ornamental and Miscellaneous Fabricated	454	337-4-	<b>7</b> 7
	4293	Metal Installation	454	water	Transport Industries
	4293 4299			4540	Water Transport Industries IDIO
	4299	Other Trade Work NEC		4540	, ,
	34476			4541	Freight and Passenger Water Transport
		OR GROUP 44 - SERVICE INDUSTRIES		4540	Industry
		NCIDENTAL TO CONSTRUCTION		4542	Ferry Industry
	4400	Coming Industries Insidental to Construction		4543	
	4400	Service Industries Incidental to Construction,		4544	
		UNS	•	4549	Other Water Transport Industries
441	Projec	t Management, Construction	455	Servic	e Industries Incidental to Water Transport
	4411	Project Management, Construction		4550	Service Industries Incidental to Water
440	0.1	Complete Tablement to Complete with		4554	Transport, UNS
449	Other	Services Incidental to Construction		4551	
		0. 0		4552	
	4490	,		4553	
	4491			4554	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	4499	Other Services Incidental to Construction NEC		4555	Marine Shipping Agencies Industry
				4559	Other Service Industries Incidental to Water
					Transport
	DI	VISION G - TRANSPORTATION AND			
		STORAGE INDUSTRIES	456	Truck	Transport Industries
	GGGG	GTransportation and Storage Industries, UNS		4560	Truck Transport Industries, UNS
		•		4561	General Freight Trucking Industry
	MA	IOR GROUP 45 - TRANSPORTATION		4562	Used Goods Moving and Storage Industry
		INDUSTRIES		4563	Bulk Liquids Trucking Industry
				4564	Dry Bulk Materials Trucking Industry
	4500	Transportation Industries, UNS		4565	
		•		4569	
451	Air Tr	ansport Industries			
			457	Public	Passenger Transit Systems Industries
	4510				
	4511			4570	Public Passenger Transit Systems Industries,
	4512				UNS
		Industry		4571	Urban Transit Systems Industry
	4513	Non-Scheduled Air Transport, Specialty,		4572	Interurban and Rural Transit Systems Industr
		Industry		4573	School Bus Operations Industry
		•		4574	Charter and Sightseeing Bus Services Industry
452	Service	Industries Incidental to Air Transport		4575	Limousine Service to Airports and Stations Industry
	4520	Service Industries Incidental to Air Transport,			•
		UNS	458	Other	Transportation Industries
	4521	Airport Operations Industry			•
	4522	Aircraft Rental Industry		4580	Other Transportation Industries, UNS
	4523	Aircraft Servicing Industry		4581	Taxicab Industry
	4529	Other Service Industries Incidental to Air		4589	Other Transportation Industries NEC
		Transport			
			459	Other	Service Industries Incidental to Transportation
453	Kailway	y Transport and Related Service Industries		4500	
	4500	Dellara Terrane and Delegal Co. 1		4590	Other Service Industries Incidental to
	4530	Railway Transport and Related Service			Transportation, UNS
		Industries, UNS		4591	Highway, Street and Bridge Maintenance
	4531	Railway Transport Industry			Industry
	4532	Service Industry Incidental to Railway		4592	Freight Forwarding Industry
		Transport		4599	Other Service Industries Incidental to
					Transportation NEC

#### MAJOR GROUP 46 - PIPELINE TRANSPORT Postal Service Industry **INDUSTRIES** Courier Service Industry 461 Pipeline Transport Industries MAJOR GROUP 49 - OTHER UTILITY Pipeline Transport Industries, UNS 4611 Natural Gas Pipeline Transport Industry

#### MAJOR GROUP 47 - STORAGE AND WAREHOUSING INDUSTRIES

4612 Crude Oil Pipeline Transport Industry 4619 Other Pipeline Transport Industries

4700 Storage and Warehousing Industries, UNS

471 Grain Elevator Industry

4711 Grain Elevator Industry

479 Other Storage and Warehousing Industries

Other Storage and Warehousing Industries, 4790

4791 Refrigerated Warehousing Industry

Other Storage and Warehousing Industries 4799

#### DIVISION H - COMMUNICATION AND OTHER UTILITY INDUSTRIES

HHHH Communication & Other Utility Industries, UNS

#### MAJOR GROUP 48 - COMMUNICATION INDUSTRIES

4800 Communication Industries, UNS

481 Telecommunication Broadcasting Industries

4810 Telecommunication Broadcasting Industries, UNS

Radio Broadcasting Industry

Television Broadcasting Industry

Combined Radio and Television Broadcasting 4813 Industry

4814 Cable Television Industry

482 Telecommunication Carriers Industry

Telecommunication Carriers Industry

483 Other Telecommunication Industries

4839 Other Telecommunication Industries

484 Postal and Courier Service Industries

4840 Postal and Courier Service Industries, UNS

INDUSTRIES

4900 Other Utility Industries, UNS

491 Electric Power Systems Industry

4911 Electric Power Systems Industry

492 Gas Distribution Systems Industry

Gas Distribution Systems Industry

493 Water Systems Industry

4931 Water Systems Industry

499 Other Utility Industries NEC

Other Utility Industries NEC

#### DIVISION I - WHOLESALE TRADE INDUSTRIES

Ш Wholesale Trade Industries, UNS

#### **MAJOR GROUP 50 - FARM PRODUCTS** INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE

501 Farm Products, Wholesale

5010 Farm Products, Wholesale, UNS

5011 Livestock, Wholesale

Grain, Wholesale 5012

5019 Other Farm Products, Wholesale

#### MAJOR GROUP 51 - PETROLEUM PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE

511 Petroleum Products, Wholesale

5111 Petroleum Products, Wholesale

#### MAJOR GROUP 52 - FOOD, BEVERAGE, DRUG AND TOBACCO INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE

Food, Beverage, Drug & Tobacco Industries Wholesale, UNS

521 Food, Wholesale

5210 Food, Wholesale, UNS

Confectionery, Wholesale 5211

Frozen Foods (Packaged), Wholesale 5212

Dairy Products, Wholesale 5213

Poultry and Eggs, Wholesale 5214

Fish and Seafood, Wholesale 5215

	Ţ	IST OF DIVISIONS, MAJOR GROUPS, INDUSTRY	GRO	UPS A	ND INDUSTRY CLASSES - continued
	5216 5217	Fresh Fruit and Vegetables, Wholesale Meat and Meat Products, Wholesale	542	House	chold Furniture, Wholesale
		Other Foods, Wholesale		5421	Household Furniture, Wholesale
522	Bevera	ages, Wholesale	<b>54</b> 3	House	chold Furnishings, Wholesale
		Beverages, Wholesale, UNS		5430	Household Furnishings, Wholesale, UNS
	5221 <b>5222</b>	Non-Alcoholic Beverages, Wholesale Alcoholic Beverages, Wholesale		5431	Wholesale
523	Drugs	and Toilet Preparations, Wholesale		5432 5433	Floor Coverings, Wholesale Linens, Draperies and Other Textile Furnishings, Wholesale
	5230	Drugs and Toilet Preparations, Wholesale, UNS		5439	Other Household Furnishings, Wholesale
		Drugs, Wholesale		#ATOD	Cholines Moron Villian Panas
	5232 5239	Toilet Soaps and Preparations, Wholesale Drug Sundries and Other Drugs and Toilet Preparations, Wholesale			GROUP 55 - MOTOR VEHICLE, PARTS AND ACCESSORIES INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE
524	Tobac	co Products, Wholesale		5500	Motor Vehicle, Parts and Accessories, Industries, Wholesale, UNS
	5241	Tobacco Products, Wholesale		<b>\</b>	Stabiata Whatanta
М	AJOR	GROUP 53 - APPAREL AND DRY GOODS	331	Motor	Vehicles, Wholesale
		INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE		5510	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	5300	Apparel and Dry Goods Industries, Wholesale,		5511 5512	•
		UNS		5519	•
531	Appar	el, Wholesale			Wholesale
	5310	Apparel, Wholesale, UNS	552	Motor	Vehicle Parts and Accessories, Wholesale
	5311	Men's and Boys' Clothing and Furnishings, Wholesale		5520	Motor Vehicle Parts and Accessories, Wholesale, UNS
	5312	Women's, Misses' and Children's Outerwear, Wholesale		5521 5529	Tires and Tubes, Wholesale
	5313	Women's, Misses' and Children's Hosiery, Underwear and Apparel Accessories, Wholesale			Wholesale
	5314	Footwear, Wholesale			R GROUP 56 - METALS, HARDWARE,
500	5319				IMBING, HEATING AND BUILDING TERIALS INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE
332	DIY G	oods, Wholesale		5600	Metals, Hardware, Plumbing, Heating and
	5320	Dry Goods, Wholesale, UNS		3000	Building Materials Industries, Wholesale, UNS
	5321 5329	Piece Goods, Wholesale Notions and Other Dry Goods, Wholesale	561	Metal	and Metal Products, Wholesale
	MAJ	OR GROUP 54 - HOUSEHOLD GOODS INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE		5610 5611	Metal and Metal Products, Wholesale, UNS Iron and Steel Primary Forms and
	5400	Household Goods Industries, Wholesale, UNS		5612 5613	Structural Shapes, Wholesale Other Iron and Steel Products, Wholesale Non-Ferrous Metal and Metal Products,
541		cal and Electronic Household Appliances and Wholesale		5619	Wholesale Combination Metal and Metal Products, Wholesale
	5410	Electrical and Electronic Household Appliances and Parts, Wholesale, UNS	540	Uarde-	
	5411 5412	Electronic Household Appliances, Wholesale Electronic Household Appliances, Wholesale	302		are and Plumbing, Heating and Air ioning Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale

•	5620	Hardware and Plumbing, Heating and Air Conditioning Equipment and Supplies	579	Other	Machinery, Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale
	5621	Wholesale, UNS Hardware, Wholesale		5790	Other Machinery, Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale, UNS
	5622	Plumbing, Heating and Air Conditioning		5791	Office and Store Machinery, Equipment and
		Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale		5792	
563	Lumbe	er and Building Materials, Wholesale		5793	Wholesale Professional Machinery, Equipment and
	5630	Lumber and Building Materials, Wholesale, UNS		5799	Supplies, Wholesale Other Machinery, Equipment and Supplies
	5631 5632	Lumber, Plywood and Millwork, Wholesale Paint, Glass and Wallpaper, Wholesale			NEC, Wholesale
	5639			MAJ	OR GROUP 59 - OTHER PRODUCTS INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE
N	(AJOR	GROUP 57 - MACHINERY, EQUIPMENT			•
		SUPPLIES INDUSTRIES, WHOLESALE		5900	Other Products Industries, Wholesale, UNS
	5700	Machinery, Equipment and Supplies Industries, Wholesale, UNS	591	Waste	Materials, Wholesale
		•		5910	Waste Materials, Wholesale, UNS
571	Farm I	Machinery, Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale		5911	
				5919	Other Waste Materials, Wholesale
	5711	Farm Machinery, Equipment and Supplies,			•
		Wholesale	592	Paper	and Paper Products, Wholesale
572	Constr	uction, Forestry and Mining Machinery,		5920	Paper and Paper Products, Wholesale, UNS
		nent and Supplies, Wholesale		5921	
	-1			5922	Stationery and Office Supplies, Wholesale
	5720	Construction, Forestry and Mining Machinery,		5929	Other Paper and Paper Products, Wholesale
	3120	Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale, UNS		3727	Other Taper and Taper Troducts, Wholesale
	5721		503	Agricu	Itural Supplies, Wholesale
	3721	Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale	333	Agricu	itutai Supplies, Wilolesale
	5700		1	5020	Apple de la Complia de La Comp
	5722	Mining Machinery, Equipment and Supplies,		5930	
		Wholesale		5931	
	• •			5932	
573		ial Machinery, Equipment and Supplies,		5939	Agricultural Chemical and Other Farm
	Wholes	sale			Supplies, Wholesale
	5731	Industrial Machinery, Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale	594	Toys,	Amusement and Sporting Goods, Wholesale
				5940	Toys, Amusement and Sporting Goods,
574		al and Electronic Machinery, Equipment and			Wholesale, UNS
	Supplie	s, Wholesale		5941 5942	Toys, Novelties and Fireworks, Wholesale Amusement and Sporting Goods, Wholesale
	5740	Electrical and Electronic Machinery, Equipment			
		and Supplies, Wholesale, UNS	595	Photos	graphic Equipment and Musical Instruments and
	5741	Electrical Wiring Supplies and Electrical Construction Material, Wholesale			es, Wholesale
	5742	Electrical Generating and Transmission		5950	Photographic Equipment and Musical
		Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale		5750	Instruments and Supplies, Wholesale, UNS
	5743	Electronic Machinery, Equipment and Supplies		5951	Photographic Equipment and Supplies,
	. =:	(Except Computer and Related Equipment),			Wholesale
		Wholesale		5952	Musical Instruments and Accessories,
	5744	Computer and Related Machinery, Equipment			Wholesale
		and Packaged Software, Wholesale			W DOMOIG
	5749	Other Electrical and Electronic Machinery,	504	Terrolla	and Watches Wholesale
		Equipment and Supplies, Wholesale	370	1CMCIIC	ery and Watches, Wholesale
		1 1 man and house, managed		5961	Jewellery and Watches, Wholesale
				2201	Towns of the transfer to the t

597	Indust	rial and Household Chemicals, Wholesale	611	Shoe	Stores
	5971	Industrial and Household Chemicals, Wholesale		6111	Shoe Stores
598	Genera	al Merchandise, Wholesale	612	Men's	Clothing Stores
	5981	General Merchandise, Wholesale		6121	Men's Clothing Stores
599	Other	Products NEC, Wholesale	613	Wome	en's Clothing Stores
	5990 5991	Other Products, Wholesale, UNS		6131	Women's Clothing Stores
	5992		614	Clothi	ing Stores NEC
	5002	Forest Products, Wholesale		6140	Clothing Stores LINS
	5999			6141	• ,
	3777	Other Freducts (VEC, Wholesale		6142	
				6149	Other Clothing Stores, NEC
		DIVISION J - RETAIL TRADE		0143	other Ciothing Stores, NEC
		INDUSTRIES	615	Fabric	and Yarn Stores
	]]]]]	Retail Trade Industries, UNS		6151	Fabric and Yarn Stores
	MAJOI	R GROUP 60 - FOOD, BEVERAGE AND DRUG INDUSTRIES, RETAIL	М		GROUP 62 - HOUSEHOLD FURNITURE, APPLIANCES AND FURNISHINGS INDUSTRIES, RETAIL
	6000	Food, Beverage and Drug Industries, Retail,			and correctly restrict
		UNS		6200	Household Furniture, Appliances and Furnishings Industries Retail, UNS
601	Food S	Stores			
		·	621	House	chold Furniture Stores
	6010	Food Stores, UNS			
		Supermarkets		6210	Household Furniture Stores, UNS
		Grocery Stores (Exc. Supermarkets)		6211	Household Furniture Stores (With Appliances
		Bakery Products Stores			and Furnishings)
		Candy and Nut Stores		6212	Household Furniture Stores (Without
		Fruit and Vegetable Stores			Appliances and Furnishings)
		Meat Markets		6213	Furniture Refinishing and Repair Shops
	6019	Other Food (Specialty) Stores			
	•••		622	Applia	ance, Television, Radio and Stereo Stores
602	Liquor,	, Wine and Beer Stores			
	6020	Liques Wine and Deer Stores LINE		6220	Appliance, Television, Radio and Stereo
	6020	Liquor, Wine and Beer Stores, UNS		(22)	Stores, UNS
	6021 6022	Liquor Stores Wine Stores		6221	Appliance, Television, Radio and Stereo Stores
	6023	Beer Stores		6222 6223	Television, Radio and Stereo Stores Appliance, Television, Radio and Stereo
สกร	Prescrit	ption Drugs and Patent Medicine Stores			Repair Shops
003	Trescrip	priori Diuga and Tatent Medicine Stores	623	House	hold Furnishings Stores
	6030	Prescription Drugs and Patent Medecine Stores,	020	110030	note I diniming otoles
		UNS		6230	Household Furnishings Stores, UNS
	6031	Pharmacies		6231	Floor Covering Stores
		Patent Medicine and Toiletries Stores		6232	Drapery Stores
				6239	Other Household Furnishings Stores
N		GROUP 61 - SHOE, APPAREL, FABRIC ND YARN INDUSTRIES, RETAIL			Aleconom A stribinings stores

6100 Shoe, Apparel, Fabric and Yarn Industries, Retail, UNS

	MAJO: PA	R GROUP 63 - AUTOMOTIVE VEHICLES, RTS AND ACCESSORIES INDUSTRIES,		MAJO	OR GROUP 65 - OTHER RETAIL STORE INDUSTRIES
		SALES AND SERVICE		6500	Other Retail Store Industries, UNS
	6300	Automotive Vehicles, Parts and Accessories Industries Sales and Service, UNS	651	Book	and Stationery Stores
631	Auto	mobile Dealers		6511	Book and Stationery Stores
	6310	Automobile Dealers, UNS	652	Floris	ts, Lawn and Garden Centres
	6311	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		6500	The state of the s
		Automobile (Used) Dealers		6520 6521	
632	Decre	eational Vehicle Dealers		6522	Lawn and Garden Centres
032	Rocit	ational Vehicle Dealers	650	IIand	man Baint Class and Wallaces Co.
	6320	Recreational Vehicle Dealers, UNS	033	Harov	ware, Paint, Glass and Wallpaper Stores
	6321	,		6520	Handson Baint Class and Matter Co.
	6322			6530	Hardware, Paint, Glass and Wallpaper Stores,
	0324	Accessories Dealers		(50.1	UNS
	6222			6531	Hardware Stores
	6323			6532	Paint, Glass and Wallpaper Stores
	6329	Other Recreational Vehicle Dealers			
(22	C1	to Combo Chat	654	Sporti	ng Goods and Bicycle Shops
033	Gasor	ine Service Stations			
	<i>c</i> 221	Caratta C. I. O. I		6540	Sporting Goods and Bicycle Shops, UNS
	6331	Gasoline Service Stations		6541	Sporting Goods Stores
<b>CO.</b>				6542	Bicycle Shops
034	Autor	notive Parts and Accessories Stores			
	6340		655	Music	al Instrument and Record Stores
	6341			6550	Musical Instrument and Record Stores, UNS
	6342	Tire, Battery, Parts and Accessories Stores		6551	Musical Instrument Stores
				6552	Record and Tape Stores
635	Motor	Vehicle Repair Shops			
			656	Jewell	ery Stores and Watch and Jewellery Repair
	6350	Motor Vehicle Repair Shops, UNS		Shops	
	6351			J.J.Op.	
	6352			6560	Jeweilery Stores and Watch and Jeweilery
	6353	Muffler Replacement Shops		0500	Repair Shops, UNS
	6354	Motor Vehicle Glass Replacement Shops		6561	Jewellery Stores
	6355	Motor Vehicle Transmission Repair and		6562	
	0000	Replacement Shops		0302	Watch and Jewellery Repair Shops
	6359	Other Motor Vehicle Repair Shops	657	Come	on and Dhotanashia Court Co
			037	Camei	ra and Photographic Supply Stores
639	Other	Motor Vehicle Services		6571	Camera and Photographic Supply Stores
	6390	Other Motor Vehicle Services, UNS	658	Tov. F	Hobby, Novelty and Souvenir Stores
	6391	Car Washes	-50	-0,, -	1000); Novely and Souvein Stores
	6399	Other Motor Vehicle Services NEC		6580	Toy, Hobby, Novelty and Souvenir Stores, UNS
	MA	JOR GROUP 64 - GENERAL RETAIL		<i>(5</i> 01	
		MERCHANDISING INDUSTRIES		6581	Toy and Hobby Stores
		MERCHANDISING INDUSTRIES		6582	Gift, Novelty and Souvenir Stores
641	Genera	al Merchandise Stores	659	Other	Retail Stores
	6410	General Marchandica Stores IING			
	6411	General Merchandise Stores, UNS		6590	Other Retail Stores, UNS
	6412			6591	Second-Hand Merchandise Stores NEC
	6413			6592	Opticians' Shops
	<b>⊶13</b>	Other General Merchandise Stores		6593	Art Galleries and Artists' Supply Stores
				6594	Luggage and Leather Goods Stores

		•			
	6595	Monument and Tombstone Dealers			
	6596	Pet Stores	709	Other	Deposit Accepting Intermediaries
	6597	Coin and Stamp Dealers			
	6598			7099	Other Deposit Accepting Intermediaries
	6599				over a specie i assopiano amoranio di anti-
			M	AIOR	GROUP 71 - CONSUMER AND BUSINESS
	MAI	OR GROUP 69 - NON-STORE RETAIL	1412		NCING INTERMEDIARY INDUSTRIES
		INDUSTRIES		1 11471	TODO INTERMEDIART INDUSTRIES
		INDUSTRIES		7100	Consumar and Business Financias
	6000	Non Store Detail Industries LING		7100	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	0900	Non-Store Retail Industries, UNS			Intermediary Industries, UNS
				_	
691	Vendi	ng Machine Operators	711	Consu	imer Loan Companies
				_	
	6911	Vending Machine Operators		7111	Consumer Loan Companies
692	Direct	Sellers	712	Busin	ess Financing Companies
					•
	6921	Direct Sellers		7120	Business Financing Companies, UNS
				7121	
		·		7122	•
		DIVISION K - FINANCE AND		7123	
		INSURANCE INDUSTRIES			
		INSURANCE INDUSTRIES		7124	
	*	'		7125	
	KKKK	Finance and Insurance Industries, UNS		7129	Other Business Financing Companies
	MAJ	OR GROUP 70 - DEPOSIT ACCEPTING		1	MAJOR GROUP 72 - INVESTMENT
		INTERMEDIARY INDUSTRIES			INTERMEDIARY INDUSTRIES
	7000	Deposit Accepting Intermediary Industries,		7200	Investment Intermediary Industries, UNS
		UNS			
			721	Portfo	olio Investment Intermediaries
701	Centra	ıl Bank	721	Portfo	olio Investment Intermediaries
701	Centra	il Bank	721		
701			721	7210	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS
701	Centra 7011	l Bank Central Bank	721	7210 7211	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds
	7011	Central Bank	721	7210 7211 7212	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds
	7011 Charte	Central Bank red Banks and Other Banking-Type	721	7210 7211 7212 7213	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds
	7011 Charte	Central Bank	721	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies
	7011 Charte Interm	Central Bank ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries	721	7210 7211 7212 7213	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies
	7011 Charte	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type	721	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies
	7011 Charte Interm	Central Bank ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies
	7011 Charte Interm	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies
	7011 Charte Interm 7020	Central Bank  ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies
	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021	Central Bank  ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies Mortgage Companies, UNS
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029	Central Bank  ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies		7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries	722	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust 6	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies	722	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust 6	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposi	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposi	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies, UNS	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposi	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies, UNS Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposi	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies, UNS Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives)	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposi	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies, UNS Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds
702	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust 6 7031 Deposi 7040 7041	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies, UNS Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives)	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292 7299	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds Other Investment Intermediaries NEC
702 703 704	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposite 7040 7041 7042	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries, UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies, UNS Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives)	722 729	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292 7299	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds
702 703 704	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposite 7040 7041 7042	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives) Co-operative Mortgage Companies	722 729 M.	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292 7299 AJOR	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies  Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds Other Investment Intermediaries NEC  GROUP 73 - INSURANCE INDUSTRIES
702 703 704	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposite 7040 7041 7042 Credit	Central Bank  ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives) Co-operative Mortgage Companies  Unions	722 729 M.	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292 7299	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds Other Investment Intermediaries NEC
702 703 704	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposition 7040 7041 7042 Credit 7050	Central Bank  red Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives) Co-operative Mortgage Companies  Unions  Credit Unions, UNS	722 729 M.	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292 7299 AJOR	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies  age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies  Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds Other Investment Intermediaries NEC  GROUP 73 - INSURANCE INDUSTRIES Insurance Industries, UNS
702 703 704	7011 Charte Interm 7020 7021 7029 Trust (7031 Deposite 7040 7041 7042 Credit	Central Bank  ared Banks and Other Banking-Type ediaries  Chartered Banks and Other Banking-Type Intermediaries , UNS Chartered Banks Other Banking-Type Intermediaries  Companies  Trust Companies  t Accepting Mortgage Companies  Deposit Accepting Mortgage Companies (Except Co-operatives) Co-operative Mortgage Companies  Unions	722 729 M.	7210 7211 7212 7213 7214 7215 Mortg 7220 7221 7222 7229 Other 7290 7291 7292 7299 AJOR	Portfolio Investment Intermediaries, UNS Investment (Mutual) Funds Retirement Savings Funds Segregated Funds Investment Companies Holding Companies age Companies  Mortgage Companies, UNS Mortgage Investment Companies Real Estate Investment Trusts Other Mortgage Companies  Investment Intermediaries  Other Investment Intermediaries, UNS Trusteed Pension Funds Estate, Trust and Agency Funds Other Investment Intermediaries NEC  GROUP 73 - INSURANCE INDUSTRIES

7311 Life Insurers

732	Depos	it Insurers		MAJOI	R GROUP 76 - INSURANCE AND REAL
	7321	Deposit Insurers			ESTATE AGENT INDUSTRIES
222		•	761	Insura	nce and Real Estate Agencies
133	Proper	rty and Casualty Insurers		7611	Insurance and Real Estate Agencies
	7330 7331	Property and Casualty Insurers, UNS Health Insurers			
	7339	Other Property and Casualty Insurers		I	DIVISION M - BUSINESS SERVICE INDUSTRIES
	MA	IOR GROUP 74 - OTHER FINANCIAL INTERMEDIARY INDUSTRIES		MMM	M Business Service Industries, UNS
	7400	Other Financial Intermediary Industries, UNS		MAJ	OR GROUP 77 - BUSINESS SERVICE
741	Securi	y Brokers and Dealers			INDUSTRIES
•		·		7700	Business Service Industries, UNS
	7410			<b>-</b>	. A
	7411 7412		//1	Emplo	syment Agencies and Personnel Suppliers
	7413			7710	Employment Agencies and Personnel Suppliers, UNS
742	Mortga	age Brokers		7711	
				7712	
	7421	Mortgage Brokers		_	
242	Camais	and Commodity Evolution	772	Comp	uter and Related Services
/43	Securit	y and Commodity Exchanges		7720	Computer and Related Services, UNS
	7430	Security and Commodity Exchanges, UNS		7721	
	7431	Stock Exchanges		7722	Computer Equipment Maintenance and
	7432	Commodity Exchanges		,,	Repair
749	Other	Financial Intermediaries NEC	773	Accoun	nting and Bookkeeping Services
	7499	Other Financial Intermediaries nec		7730 7731	Accounting and Bookkeeping Services, UNS Offices of Chartered and Certified Accountants
		ISION L - REAL ESTATE OPERATOR  INSURANCE AGENT INDUSTRIES		7739	Other Accounting and Bookkeeping Services
			774	Advert	ising Services
	LLLL	Real Estate Operator and Insurance Agent			_
		Industries, UNS		7740	Advertising Services, UNS
	(ATOD	Choin of the Legister onen aron		7741	
M		GROUP 75 - REAL ESTATE OPERATOR DUSTRIES (EXCEPT DEVELOPERS)		7742 7743	
	11/1	OUSTRIES (EXCEPT DEVELOPERS)		7749	Outdoor Display and Billboard Advertising Other Advertising Services
	7500	Real Estate Operator Industries (Except		1142	Other Advertising Services
		Developers), UNS	775		ectural, Engineering and Other Scientific and cal Services
751	Operat	ors of Buildings and Dwellings			
	2510	One was 4. P. Mall		7750	Architectural, Engineering and Other Scientific
	7510 7511	Operators of Buildings and Dwellings, UNS		7751	and Technical Services, UNS
	7511	Operators of Residential Buildings and Dwellings		7751	
	7512	Operators of Non-Residential Buildings		7752 7759	Offices of Engineers Other Scientific and Technical Services
	- <b></b>			1137	Other Scientific and Technical Scivices
759.	Other 1	Real Estate Operators	776	Offices	of Lawyers and Notaries
	7599	Other Real Estate Operators		7761	Offices of Lawyers and Notaries

77 <b>7</b>	Manag	gement Consulting Services		8152 8153 8154	Finance and Economic Administration Taxation Administration Intergovernmental Affairs Administration
	7771	Management Consulting Services		8159	Other General Administrative Services
779	Other	Business Services	816	Huma	n Resource Administration
	7790	Other Business Services, UNS		8160	Human Resource Administration, UNS
	7791			8161	Health Administration
	7792	•		8162	Social Service Administration
	7793			8163	Education Administration
	7794			8164	Recreation and Culture Administration
	7795				
		Duplicating Services	817	Econo	omic Services Administration
	7799				
				8170	Economic Services Administration, UNS
	DIS	/ISION N - GOVERNMENT SERVICE		8171	Transportation and Communication Administration
		INDUSTRIES		8172	Resource Conservation and Industrial
					Development Administration
	NNNN	Government Service Industries, UNS		8173	Environment Administration
				8174	Housing Administration
1	MAJOR	GROUP 81 - FEDERAL GOVERNMENT		8175	Regional Planning and Development
		SERVICE INDUSTRIES			Administration
				8176	Research Administration
	8100	Federal Government Service Industries, UNS			
811	Defen	ce Services			JOR GROUP 82 - PROVINCIAL AND
	8111	Defence Services		TER	RITORIAL GOVERNMENT SERVICE INDUSTRIES
812	Protec	tive Services		8200	Provincial and Territorial Government Service Industries, UNS
	8120	Protective Services, UNS			•
	8121	Courts of Law	822	Protec	etive Services
		Correctional Services			
	8123	Police Services		8220	Protective Services, UNS
	8125	Regulatory Services		8221	Courts of Law
	8129	Other Protective Services		8222	Correctional Services
				8223	Police Services
813	Labou	r, Employment and Immigration Services		8224	Firefighting Services
				8225	Regulatory Services
	8130	Labour, Employment and Immigration Services, UNS		8229	Other Protective Services
	8131	Labour and Employment Services	823	Labou	r and Employment Services
	8132	Immigration Services			
	8139	Other Labour, Employment and Immigration Services		8231	Labour and Employment Services
			825	Gener	al Administrative Services
814	Foreign	n Affairs and International Assistance			
				8250	General Administrative Services, UNS
	8140	Foreign Affairs and International Assistance,		8251	Executive and Legislative Administration
		UNS		8252	Finance and Economic Administration
	8141	Foreign Affairs		8253	Taxation Administration
	8142	International Assistance		8254	Intergovernmental Affairs Administration
	_			8259	Other General Administrative Services
815	Genera	al Administrative Services	826	Huma	n Resource Administration
	8150	General Administrative Services, UNS			
		Executive and Legislative Administration		8260	Human Resource Administration UNS

	8261 8262			MAJO	DR GROUP 84 - INTERNATIONAL AND
	8263 8264	Education Administration Recreation and Culture Administration			OTHER EXTRA-TERRITORIAL VERNMENT SERVICE INDUSTRIES
827	Econo	mic Services Administration	841	Intern	national and Other Extra-Territorial Agencies
	8270 8271	•		8411	International and Other Extra-Territorial Agencies
	8272	Resource Conservation and Industrial Development Administration Environment Administration		DIV	/ISION O - EDUCATIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES
	8274				INDOSTRIES
	8275			000	O Educational Service Industries, UNS
	8276	Research Administration	:	IOLAM	R GROUP 85 - EDUCATIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES
	OLAM	R GROUP 83 - LOCAL GOVERNMENT			
		SERVICE INDUSTRIES		8500	Educational Service Industries, UNS
	8300	Local Government Service Industries, UNS	851	Eleme	entary and Secondary Education
832	Protect	tive Services		8511	Elementary and Secondary Education
	8320	Protective Services, UNS	852	Post-S	secondary Non-University Education
	8321	Courts of Law			
		Correctional Services		8521	Post-Secondary Non-University Education
		Police Services			
		Firefighting Services	853	Unive	rsity Education
	8325 8329			8531	University Education
	002,			0051	Chiveliny Education
835	Genera	al Administrative Services	854	Librar	y Services
	8350 8351			8541	Library Services
	8352 8353		855	Muse	ums and Archives
		Intergovernmental Affairs Administration Other General Administrative Services		8551	Museums and Archives
		Resource Administration	859	Other	Educational Services
030 .				8599	Other Educational Services
	8360 8361	Human Resource Administration, UNS Health Administration	•	D	NUCION D. LIEALTH AND COCIAL
	8362	Social Service Administration		וע	IVISION P - HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES
		Education Administration			SERVICE INDOSTRIES
		Recreation and Culture Administration		PPPP	Health and Social Service Industries, UNS
837	Econon	nic Services Administration		MAJO	OR GROUP 86 - HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES
		Economic Services Administration, UNS Transportation Administration		8600	Health and Social Service Industries, UNS
		Resource Conservation and Industrial		5550	Treatm and occidi service industries, UNS
	J <u>.</u>	Development Administration	861	Hospit	tais
	8373	Environment Administration	~·	pi	<del></del>
	_	Housing Administration		8610	Hospitals, UNS
		Regional Planning and Development		8611	General Hospitals
		Administration		8612	Rehabilitation Hospitals

		Extended Care Hospitals	966	Offices	of Other Health Practitioners
		Mental (Psychiatric) Hospitals	800	Offices	of Other Realth Fractitioners
		Addiction Hospitals		0.660	COAL Trouble Descriptions IINC
	8616	Nursing Stations and Outpost Hospitals		8660	Offices of Other Health Practitioners, UNS
	8617	Children's (Paediatric) Hospitals		8661	Offices of Chiropractors and Osteopaths
	8619	Other Specialty Hospitals		8662	Offices of Nurses, Registered
				8663	Offices of Nurses, Practical
362	Other !	Institutional Health and Social Services		8664	Offices of Nutritionists/Dietitians
				8665	Offices of Physiotherapists/Occupational
	8620	Other Institutional Health and Social Services,			Therapists
		UNS		8666	Offices of Optometrists
	8621	Homes for Personal and Nursing Care		8667	Offices of Podiatrists and Chiropodists
	8622	Homes for Physically Handicapped and/or		8668	Offices of Denturists
		Disabled		8669	Offices of Other Health Practitioners
	8623	Homes for Mentally Retarded			•
	8624	Homes for Mentally Handicapped and/or Disabled	867	Offices	of Social Services Practitioners
	8625	Homes for Emotionally Disturbed Children		8670	Offices of Social Services Practitioners, UNS
		Homes for Alcohol/Drug Addicts		8671	Offices of Psychologists
	8627	Homes for Children in Need of Protection		8672	Offices of Social Workers
		Homes for Single Mothers		8679	Offices of Other Social Service Practitioners
	8629	Other Institutional Health and Social Services			
	G025	NEC	868	Medica	al and Other Health Laboratories
0.60	M T-			8680	Medical and Other Health Laboratories, UNS
803	NOU-II	stitutional Health Services		8681	Medical Laboratories
	0600	Non Tostitutional Health Commisse LINC		8682	Radiological Laboratories
	8630 8631	Non-Institutional Health Services, UNS		8683	Combined Medical and Radiological
		Ambulance Services		0003	Laboratories
	8632	Drug Addiction and Alcoholism Treatment		8684	Public Health Laboratories
	0600	Clinics		8685	Blood Bank Laboratories
		Health Rehabilitation Clinics		8689	
	8634	Home Care Services (Including Home Nursing)		0009	Other Health Laboratories
	8635	Public Health Clinics/Community Health	0.0	TT14h	and Carial Camina Associations and Associat
		Centres	809	neann	and Social Service Associations and Agencies
	8639	Other Non-Institutional Health Services		0.00	TT - 1/4 - and Cardal Conden Associations and
				8690	Health and Social Service Associations and
864	Non-Ir	nstitutional Social Services			Agencies, UNS
				8691	Health Care and Public Safety Promotion
	8640	Non-Institutional Social Services, UNS			Associations and Agencies
	8641	Child Day-Care and Nursery School Services		8692	Health Care Standards Agencies
	8642	Child Welfare Services		8693	Health Care Research Agencies
	8643	Family Planning Services		8694	Social Service Planning and Advocacy Agencie
	8644	Sheltered Workshops			
	8645	Home-Maker Services		8699	Other Health and Social Service Associations
	8646	Meal Services (Non-Commercial)			and Agencies
	8647	Social Rehabilitation Services			•
	8648	Crisis Intervention			
	8649	Other Non-Institutional Social Services			SION Q - ACCOMMODATION, FOOD BEVERAGE SERVICE INDUSTRIES
865	Office	s of Physicians, Surgeons and Dentists, Private			
	Practio	•		QQQQ	Q Accommodation, Food and Beverage Service Industries, UNS
	8650	Offices of Physicians, Surgeons and Dentists,			,
		Private Practice, UNS		MAJ	OR GROUP 91 - ACCOMMODATION
	8651	Offices of Physicians, General Practice			SERVICE INDUSTRIES
	8652	Offices of Physicians and Surgeons, Specialists			
	8653	Offices of Dentists, General Practice		9100	Accommodation Service Industries, UNS
	8654	Offices of Dentists, Specialists			
		,	911	Hotels	, Motels and Tourist Courts

					and and and Allegard Allegar
	9110	Hotels, Motels and Tourist Courts, UNS		9619	Other Motion Picture, Audio and Video
	9111	Hotels and Motor Hotels			Services
		Motels			
		Tourist Courts and Cabins	962	Motion	Picture Exhibition
	9114	, <u> </u>			
	7114	Ouest Houses and Tourne Homes		9620	Motion Picture Exibition, UNS
010	T adais	a Houses and Decidential Clubs		9621	Regular Motion Picture Theatres
912	Loagin	g Houses and Residential Clubs		9622	Outdoor Motion Picture Theatres
		T. A. L. Transport Desidential Clubs		9629	Other Motion Picture Exhibition
	9121	Lodging Houses and Residential Clubs		, , ,	
012	Compi	ng Grounds and Travel Trailer Parks	963	Theatri	ical and Other Staged Entertainment Services
913	Campi	ing Official and Traver Trans. Tari-			- -
	9131	Camping Grounds and Travel Trailer Parks		9630	Theatrical and Other Staged Entertainment
	7131				Services, UNS
014	Decres	ation and Vacation Camps		9631	Entertainment Production Companies and
714	Recite	ation and vacation camps			Artists
	9140	Recreation and Vacation Camps, UNS		9639	Other Theatrical and Staged Entertainment
	9141				Services
	9149				
	9149	Other Recreation and Vacation camps	964	Comm	ercial Spectator Sports
		R GROUP 92 - FOOD AND BEVERAGE	,,,,		
	MAJU	K GKOOL AS - LOOD WAD DEALESTOR		9640	Commercial Spectator Sports, UNS
		SERVICE INDUSTRIES		9641	Professional Sports Clubs
		T I THE TOTAL TIME		9642	Professional Athletes and Promoters on Own
	9200	Food and Beverage Service Industries, UNS		<del>304</del> 2	Account
				0643	
921	Food	Services			Horse Race Tracks
				9644	Other Race Tracks
	9210	Food Services, UNS		_	
	9211	Restaurants, Licensed	965	Sports	and Recreation Clubs and Services
	9212	Restaurants, Unlicensed (Including Drive-Ins)			
	9213	Take-Out Food Services		9650	Sports and Recreation Clubs and Services,
	9214	Caterers			UNS
				9651	Golf Courses
922	Taver	ns, Bars and Night Clubs		9652	Curling Clubs
		,		9653	Skiing Facilities
	9221	Taverns, Bars and Night Clubs		9654	Boat Rentals and Marinas
	7221	Idvolin, Date and Mgar Green		9659	Other Sports and Recreation Clubs
		·			
		DIVISION R - OTHER SERVICE	966	Gamb	oling Operations
		INDUSTRIES			
				9661	Gambling Operations
	RRR	R Other Service Industries, UNS			
			969	Other	Amusement and Recreational Services
	M	AJOR GROUP 96 - AMUSEMENT AND			
		CREATIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES		9690	Other Amusement and Recreational Services,
	142	CICATION DE CENTROS EN			UNS
	9600	Amusement and Recreational Service		9691	Bowling Alleys and Billiard Parlours
	2000	Industries, UNS		9692	Amusement Park, Carnival and Circus
		industries, ONS			Operations
^_	1 38-4	on Picture, Audio and Video Production and		9693	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
96				9694	
	Distr	ibution		9695	
		and the second of the second of			<del></del>
	9610			9696	
		and Distribution, UNS		9699	
	9611				NEC
	9612	Motion Picture and Video Distribution			
	9613	Motion Picture Laboratories and Video			•

Production Facilities
9614 Sound Recording Services

#### LIST OF DIVISIONS, MAJOR GROUPS, INDUSTRY GROUPS AND INDUSTRY CLASSES - continued Other Professional Membership Associations MAJOR GROUP 97 - PERSONAL AND 984 Labour Organizations HOUSEHOLD SERVICE INDUSTRIES Labour Organizations Personal and Household Service Industries, **UNS** 985 Political Organizations 971 Barber and Beauty Shops 9851 Political Organizations Barber and Beauty Shops, UNS 9710 986 Civic and Fraternal Organizations Barber Shops 9711 Beauty Shops 9712 9861 Civic and Fraternal Organizations 9713 Combination Barber and Beauty Shops MAJOR GROUP 99 - OTHER SERVICE 972 Laundries and Cleaners INDUSTRIES Laundries and Cleaners, UNS 9720 Other Service Industries, UNS 9721 Power Laundries and/or Dry Cleaners 9722 Distributors and/or Agents for Dry Cleaners 991 Machinery and Equipment Rental and Leasing Self-Serve Laundries and/or Dry Cleaners 9723 Valet Services, Pressing and/or Repair Services 9724 9725 Linen Supply Machinery and Equipment Rental and Leasing 9910 9726 Carpet Cleaning Services, UNS Other Laundry and Dry Cleaning Services 9729 Industrial Machinery and Equipment Rental 9911 and Leasing 973 Funeral Services Audio-Visual Equipment Rental and Leasing 9912 Office Furniture and Machinery Rental and 9913 Funeral Services, UNS 9730 Funeral Homes 9731 Other Machinery and Equipment Rental and 9919 Cemeteries and Crematoria 9732 Leasing 974 Private Households 992 Automobile and Truck Rental and Leasing Services 9741 Private Households Automobile and Truck Rental and Leasing 9921 979 Other Personal and Household Services Services 993 Photographers Other Personal and Household Services, UNS 9790 9791 Shoe Repair Photographers 9931 9792 Fur Cleaning, Repair and Storage Other Personal and Household Services NEC 9799 994 Other Repair Services **MAJOR GROUP 98 - MEMBERSHIP** Other Repair Services, UNS 9940 ORGANIZATION INDUSTRIES Electric Motor Repair 9941 9942 Welding Membership Organization Industries, UNS Other Repair Services NEC 9949

981 Religious Organizations

Religious Organizations

982 Business Associations

**Business Associations** 9821

983 Professional Membership Associations

9830 Professional Membership Associations, UNS Professional Health and Social Service 9831 Membership Associations

996 Travel Services

9950 9951

9952

9953

9959

9960 Travel Services, UNS 9961 Ticket and Travel Agencies

Janitorial Services

995 Services to Buildings and Dwellings

Services to Buildings and Dwellings, UNS

Other Services to Buildings and Dwellings

Disinfecting and Exterminating Services

Window Cleaning Services

9962 Tour Wholesalers and Operators

999 Other Services NEC

9990 Other Services, UNS 9991 Parking Lots and Parking Garages

9999 Other Services NEC

#### OCCUPATIONAL CLASSIFICATION

(Occupational Classification Manual, 1971) (O.C.M.)

#### LIST OF MAJOR, MINOR AND UNIT GROUPS

#### MAJOR GROUP 11 - MANAGERIAL, ADMINISTRATIVE AND RELATED OCCUPATIONS

### 111 Officials and Administrators Unique to Government

1111 Members of Legislative Bod	lies
---------------------------------	------

- 1113 Government Administrators
- 1115 Postmasters
- 1116 Inspectors and Regulatory Officers, Government
- 1119 Officials and Administrators Unique to Government, NEC

#### 113/114 Other Managers and Administrators

- 1130 General Managers and Other Senior Officials
- 1131 Management Occupations, Natural Sciences and Engineering
- 1132 Management Occupations, Social Sciences and Related Fields
- 1133 Administrators in Teaching and Related Fields
- 1134 Administrators in Medicine and Health
- 1135 Financial Management Occupations
- 1136 Personnel and Industrial Relations Management Occupations
- 1137 Sales and Advertising Management Occupations
- 1141 Purchasing Management Occupations
- 1142 Services Management Occupations
- 1143 Production Management Occupations
- 1145 Management Occupations, Construction Operations
- 1147 Management Occupations, Transport and Communications Operations
- 1149 Other Managers and Administrators, NEC

### 117 Occupations Related to Management and Administration

- 1171 Accountants, Auditors and Other Financial Officers
- 1174 Personnel and Related Officers
- 1175 Purchasing Officers and Buyers, Except Wholesale and Retail Trade
- 1176 Inspectors and Regulatory Officers, Non-Government
- 1179 Occupations Related to Management and Administration, NEC

## MAJOR GROUP 21 - OCCUPATIONS IN NATURAL SCIENCES, ENGINEERING AND MATHEMATICS

#### 211 Occupations in Physical Sciences

- 2111 Chemists
- 2112 Geologists
- 2113 Physicists
- 2114 Meteorologists
- 2117 Physical Sciences Technologists and Technicians
- 2119 Occupations in Physical Sciences, NEC

#### 213 Occupations in Life Sciences

- 2131 Agriculturists and Related Scientists
- 2133 Biologists and Related Scientists
- 2135 Life Sciences Technologists and Technicians
- 2139 Occupations in Life Sciences, NEC

#### 214/215 Architects and Engineers

- 2141 Architects
- 2142 Chemical Engineers
- 2143 Civil Engineers
- 2144 Electrical Engineers
- 2145 Industrial Engineers
- 2147 Mechanical Engineers
- 2151 Metallurgical Engineers
- 2153 Mining Engineers
- 2154 Petroleum Engineers
- 2155 Aeronautical Engineers
- 2157 Nuclear Engineers
- 2159 Architects and Engineers, NEC

### 216 Other Occupations in Architecture and Engineering

- 2160 Supervisors: Other Occupations in Architecture and Engineering
- 2161 Surveyors
- 2163 Draughtsmen
- 2165 Architectural and Engineering Technologists and Technicians
- 2169 Other Occupations in Architecture and Engineering, NEC

### 218 Occupations in Mathematics, Statistics, Systems Analysis and Related Fields

- 2181 Mathematicians, Statisticians and Actuaries
- 2183 Systems Analysts, Computer Programmers and Related Occupations
- 2189 Occupations in Mathematics, Statistics, Systems
  Analysis and Related Fields, NEC

## MAJOR GROUP 23 - OCCUPATIONS IN SOCIAL SCIENCES AND RELATED FIELDS

#### 231 Occupations in Social Sciences

- 2311 Economists
- 2313 Sociologists, Anthropologists and Related Social Scientists
- 2315 Psychologists
- 2319 Occupations in Social Sciences, NEC

### 233 Occupations in Social Work and Related Fields

- 2331 Social Workers
- 2333 Occupations in Welfare and Community Services

#### LIST OF MAJOR, MINOR AND UNIT GROUPS

2339	Occupations	in	Social	Work	and	Related	Fields,
	NEC						

#### 234 Occupations in Law and Jurisprudence

- 2341 Judges and Magistrates
- 2343 Lawyers and Notaries
- 2349 Occupations in Law and Jurisprudence, NEC

### 235 Occupations in Library, Museum and Archival Sciences

- 2350 Supervisors: Occupations in Library, Museum and Archival Sciences
- 2351 Librarians and Archivists
- 2353 Technicians in Library, Museum and Archival Sciences
- 2359 Occupations in Library, Museum and Archival Sciences, NEC

### 239 Other Occupations in Social Sciences and Related Fields

- 2391 Educational and Vocational Counsellors
- 2399 Other Occupations in Social Sciences and Related Fields, NEC

#### MAJOR GROUP 25 - OCCUPATIONS IN RELIGION

#### 251 Occupation in Religion

- 2511 Ministers of Religion
- 2513 Nuns and Brothers (W), NOR
- 2519 Occupations in Religion, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 27 - TEACHING AND RELATED OCCUPATIONS

#### 271 University Teaching and Related Occupations

- 2711 University Teachers
- 2719 University Teaching and Related Occupations, NEC

### 273 Elementary and Secondary School Teaching and Related Occupations

- 2731 Elementary and Kindergarten Teachers
- 2733 Secondary School Teachers
- 2739 Elementary and Secondary School Teaching and Related Occupations, NEC

#### 279 Other Teaching and Related Occupations

- 2791 Community College and Vocational School Teachers
- 2792 Fine Arts School Teachers
- 2793 Post-secondary School Teachers, NEC
- 2795 Teachers of Exceptional Students, NEC
- 2797 Instructors and Training Officers, NEC
- 2799 Other Teaching and Related Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 31 - OCCUPATIONS IN MEDICINE AND HEALTH

#### 311 Health Diagnosing and Treating Occupations

- 3111 Physicians and Surgeons
- 3113 Dentists
- 3115 Veterinarians
- 3117 Osteopaths and Chiropractors
- 3119 Health Diagnosing and Treating Occupations, NEC

### 313 Nursing, Therapy and Related Assisting Occupations

- 3130 Supervisors: Nursing Occupations
- 3131 Nurses, Graduate, Except Supervisors
- 3133 Nurses-in-training
- 3134 Nursing Assistants
- 3135 Nursing Aides and Orderlies
- 3137 Physiotherapists, Occupational and Other Therapists
- 3139 Nursing, Therapy and Related Assisting Occupations, NEC

#### 315 Other Occupations in Medicine and Health

- 3151 Pharmacists
- 3152 Dietitians and Nutritionists
- 3153 Optometrists
- 3154 Dispensing Opticians
- 3155 Radiological Technologists and Technicians
- 3156 Medical Laboratory Technologists and Technicians
- 3157 Dental Hygienists, Assistants and Technicians
- 3159 Other Occupations in Medicine and Health, NEC

## MAJOR GROUP 33 - ARTISTIC, LITERARY, RECREATIONAL AND RELATED OCCUPATIONS

#### 331 Occupations in Fine and Commercial Art, Photography and Related Fields

- 3311 Painters, Sculptors and Related Artists
- 3313 Product and Interior Designers
- 3314 Advertising and Illustrating Artists
- 3315 Photographers and Cameramen
- 3319 Occupations in Fine and Commercial Art, Photography and Related Fields, NEC

### 333 Occupations in Performing and Audio-visual arts

- 3330 Producers and Directors, Performing and Audiovisual Arts
- 3332 Musicians
- 3333 Dancers and Choreographers
- 3335 Actors
- 3337 Radio and Television Announcers
- 3339 Occupations in Performing and Audio-visual Arts, NEC

#### LIST OF MAJOR, MINOR AND UNIT GROUPS - Continued 335 Occupations in Writing Clerks and Related Occupations 4161 Library and File Clerks 3352 Writers and Editors 4169 Library, File and Correspondence Clerks and Related Occupations, NEC 3355 Translators and Interpreters 3359 Occupations in, Writing, NEC 417 Reception, Information, Mail and Message Distribution Occupations 337 Occupations in Sport and Recreation 4170 Supervisors: Reception, Information, Mail and 3370 Coaches, Trainers, Instructors and Managers, Sport and Recreation Message Distribution Occupations 3371 Referees and Related Officials 4171 Receptionists and Information Clerks 3373 Athletes 4172 Mail Carriers 3375 Attendants, Sport and Recreation 4173 Mail and Postal Clerks 3379 Occupations in Sport and Recreation, NEC 4175 Telephone Operators 4177 Messengers MAJOR GROUP 41 - CLERICAL AND RELATED 4179 Reception, Information, Mail and Message **OCCUPATIONS** Distribution Occupations, NEC 411 Stenographic and Typing Occupations 419 Other Clerical and Related Occupations 4110 Supervisors: Stenographic and Typing Occupations 4190 Supervisors: Other Clerical and Related 4111 Secretaries and Stenographers Occupations, NEC 4113 Typists and Clerk-typists 4191 Collectors 4192 Adjusters, Claim 413 Bookkeeping, Account-recording and Related 4193 Travel Clerks, Ticket, Station and Freight Agents Occupations 4194 Hotel Clerks 4195 Personnel Clerks 4130 Supervisors: Bookkeeping, Account-recording and 4197 General Office Clerks Related Occupations 4199 Other Clerical and Related Occupations, NEC 4131 Bookkeepers and Accounting Clerks 4133 Tellers and Cashiers MAJOR GROUP 51 - SALES OCCUPATIONS 4135 Insurance, Bank and Other Finance Clerks 4137 Statistical Clerks 513/514 Sales Occupations, Commodities 4139 Bookkeeping, Account-recording and Related Occupations, NEC 5130 Supervisors: Sales Occupations, Commodities 5131 Technical Salesmen and Related Advisers 414 Office Machine and Electronic Data- processing 5133 Commercial Travellers Equipment Operators 5135 Salesmen and Salespersons, Commodities, NEC 5137 Sales Clerks, Commodities 4140 Supervisors: Office Machine and Electronic 5141 Street Vendors and Door-to-door Salesmen Data-processing Equipment Operators 5143 Newsboys 4141 Office Machine Operators 5145 Service Station Attendants 4143 Electronic Data-processing Equipment Operators 5149 Sales Occupations: Commodities, NEC 415 Material Recording, Scheduling and 517 Sales Occupations, Services Distributing Occupations 5170 Supervisors: Sales Occupations, Services 5171 Insurance Salesmen and Agents 4150 Supervisors: Material Recording, Scheduling and Distributing Occupations 5172 Real Estate Salesmen 4151 Production Clerks 5173 Salesmen and Traders, Securities 4153 Shipping and Receiving Clerks 5174 Advertising Salesmen 4155 Stock Clerks and Related Occupations 5177 Business Services Salesmen 4157 Weighers 5179 Sales Occupations: Services, NEC 4159 Material Recording, Scheduling and Distributing

#### 519 Other Sales Occupations

- 5190 Supervisors: Other Sales Occupations 5191 Buyers, Wholesale and Retail Trade
- 5193 Driver-Salesmen
- 5199 Other Sales Occupations, NEC

Occupations, NEC

Related Occupations

4160 Supervisors: Library, File and Correspondence

416 Library, File and Correspondence Clerks and

#### MAJOR GROUP 61 - SERVICE OCCUPATIONS

#### 611 Protective Service Occupations

- 6111 Fire-fighting Occupations
- 6112 Policemen and Detectives, Government
- 6113 Policemen and Investigators, Private
- 6115 Guards and Watchmen
- 6116 Commissioned Officers, Armed Forces
- 6117 Other Ranks, Armed Forces
- 6119 Protective Service Occupations, NEC

## 612 Food and Beverage Preparation and Related Service Occupations

- 6120 Supervisors: Food and Beverage Preparation and Related Service Occupations
- 6121 Chefs and Cooks
- 6123 Bartenders
- 6125 Waiters, Hostesses and Stewards, Food and Beverage
- 6129 Food and Beverage Preparation and Related Service Occupations, NEC

### 613 Occupations in Lodging and Other Accommodation

- 6130 Supervisors: Occupations in Lodging and Other Accommodation
- 6131 Managers: Hotel, Motel and Other Accommodation
- 6133 Chambermaids and Housemen
- 6135 Sleeping-Car and Baggage Porters, and Bellmen
- 6139 Occupations in Lodging and Other Accommodation, NEC

#### 614 Personal Service Occupations

- 6141 Funeral Directors, Embalmers and Related
  Occupations
- 6143 Barbers, Hairdressers and Related Occupations
- 6144 Guides
- 6145 Hostesses and Stewards, Except Food and Beverage
- 6147 Babysitters
- 6149 Personal Service Occupations, NEC

#### 616 Apparel and Furnishings Service Occupations

- 6160 Supervisors: Apparel and Furnishings Service Occupations
- 6162 Laundering and Dry Cleaning Occupations
- 6165 Pressing Occupations
- 6169 Apparel and Furnishings Service Occupations, NEC

#### 619 Other Service Occupations

- 6190 Supervisors: Other Service Occupations
- 6191 Janitors, Charworkers and Cleaners
- 6193 Elevator Operating Occupations
- 6198 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental

### Work, Services 6199 Other Service Occupations, NEC

#### MAJOR GROUP 71 - FARMING, HORTICULTURAL AND ANIMAL HUSBANDRY OCCUPATIONS

#### 711 Farmers

#### 7112 Farmers

#### 713 Farm Management Occupations

#### 7131 Farm Management Occupations

### 718/719 Other Farming, Horticultural and Animal Husbandry Occupations

- 7180 Foremen: Other Farming, Horticultural and Animal Husbandry Occupations
- 7182 Farm Workers
- 7195 Nursery and Related Workers
- 7197 Farm Machinery Operators and Custom Operators
- 7199 Other Farming, Horticultural and Animal Husbandry Occupations, NEC

#### MAJOR GROUP 73 - FISHING, HUNTING, TRAPPING AND RELATED OCCUPATIONS

### 731 Fishing, Hunting, Trapping and Related Occupations

- 7311 Captains and Other Officers, Fishing Vessels
- 7313 Fishermen: Net, Trap and Line
- 7315 Hunting, Trapping and Related Occupations
- 7319 Fishing, Hunting, Trapping and Related Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 75 - FORESTRY AND LOGGING OCCUPATIONS

#### 751 Forestry and Logging Occupations

- 7510 Foremen: Forestry and Logging Occupations
- 7511 Forestry Conservation Occupations
- 7513 Timber Cutting and Related Occupations
- 7516 Log Inspecting, Grading, Scaling and Related Occupations
- 7517 Log Hoisting, Sorting, Moving and Related Occupations
  - 7518 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Forestry and Logging
  - 7519 Forestry and Logging Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 77 - MINING AND QUARRYING INCLUDING OIL AND GAS FIELD OCCUPATIONS

### 771 Mining and Quarrying Including Oil and Gas Field Occupations

- 7710 Foremen: Mining and Quarrying Including Oil and Gas Field Occupations
- 7711 Rotary Well-drilling and Related Occupations
- 7713 Other Rock and Soil Drilling Occupations
- 7715 Blasting Occupations
- 7717 Mining and Quarrying: Cutting, Handling and Loading Occupations
- 7718 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Mining and Quarrying Including Oil an Gas Fields
- 7719 Mining and Quarrying Including Oil and Gas Field Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 81/82 - PROCESSING OCCUPATIONS

#### 811 Mineral Ore Treating Occupations

- 8110 Foremen: Mineral Ore Treating Occupations
- 8111 Crushing and Grinding Occupations, Mineral Ores
- 8113 Mixing, Separating, Filtering and Related Occupations, Mineral Ores
- 8115 Melting and Roasting Occupations, Mineral Ores
- 8116 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Mineral Ore Treating
- 8118 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Mineral Ore Treating
- 8119 Mineral Ore Treating Occupations, NEC

#### 813/814 Metal Processing and Related Occupations

- 8130 Foremen: Metal Processing and Related Occupations
- 8131 Metal Smelting, Converting and Refining Furnacemen
- 8133 Metal Heat Treating Occupations
- 8135 Metal Rolling Occupations
- 8137 Moulding, Coremaking and Metal Casting Occupations
- 8141 Metal Extruding and Drawing Occupations
- 8143 Plating, Metal Spraying and Related Occupations
- 8146 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Metal Processing
- 8148 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Metal Processing
- 8149 Metal Processing and Related Occupations, NEC

#### 815 Clay, Glass and Stone Processing, Forming and Related Occupations

- 8150 Foremen: Clay, Glass and Stone Processing, Forming and Related Occupations
- 8151 Furnacemen and Kilnmen: Clay, Glass and Stone
- 8153 Separating, Grinding, Crushing and Mixing

- Occupations: Clay, Glass and Stone
- 8155 Forming Occupations: Clay, Glass and Stone
- 8156 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Clay, Glass and Stone Processing
  and Forming
- 8158 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work: Clay, Glass and Stone Processing and Forming
- 8159 Clay, Glass and Stone Processing, Forming and Related Occupations, NEC

#### 816/817 Chemicals, Petroleum, Rubber, Plastic and Related Materials Processing Occupations

- 8160 Foremen: Chemicals, Petroleum, Rubber, Plastic and Related Materials Processing Occupations
- 8161 Mixing and Blending Occupations, Chemicals and Related Materials
- 8163 Filtering, Straining and Separating Occupations, Chemicals and Related Materials
- 8165 Distilling, Subliming and Carbonizing Occupations, Chemicals and Related Materials
- 8167 Roasting, Cooking and Drying Occupations, Chemicals and Related Materials
- 8171 Crushing and Grinding Occupations, Chemicals and Related Materials
- 8173 Coating and Calendering Occupations, Chemical and Related Materials
- 8176 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Chemicals, Petroleum, Rubber,
  Plastic and Related Materials Processing
- 8178 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
  Work: Chemicals, Petroleum, Rubber, Plastic
  and Related Materials Processing
- 8179 Chemicals, Petroleum, Rubber, Plastic and Related Materials Processing Occupations, NEC

## 821/822 Food, Beverage and Related Processing Occupations

- 8210 Foremen: Food, Beverage and Related Processing Occupations
- 8211 Flour and Grain Milling Occupations
- 8213 Baking, Confectionery Making and Related Occupations
- 8215 Slaughtering and Meat Cutting, Canning, Curing and Packing Occupations
- 8217 Fish Canning, Curing and Packing Occupations
- 8221 Fruit and Vegetable Canning, Preserving and Packing Occupations
- 8223 Milk Processing Occupations
- 8225 Sugar Processing and Related Occupations
- 8226 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Food Beverage and Related
  Processing
- 8227 Beverage Processing Occupations
- 8228 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
  Work: Food, Beverage and Related Processing
- 8229 Food, Beverage and Related Processing Occupations, NEC

### 823 Wood Processing Occupations, Except Pulp and Papermaking

- 8230 Foremen: Wood Processing Occupations, Except Pulp and Papermaking
- 8231 Sawmill Sawyers and Related Occupations
- 8233 Plywood Making and Related Occupations
- 8235 Wood Treating Occupations
- 8236 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Wood Processing, Except Pulp and
  Papermaking
- 8238 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
  Work: Wood Processing Except Pulp and
  Papermaking
- 8239 Wood Processing Occupations, Except Pulp and Papermaking, NEC

#### 825 Pulp and Papermaking and Related Occupations

- 8250 Foremen: Pulp and Papermaking and Related Occupations
- 8251 Cellulose Pulp Preparing Occupations
- 8253 Papermaking and Finishing Occupations
- 8256 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Pulp and Papermaking
- 8258 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Pulp and Papermaking
- 8259 Pulp and Papermaking and Related Occupations, NEC

#### 826/827 Textile Processing Occupations

- 8260 Foremen: Textile Processing Occupations
- 8261 Textile Fibre Preparing Occupations
- 8263 Textile Spinning and Twisting Occupations
- 8265 Textile Winding and Reeling Occupations
- 8267 Textile Weaving Occupations
- 8271 Knitting Occupations
- 8273 Textile Bleaching and Dyeing Occupations
- 8275 Textile Finishing and Calendering Occupations
- 8276 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Textile Processing
- 8278 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Textile Processing
- 8279 Textile Processing Occupations, NEC

#### 829 Other Processing Occupations

- 8290 Foremen: Other Processing Occupations
- 8293 Tobacco Processing Occupations
- 8295 Hide and Pelt Processing Occupations
- 8296 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Processing, NEC
- 8298 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Other Processing
- 8299 Other Processing Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 83 - MACHINING AND RELATED OCCUPATIONS

#### 831 Metal Machining Occupations

- 8310 Foremen: Metal Machining Occupations
- 8311 Tool and Die Making Occupations
- 8313 Machinist and Machine Tool Setting-Up
  Occupations
- 8315 Machine Tool Operating Occupations
- 8316 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Metal Machining
- 8319 Metal Machining Occupations, NEC

#### 833 Metal Shaping and Forming Occupations, Except Machining

- 8330 Foremen: Metal Shaping and Forming Occupations, Except Machining
- 8331 Forging Occupations
- 8333 Sheet Metal Workers
- 8334 Metal/working-Machine Operators, NEC
- 8335 Welding and Flame Cutting Occupations
- 8336 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Metal Shaping and Forming,
  Except Machining
- 8337 Boilermakers, Platers and Structural Metal Workers
- 8339 Metal Shaping and Forming Occupations, Except Machining, NEC

#### 835 Wood Machining Occupations

- 8350 Foremen: Wood Machining Occupations
- 8351 Wood Patternmaking Occupations
- 8353 Wood Sawing and Related Occupations, Except Sawmill
- 8355 Planing, Turning, Shaping and Related Wood Machining Occupations
- 8356 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Wood Machining
- 8357 Wood Sanding Occupations
- 8359 Wood Machining Occupations, NEC

#### 837 Clay, Glass and Stone and Related Materials Machining Occupations

- 8370 Foremen: Clay, Glass and Stone and Related Materials Machining Occupations
- 8371 Cutting and Shaping Occupations: Clay, Glass and Stone
- 8373 Abrading and Polishing Occupations: Clay, Glass and Stone, NEC
- 8376 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Clay, Glass and Stone Machining
- 8379 Clay, Glass and Stone and Related Materials
  Machining Occupations, NEC

#### 839 Other Machining and Related Occupations

- 8390 Foremen: Other Machining and Related Occupations, NEC
- 8391 Engravers, Etchers and Related Occupations
- 8393 Filing, Grinding, Buffing, Cleaning and Polishing Occupations, NEC
- 8395 Patternmakers and Mouldmakers, NEC
- 8396 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling Occupations, Machining, NEC
- 8399 Other Machining and Related Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 85 - PRODUCT FABRICATING, ASSEMBLING AND REPAIRING OCCUPATIONS

#### 851/852 Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, Metal Products, NEC

- 8510 Foremen: Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, Metal Products, NEC
- 8511 Engine and Related Equipment Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, NEC
- 8513 Motor Vehicle Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, NEC
- 8515 Aircraft Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, NEC
- 8523 Industrial, Farm, Construction and Other Mechanized Equipment and Machinery Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, NEC
- 8525 Business and commercial Machines Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, NEC
- 8526 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations, Fabricating and Assembling Metal
  Products, NEC
- 8527 Precision Instruments and Related Equipment Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, NEC
- 8528 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Fabricating and Assembling Metal Products, NEC
- 8529 Other Fabricating and Assembling Occupations, Metal Products, NEC

#### 853 Fabricating, Assembling, Installing and Repairing Occupations: Electrical, Electronic and Related Equipment

- 8530 Foremen: Fabricating, Assembling, Installing and Repairing Occupations, Electrical, Electronic and Related Equipment
- 8531 Electrical Equipment Fabricating and Assembling Occupations
- 8533 Electrical and Related Equipment Installing and Repairing Occupations, NEC
- 8534 Electronic Equipment Fabricating and Assembling Occupations
- 8535 Electronic and Related Equipment Installing and Repairing Occupations, NEC
- 8536 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Fabricating, Assembling, Installing
  and Repairing Electrical, Electronic and Related

#### Equipment

- 8537 Radio and Television Service Repairmen
- 8538 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work: Fabricating, Assembling, Installing and Repairing Electrical, Electronic and Related Equipment
- 8539 Fabricating, Assembling, Installing and Repairing
  Occupations: Electrical, Electronic and Related
  Equipment, NEC

### 854 Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, Wood Products

- 8540 Foremen: Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, Wood Products
- 8541 Cabinet and Wood Furniture Makers
- 8546 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Fabricating, Assembling and
  Repairing, Wood Products
- 8548 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work: Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing, Wood Products
- 8549 Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, Wood Products, NEC

# 855/856 Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations: Textiles, Fur and Leather Products

- 8550 Foremen: Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, Textile, Fur and Leather Products
- 8551 Pattern Makering, Markering and Cuttering
  Occupations: Textile, Fur and Leather Products
- 8553 Tailors and Dressmakers
- 8555 Furriers
- 8557 Milliners, Hat and Cap Makers
- 8561 Shoemaking and Repairing Occupations
- 8562 Upholsterers
- 8563 Sewing Machine Operators, Textile and Similar Materials
- 8566 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Fabricating, Assembling and
  Repairing, Textile, Fur and Leather Products
- 8568 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
  Work: Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing,
  Textile, Fur and Leather Products
- 8569 Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations: Textile, Fur and Leather Products, NEC

# 857 Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations: Rubber, Plastic and Related Products

- 8570 Foremen: Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, Rubber, Plastic and Related Products
- 8571 Bonding and Cementing Occupations, Rubber, Plastic and Related Products
- 8573 Moulding Occupations, Rubber, Plastic and Related Products

- 8575 Cutting and Finishing Occupations, Rubber, Plastic and Related Products
- 8576 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Fabricating, Assembling and
  Repairing, Rubber, Plastic and Related Products
- 8578 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
  Work: Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing,
  Rubber, Plastic and Related Products
- 8579 Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations: Rubber, Plastic and Related Products, NEC

#### 858 Mechanics and Repairmen Except Electrical

- 8580 Foremen: Mechanics and Repairmen Except Electrical
- 8581 Motor Vehicle Mechanics and Repairmen
- 8582 Aircraft Mechanics and Repairmen
- 8583 Rail Transport Equipment Mechanics and Repairmen
- 8584 Industrial, Farm and Construction Machinery Mechanics and Repairmen
- 8585 Business and Commercial Machine Mechanics and Repairmen
- 8586 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations, Equipment Repair Except Electrical
- 8587 Watch and Clock Repairmen
- 8588 Precision Instrument Mechanics and Repairmen
- 8589 Mechanics and Repairmen Except Electrical, NEC

#### 859 Other Product Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations

- 8590 Foremen: Product Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, NEC
- 8591 Jewellery and Silverware Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations
- 8592 Marine Craft Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations
- 8593 Paper Product Fabricating and Assembling Occupations
- 8595 Painting and Decorating Occupations, Except Construction
- 8596 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Product Fabricating, Assembling
  and Repairing, NEC
- 8598 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work: Product Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing, NEC
- 8599 Other Product Fabricating, Assembling and Repairing Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 87 - CONSTRUCTION TRADES OCCUPATIONS

### 871 Excavating, Grading, Paving and Related Occupations

8710 Foremen: Excavating, Grading, Paving and Related Occupations

- 8711 Excavating, Grading and Related Occupations
- 8713 Paving, Surfacing and Related Occupations
- 8715 Railway Sectionmen and Trackmen
- 8718 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work: Excavating, Grading and Paving
- 8719 Excavating, Grading, Paving and Related Occupations, NEC

#### 873 Electrical Power, Lighting and Wire Communications Equipment Erecting, Installing and Repairing Occupations

- 8730 Foremen: Electrical Power, Lighting and Wire Communications Equipment Erecting, Installing and Repairing Occupations
- 8731 Electrical Power Linemen and Related Occupations
- 8733 Construction Electricians and Repairmen
- 8735 Wire Communications and Related Equipment Installing and Repairing Occupations
- 8736 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations: Electrical Power, Lighting and
  Wire Communications Equipment Erecting,
  Installing and Repairing
- 8738 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work: Electrical Power, Lighting and Wire Communications Equipment Erecting, Installing and Repairing
- 8739 Electrical Power, Lighting and Wire Communications Equipment Erecting, Installing and Repairing Occupations, NEC

#### 878/879 Other Construction Trades Occupations

- 8780 Foremen: Other Construction Trades Occupations
- 8781 Carpenters and Related Occupations
- 8782 Brick and Stone Masons and Tile Setters
- 8783 Concrete Finishing and Related Occupations
- 8784 Plasterers and Related Occupations
- 8785 Painters, Paperhangers and Related Occupations
- 8786 Insulating Occupations, Construction
- 8787 Roofing, Waterproofing and Related Occupations
- 8791 Pipefitting, Plumbing and Related Occupations
- 8793 Structural Metal Erectors
- 8795 Glaziers
- 8796 Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
  Occupations, Construction, Except Electrical
- 8798 Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental Work, Other Construction Trades
- 8799 Other Construction Trades Occupations, NEC

### MAJOR GROUP 91 - TRANSPORT EQUIPMENT OPERATING OCCUPATIONS

#### 911 Air Transport Operating Occupations

- 9110 Foremen: Air Transport Operating Occupations
- 9111 Air Pilots, Navigators and Flight Engineers
- 9113 Air Transport Operating Support Occupations
- 9119 Air Transport Operating Occupations, NEC

	•		
	913 Railway Transport Operating Occupations	9515	Printing Engravers, Except Photoengravers Photoengravers and Related Occupations Bookbinders and Related Occupations
	Foremen: Railway Transport Operating Occupations		Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
	Locomotive Engineers and Firemen		Work, Printing and Related, NEC
	Conductors and Brakemen, Railway	9519	Printing and Related Occupations, NEC
	Railway Transport Operating Support Occupations Railway Transport Operating Occupations, NEC		953 Stationary Engine and Utilities Equipment
			Operating and Related Occupations
	915 Water Transport Operating Occupations		, ,
		9530	Foremen: Stationary Engine and Utilities
9151	Deck Officers		Equipment Operating and Related Occupations
	Engineering Officers, Ship	9531	Power Station Operators
	Deck Crew, Ship		Stationary Engine and Utilities Equipment
	Engine and Boiler-Room Crew, Ship	7337	Operating and Related Occupations, NEC
	Water Transport Operating Occupations, NEC		operating and Related Occupations, 14EC
7137	water Transport Operating Occupations, 142C		955 Electronic and Related Communications
	917 Motor Transport Operating Occupations		
	717 Motor Transport Operating Occupations		Equipment Operating Occupations, NEC
9170	Foremen: Motor Transport Operating Occupations	9550	Foremen: Electronic and Related Communications
	Bus Drivers	2230	Equipment Operating Occupations, NEC
	Taxi Drivers and Chauffeurs	0551	Radio and Television Broadcasting Equipment
	Truck Drivers	7331	
		0663	Operators Talegraph Operators
2117	Motor Transport Operating Occupations, NEC		Telegraph Operators
	010 Other Transport and Deleted Delited	9555	Sound Recording and Reproduction Equipment
•	919 Other Transport and Related Equipment		Operators /
	Operating Occupations		Motion Picture Projectionists
		9559	Electronic and Related Communications Equipment
9190	Foremen: Other Transport and Related Equipment		Operating Occupations, NEC
	Operating Occupations		
	Subway and Street Railway Operating Occupations		959 Other Crafts and Equipment Operating
	Motormen and Dinkeymen, Except Rail Transport		Occupations, NEC
9199	Other Transport and Related Equipment Operating		
	Occupations, NEC	9590	Foremen: Other Crafts and Equipment Operating
			Occupations, NEC
MΛJ	OR GROUP 93 - MATERIALS HANDLING AND	9591	Photographic Processing Occupations
	RELATED OCCUPATIONS, NEC		Other Crafts and Equipment Operating
	•		Occupations, NEC
	931 Materials Handling and Related Occupations,		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	NEC	1	MAJOR GROUP 99 - OCCUPATIONS NOT
			ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED
9310	Foremen: Materials Handling and Related		LEGEWIERCE CELEGRIED
	Occupations, NEC		991 Occupations Not Elsewhere Classified
9311	Hoisting Occupations, NEC		331 Occupations Not Executed Cassilled
	Longshoremen, Stevedores and Freight Handlers	0010	Supervisors and Foremen, NEC
	Materials Handling Equipment Operators, NEC		• •
	Packaging Occupations, NEC	2210	Inspecting, Testing, Grading and Sampling
	Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental	0010	Occupations, NEC
<i>,</i> ,,,,,		אוגע	Occupations in Labouring and Other Elemental
0210	Work, Materials Handling Materials Handling and Related Occupations NEC	0010	Work, NEC
1317	Materials Handling and Related Occupations, NEC	אוגא	Other Occupations, NEC
N	MAJOR GROUP 95 - OTHER CRAFTS AND	MAIC	OR GROUP 00 - OCCUPATIONS NOT STATED
_			OCCULITATION NOT STATED

### EQUIPMENT OPERATING OCCUPATIONS

#### 951 Printing and Related Occupations

- 9510 Foremen: Printing and Related Occupations
- 9511 Typesetters and Compositors
- 9512 Printing Press Occupations
- 9513 Stereotypers and Electrotypers

000 Occupations Not Stated

0000 Occupations Not Stated.

# STANDARD RECORD LAYOUT FOR SUBMITTING DATA ON WORK INJURIES

	<u>Field</u>	Position	<u>Size</u>	Comments
1.	Month of Injury	01-02	2	Left justified
2.	Year of Injury	03-04	2	
3.	Occupation	05-08	4	
4.	Accident Type	09-11	3	
5.	Source of Injury	12-15	4	
6.	Nature of Injury	16-18	3	
7.	Part of Body	19-21	3	
8.	Basic Cause	22-23	2	
9.	Sex	24	1	
10.	Age	25-26	2	
11.	Fatality	27	1 .	
12.	S.I.C. (1980) (Stat. Can.)	28-31	4	

**INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS** 

#### INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND PART OF BODY

#### NATURE OF INJURY

1	000	100	110	120	140	160	170	172	175	178	182	185	188	195	199	200	203	205	215	216	220	230	240	260
000					X						•						• • • • •							••••
100			Х		Х															· • • • • •	•		X	
110		X	Х	X				X		X	X	X	Х				Х	• • • • •	Х		Х	Х	••••	X
120			Х		X	••••		X		X	X		X										Х	X
121	••••		X		X			X		X	X		Х										Х	Х
124	*	• • • • •	X		X						X		Х			••••			X		Х		Х	Х
129			X		X			X		Х	X		X										Х	Х
130			X		X					X			X							•••••		X	Х	Х
140	•	••••	X		X						X										*	Х	Х	
141		•••-	X		X						X											Х	Х	
144			X		X			X			X		X									Х	Х	
146			X		X						X		X						••••			Х	Х	Х
148	••••	••••	X		X					<u></u>	X										••••	X	Х	
149	•••••		X		X		• • • • •		••••		Х		<b>-</b>									X	Х	
150		••••	X		X			X		χ	Х		X									X	Х	X
160	••••		X		X			Χ.	••••		Χ.		X						Х	X	X	X	Х	Х
198			X		X						Х											X	X	

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

В О D Y

27 	0	273	274	-280	281	283	286	290	291	293	294	295	399	405	500	550	551	552	560	570	600	605	991	99
<b> </b>												••••		X		•••••		••••		•				
l		X	X	X	X	X	Х		• • • • •					X		••••		•		X		•••••	X	
		X	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х			• • • • •		Х		X						х			X	
X		X	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х					Х	• • • • •	X		• • • • •			х	x	х	х		
х		Х	, <b>X</b>	Х	Х	Х	Х					Х	• • • • •	X	X	••••			x	x	х	х		
		X	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х					Х		X					x	X	Х	х	x	
x		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х					Х		X		••••			х	x		х	x	
		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х					••••		X	x	•			x			х		
		Х	Х	Х	X	Х	Х					X	• • • • •	X	<b>X</b>				х	х				
		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	X					X		Х	Х		• • • • •		х	x	х	х		
Х		Х	Х	χ	X	Х	X					X		X	X	••••		• • • • •		х		х	x	
	• • •	••••	Х	Х	Х	Х	X					X	••••	X	Х				х		х	х		
••••		Х	Х	Х	X	X	X					X	••••	х										
••••	• • •	X	Х	Х	X	X	X		• • • • •		••••	X		х	х	••••					х	х		
X	• • •	Х	Х	X	X	X	Х	••••				 Х	••••	х		••••	••••		х					
X	• • •	Х	X	Х	Х	. X	Х	• • • • •				X	••••	х		••••	••••					 Х		•-
X		X	Х	×	X	х	×					X		х										

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

#### INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND PART OF BODY

#### NATURE OF INJURY

<u>ہ</u> ا		 	 	 170												 	 			1
99		 x	 _ X	 												 	 	X		1
00		 X	 X	 													X	X		2
00		 X	 X	 				X							•	 	 Х	X		3
10		 X	 X	 				Х		•••••						 	 X	х		] ;
11		 Х	 X	 				Х						••••		 	 χ	Χ.		] 3
13		 Х	 X					X								 	 X	X		:
15		 Х	 X	 				X								 	 X	х		
18		 Х	 Х	 	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			Х						•		 	 X	X		
19		 Х	 X	 			••••	X								 	 X	X		;
20		 Х	 X	 				X	•							 	 X	X		3
30		 Х	 X	 		••••	•••••	Х							*	 	 Х	X		;
40		 X	 X	 				X			•••••			•		 	 Х	X		3
98		 X	 X	 				Х				•				 	 X	X		] 3
99		 X	 Х	 			••••	X	••••				••••			 	 X	x		3
00		 Х	 Х	 	••••		••••						••••			 	 х	X		4
10		 Х	 Х	 	Х		Х									 	 		X	4
20		 ×	 X	 												 	 			4

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

#### NATURE OF INJURY

	270	273	274	280	281	283	286	290	291	293	294	295	399	405	500	550	551	552	560	570	600	605	991	999	
199		X	Х	X	Х	X	X							X						X			Х		199
200	X	X	X	X	X	Х	Х				••••	Х		Х	Х				X	X	Х	х	X		200
300	X	Х	Х	X	Х	Х	Х					Х		X	X					X	X	Х	x		300
310	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	Х					Х		X	X				X	X	Х	X	х		310
311	X	Х	X	Х	Х	X	Х			• • • • •		X		X	Х				X	X	Х	X	Х		311
313	X	Х	Х	Х	X	X	Х					Х		X	Х				х	X	Х	χ			313
315	X	X	Х	Х	X	X	Х					X		X	X				χ.	X	X	X	х		315
318	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	Х					Х		X	X				X	X	Х	X	Х		318
319	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	X	X					X		X	X			••••	×	X	X	X	х		319
320	X	Х	Х	Х	X	Х	X					X		Х	×				••••	X	X	X	х		320
330	X	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	X					X		Х	Х				X	X	X	X	. x		330
340		X	Х	Х	X	Х	Х		••••			X		X	X			••••	X	X	X	X	×		340
398	Х	X	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	••••				X		Х	×				Х	X	X	X	х		398
399	X	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	X					X	****	Х	Х				••••	X	X	X	×		399
400	X				•		••••					X		X	×			••••	Х	х	x	X	х		400
410	X	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	X		••••			×		X	X				X	х		X	х		410
420		X	Х	X	Х	Х	Х			••••	••••	×		X	х				х	х	х	x	 Х		420
I				• • • • •			• • • • •					• • • • •		• • • • •							• • • • •				l

В О D Y

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

# INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND PART OF BODY

#### NATURE OF INJURY

ı	000	100	110	120	140	160	170	172	175	178	182	185	188	195	199	200	203	205	215	216	220	230	240	260	
423			X		X						• • • • •			••••					Х	х	х	X	х		42
425			Χ		X						• • • • •								. х	Х	Х	x	х		42
426			X		X									• • • • •					Х	Х	х	X	х		42
428			X		X				•••••					••••						х	x	X	X		4
429	 		X		Х																	Х	Х		4
430			X		X									*****								Х	.X		4
440			X		X																	X	X		4
450			X		X						X			••••			••••				•	X	X		4
498	••••		X		X											••••						X	X		4
499			X	••••	X								_						••••			X	Х		4
500			X		X						X						••••					X	X	• • • • • •	5
510		••••	X		X						Х						••••					Х	X		5
511		••••	X		Х						X											Х	X		5
513			X		X						X		· · · ·									Х	X		5
515			X		X	• • • • •					X											Х	×		5
518			X		X						Х					•	••••					×			5

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

- 73

	270	273	274	280	281	283	286	290	291	293	294	295	399	405	500	550	551	552	560	570	600	605	991	999	_
		X	Х	X	X	X	Х	_				Х		Х	Х			• • • • •	X	×	×	X	×		4:
-		X	X	X	Х	·X	Х					Х		X	X				X	X	X	X	X		4:
		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	X					Х		X	Х			••••	X,	X	Х	Х	Х		4
ı		Х	Х	X	Х	Х	Х					Х		Х	Х		••••	••••	Х	х	Х	Х	Х		4:
l		X	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х					Х		Х	Х				Х	Х	Х	Х	Х		4:
	X											X		X					Х	х	Х	Х			43
	X	X	X	Х	Х	Х	X					Х		X	X		••••		Х	X	Х	Х	X		44
	X	X	X	X	X	Х	X					X		X	X				Х	Х	X	Х	Х		4:
	X	X	X	X	X	X	Х					X		X	X		_		х	Х	Х	Х			49
	X											Х		Х	Х		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		Х	Х	Х	Х			49
l	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	X			••••		Х		X	X					X	Х	Х	Х	••••	50
	X	X	X	X	X	Х	Х					Х		X	X				Х	Х	Х	Х	Х		5.
	X	X	X	Х	X	X	Х				••••	Х		Χ,	X				X	X	X	Х	Х		51
ĺ	X	X	X	X	X	Х	X					X		X	X	_			Х	Х	Х	Х	Х		51
ļ	X	X	X	Х	X	X	Х					X		X	Х	•••••	••••		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х		51
l	X	X	X	X	X	X	Х					Х		X	X				×	×	X	X	X		51

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION .

#### NATURE OF INJURY

ı	000	100	110	120	140	160	170	172	175	178	182	185	188	195	199	200	203	205	215	216	220	230	240	260
۱			X		X						X	_							•			Х	X	
۱'			Х		X						X				••••							Х	X	
۱ ا			X		X						Х							• • • • •				Х	Х	
1			X		X						X											Х	X	••••
١			X		X						X											Х	Х	
۱ ۱			X		X			`			Х										••••	Х	Х	
۱ ۱					Х								_											
1		X		Х	Х			X		X		Х	Х						Х		X	X		X
		X	X	Х	X			X		X	Х	Х	Х						Х	•••••	X	X		Х
1		X	X	X	X			X		X		X	Х						X		X	X		Х
1		X	X	X	X			X		X	Х	X	Х						X		X	X		X
1		X	X	X	X			X		Х		X	X						Х		X	X		
۱ ۱		X	X	X	X			X		X	Х	X	X				X		X		Х			X
		X		X	X			X		X	X	X	X						Х		Х	X		Х
		X		X	X			X		X		X	X						Х	•••••	X	X		X
	X	X	X	X	X	×	X	X	X	X	Х	X	Х	X	Х	×	Х	Х	Х	Х	×	×	Х	x
					X.	-,																		

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION

			NATUR	E OF	INJUR	Y		
	290							

INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND PART OF BODY

)	270	273	274	280	281	283	286	290	291	293	294	295	399	405	500	550	551	552	560	570	600	605	991	999
	X	X	X	X	X	X	X					X		X	X				X	X	X	Х	Х	
	X	X	X	X	X	X	X					X		X	X					X	X	X	Х	
	X	X	X	X	X	X	X					X		х	X				X	Х	X	Х	X	• • • • •
		X	Х	X	Х	X	X					X		Х	X		••••		X	Х	X	X	X	
	X	X	X	Х	X	X	X					X	••••	X	X			••••	X	Х	X	X	Х	
	X	X	Х	X	х •	X	X					Х		X	X			••••		х	X	X	Х	••••
												X		X	X				X	Х	X	X	X	
		X	X	X	Х	X	X					X		X	• • • • •		••••			Х				
		X	X	X	Х	X	X					X		X				••••	X	Х	Х	X		
		X	X	X	X	X	X					X		X		••••	••••	••••	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	
		X	X	X	Х	X	X					X		X				•••••	Х	Х	X	Х	Х	••••
		X	X	X	Х	X	X					X		X					X	Х	Х	Х	Х	• • • • •
		X	X	X	X	X	X					X		X		X	Х	Х		Х			Х	• • • • •
												X		X					X	Х	X	Х	Х	• • • • •
		X	X	X	X	Х	X					Х	•-••	X				••••	••••	••••				• • • • •
	X	X	X	X	X	Х	X	X	X	X	Х	X	X		X	X	Х	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	Х
•														X	····,	••••		••••	•••••	••••				• • • • •

#### NATURE OF INJURY

t	000	100	110	120	140	160	170	172	175	178	182	185	188	195	199	200	203	205	215	216	220	230	240	260	
000			••••											••••											000
01-				X					X		••••						Х	X	X	Х	Х		Х		01-
02-				X				••••	Х	•••••	•••••		• • • • •				×	X	X	X	X		Х		02-
03-				Х					X			•		••••			х	х	х	Х	Х		х		03-
05-			••••	Х		••••	••••		X		• • • • •	••••		••••			х	х		х	х		X		05-
06-	• • • • •		****	Х	• • • • •				X	•••••	×			••••			X	X	х	Х	Х		Х		06-
08-		Х	Х	Х	Х				x		×		••••				х				Х		Х		08-
10-		Х	Х	Х	Х				×			Х.		•••••			<b>x</b> .	х	х	х	Χ,		Х		10-
12-		Х	Х	X	X		х		х		••••	Х					i	x			X		χ		12-
130		••••	Х	Х	Х	Х	×	×		×		х	х								X		X	х	130
15-			Х	••••	Х	Х	×	×	X	Х	х	×	x				х		x					х	15-
170		Х		••••	Х	X	×	×	X	Х	х	х	х										X	x	170
18-				х	Х	Х	×	х	Х	х	х					••••		••••					х	х	18-
2	•	••••		•	• • • • •	•						• • • • •					••••	••••		• • • • •				••••	2
3			• • • • •	••••									••••												3
40-		Х	X	X	Х	х	x	х			•••••														40-
500	• • • • • •				• • • • •				х		••••		<b></b>					• • • • •			x		x		500
6		••••									••••		:										:		6
700													• • • • •										: x		700
			• • • • •							• • • • •															

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION
- = MORE THAN ONE CODE HAVE THE SAME FIRST NUMBER(S)

# INVALIO CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND TYPE OF ACCIDENT

#### NATURE OF INJURY

1	270	273	274	280	281	283	286	290	291	293	294	295	399	405	500	550	551	552	560	<b>57</b> 0	600	605	991	999	
000															••••			••••							000
01-	Х	X	X	X	X	X	X	X	X	X	X	Х			X	X	Х	Х			Х	Х			01-
02-	Х	X	X	X	X	X	Х	X	X	X	X	Х			Х	X	Х	×			X	X			02-
03-	Х	X	X	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	Х	X	Х			Х	X	Х	×		X	X	X			03-
05-	Х	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	X	X	Х	X	Х	• • • • •		X	X	X	×		×	X	, <b>X</b>			05-
06-	X	X	X	X	X	X	Х	Х	X	Х	Х	Х			Х	×	X	Х	<b>-</b>	×	X	X			06-
08-	X	X	X	X	X	X	Х	Х	X	X	Х	Х			Х	×	X	X			X	X			08-
10-	X	X	X	Х	X	Х	Х	Х	X	Х	X	Х			Х	×	X	Х		×	Х	X			10-
12-	X	X	X	Х	Х	Х	X	Х	· x	Х	X	Х			Х	×	X	X		х	Х	X			12-
130	X	X	X	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	Х			X	×	X	х	х	х	X	х	••••		130
15-	X	X	X	×	Х	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х			×	X	χ	X	×	х	×	X	• • • • •		15-
170	X	X	X	X	Х	X	Х	Х	Х	Х	X	Х				X	X	×	Х	х	X	X	••••		170
18-					****				••••						×						X	X	••••		18-
2		Х	Х	X	Х	Х	X	X	Х	Х	X	×			х	х	x	x		• • • • •	X	****	••••		2
3		Х	Х	X	Х	X	×	X	X	X	×	x			×		х	х		•	х				3
40-	X	Х	Х	X	Х	X	X	X	X	X	X	×			x	х	x				х	X			40-
500		X	X	X	X	X	X	х	X	X	х		•				х				х	X	••••		500
6		X	X	X	X	×	χ	х	X								х							•	6
700		X	X	X		х		X	X				•••••		х						X				700
1			•						• • • • •							• • • • •									'''

Y P E

0

X = INVALIO CODE COMBINATION
- = MORE THAN ONE CODE HAVE THE SAME FIRST NUMBER(S)

# INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND TYPE OF ACCIDENT

#### NATURE OF INJURY

	000	100	110	120	140	160	170	172	175	178	182	185	188	195	199	200	203	205	215	216	220	230	240	260
750		х		X	X	X	X	X	X	X	X	X	X				X	X	X	X	×	×	×	х
751							<b></b>			<b></b> -														
900							- <b>-</b>																	
999								<b>-</b>								<b></b> -								
																		<b>-</b>						
								<b>-</b>																
Ì	*																		• <b></b> -					
Ì	•••••																							
															,	• • • • •								
						,	•							• • • • •		- <b></b>								
										• • • • •			• • • • • •								••••			
İ																					_			
						••••																		
														••••										
								:	• • • • •			· · · · ·												
			• • • • •																					
ļ	•••••					•						• • • •												

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION
- = MORE THAN ONE CODE HAVE THE SAME FIRST NUMBER(S)

750

751

900

999

# INVALID CODE COMBINATIONS: NATURE OF INJURY AND TYPE OF ACCIDENT

## NATURE OF INJURY

	270	273	274	280	281	283	286	290	291	293	294	295	399	405	500	550	551	552	560	570	600	605	991	999
750	X	Х	Х	Х	х	Х	Х	X	Х	x	Х	X		х	Х	X	x	x	х	х	х	х		
751				X	х	х	X		•				• • • • •	•		х	х							
900		Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х			•	• • • • •													
999																								
											• • • • •													
											• • • • •													
										• • • • •														
		• • • • •																						
			••••																					
							• • • • •																	
	••••	•	• • • • •		<b></b> -																		•	
										• • • • •										<b>-</b> -				
								••••						•										
										<b>.</b>														
								••••			<b>-</b>			<b></b>			• • • • •							
				• • • • •																			••••	
				• • • • ·					•••-															

X = INVALID CODE COMBINATION
- = MORE THAN ONE CODE HAVE THE SAME FIRST NUMBER(S)

# ALPHABETICAL LISTS

	Page
NATURE OF INJURY	82
PART OF BODY	91
SOURCE OF INJURY	97
ACCIDENT TYPE	116

## NATURE OF INJURY

- A -

ABRASIONS, SCRATCHES - SUPERFICIAL WOUNDS 185 AIDS 570 **AERO-OTITIS MEDIA 500** ALLERGIC CONDITION, ALLERGIC REACTION 216 **ALUMINOSIS 281** AMEBIASIS 205 AMPUTATION OR ENUCLEATION 100 **ANAPHYLACTIC REACTION 216 ANAPHYLACTIC SHOCK 216** ANGINA 991 ANIMAL BITES (VENOMOUS) - POISONING 270 ANTHRAX 205 **ANTHRACOSIS 280** ARTIFICIAL TEETH DAMAGE 405 ASBESTOSIS 283 ASPHYXIA, DROWNING, STRANGULATION 110 ASTHMA 274 ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE CHANGES IN 500 ATYPICAL ANGINA 991

- B -

BAROTRAUMA 500 **BELL'S PALSY 560** BENIGN TUMOR 552 BITES - VENOMOUS ANIMAL INSECT OR REPTILE 270 BOILS 205 BONES, BREAKING OR RUPTURE OF 178 **BONES, DISPLACEMENT 172** BRAIN OR CEREBRAL CONCUSSION 140 BREAKING OR RUPTURE OF BONES 178 **BRONCHITIS 274 BRUCELLOSIS 205** BRUISE, CONTUSION, CRUSHING - INTACT SKIN SURFACE 160 BURN CHEMICAL 203 **ELECTRIC 175** FRICTION 185 HOT OR COLD 120 BURN OUT 600 BURSAE, INFLAMMATION OR IRRITATION 260 **BURSITIS 260 BYSSINOSIS 280** 

- C -

CAISSON DISEASE 500
CANCER 551
CARBUNCLES 205
CARPAL TUNNEL SYNDROME 560
CEREBRAL OR BRAIN CONCUSSION 140

#### - C - Concluded

CEREBRAL PARALYSIS 560 CHEMICAL **BURN 203** COMPOUNDS - TISSUE DAMAGE RESULTING FROM THE CORROSIVE ACTION 203 FUMES - TISSUE DAMAGE RESULTING FROM THE CORROSIVE ACTION 203 POISONING 270 TISSUE DAMAGE RESULTING FROM THE CORROSIVE ACTION 203 CIRCULATORY SYSTEM INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 COAL WORKER'S PNEUMOCONIOSIS 280 COCCIDIOIDOMYCOSIS 205 COLD SUBSTANCES - EFFECTS OF CONTACT WITH 120 CONCUSSION - BRAIN OR CEREBRAL 140 CONDITION - HEART 991 CONJUNCTIVITIS 205 CONTACT WITH **IRRITANTS CHEMICALS 215** SENSITIZING CHEMICALS 215 CONTAGIOUS OR INFECTIOUS DISEASE 205 CONTUSION, BRUISE, CRUSHING - INTACT SKIN SURFACE 160 CORROSIVE ACTION OF CHEMICAL COMPOUNDS - TISSUE DAMAGE 203 FUMES - TISSUE DAMAGE 203 TISSUE DAMAGE 203 CRAMPS - HEAT 240 CRUSHING, CONTUSION, BRUISE - INTACT SKIN SURFACE 160 CUT, LACERATION, PUNCTURE - OPEN WOUND 170

#### - D -

DAMAGE TO **ARTIFICIAL TEETH 405** EYEGLASSES 405 **HEARING AIDS 405** PACEMAKERS 405 PROSTHESES 405 **DERMATITIS 215** DIGESTIVE SYSTEM INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 DISCS, SLIPPED 182 **DISEASE** CAISSON 500 **CONTAGIOUS 205** EYE 205 **INFECTIOUS 205** NERVOUS SYSTEM 560 WHITE FINGER VIBRATION 399 DISLOCATION 172

#### - D - Concluded

DISORDER(S)
BURN OUT 600
FUNCTIONAL 600
MENTAL 600
PSYCHOLOGICAL 600
STRESS 605
DROWNING, ASPHYXIA, STRANGULATION 110
DRUG POISONING 270
DUST DISEASES OF THE LUNGS (EXCEPT SILICOSIS AND ASBESTOSIS) 280

- E -

EFFECTS OF CHANGES IN ATMOSPHERIC PRESSURE 500 CONTACT WITH HOT SUBSTANCES 120 **ENVIRONMENTAL HEAT 240** EXPOSURE TO LOW TEMPERATURE (FREEZING, FROSTBITE) 220 **RADIATIONS** (IONIZING - ISOTOPES) 294 (IONIZING - X RAYS) 293 (NON-IONIZING) 291 (WELDER'S FLASH)295 **ELECTRIC BURN 175** SHOCK 175 ELECTROCUTION, ELECTRIC SHOCK 175 **EMPHYSEMA 274 ENUCLEATION OR AMPUTATION 100** ENVIRONMENTAL HEAT (EFFECTS OF) 240 ESOPHAGEAL, HERNIA 182 **EXCRETORY SYSTEM** INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 **EXHAUSTION - HEAT 240 EYE 205 EYEGLASSES DAMAGE 405** 

- F -

FEMORAL, HERNIA 182
FOOD POISONING 205
FOREIGN BODIES IN EYE, EAR, NOSE 185
FRACTURE 178
FREEZING, FROSTBITE 220
FRICTION BURN 185
FROSTBITE, FREEZING 220
FURUNCLES 205
FUNCTIONAL DISORDERS 600

- G -

GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM
INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270

- H -

HAY FEVER 273 **HEARING AID DAMAGE 405** HEARING LOSS, IMPAIRMENT (SEPARATE INJURY, NOT THE SEQUELA OF ANOTHER INJURY) 230 **HEAT BURN OR SCALD 120** CRAMPS 240 **EFFECTS OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEAT 240 EXHAUSTION 240** STROKE 240 HEAT ATTACKS, OF NON-TOXIC ORIGIN 991 **HEART CONDITION 991 HEPATITIS - INFECTIOUS 205 TOXIC 999** HERNIA OR RUPTURE (INGUINAL OR NON-INGUINAL) 182 HISTOPLASMOSIS 205

- 1 -

ILLNESSES - OCCUPATIONAL, NEC 399 IMPAIRMENT, HEARING LOSS - SEPARATE INJURY NOT THE SEQUELA OF **ANOTHER INJURY 230 INFECTIOUS HEPATITIS 205** INFECTIOUS OR CONTAGIOUS DISEASE 205 INFLAMMATION OR IRRITATION OF **BURSAE 260** JOINTS 260 LIGAMENTS 260 MUSCLES 260 TENDONS 260 INFLAMMATION OF SKIN, TISSUE 215 **INFLUENZA 274** INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING OF THE CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 270 **DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 270 EXCRETORY SYSTEM 270 GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM 270 METABOLIC SYSTEM 270 MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 270 NERVOUS SYSTEM 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 270** INGUINAL AND NON-INGUINAL HERNIA OR RUPTURE 182

HOT SUBSTANCES - EFFECTS OF CONTACT 120

#### - I - Concluded

INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING OF THE CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 270 **DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 270 EXCRETORY SYSTEM 270 GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM 270 METABOLIC SYSTEM 270** MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 270 **NERVOUS SYSTEM 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 270** INJURIES - OCCUPATIONAL NEC 199 INSECT BITES (VENOMOUS) - POISONING 270 INTERVERTEBRAL DISCS, RUPTURED 182 IONIZING RADIATIONS EFFECTS (ISOTOPES, RADIUM) 294 IONIZING RADIATIONS EFFECTS (X-RAYS) 293 IRRITANTS CHEMICALS (CONTACT WITH) 215 IRRITATION OR INFLAMMATION OF BURSAE 260 JOINTS 260 LIGAMENTS 260 **MUSCLES 260 TENDONS 260** ISOTOPES (IONIZING RADIATIONS EFFECTS) 294

- J .

JOINTS, INFLAMMATION OR IRRITATION 260

- L -

LACERATION, CUT, PUNCTURE - OPEN WOUND 170
LEUKEMIA 551
LOW TEMPERATURE (EFFECTS OF EXPOSURE) 220
LOWER RESPIRATORY CONDITIONS 274
LUMBAR DISCS 182
LUNGS - DUST DISEASE (EXCEPT SILICOSIS AND ASBESTOSIS) 280
LUXATION 172

- M -

MALIGNANT TUMOR 551
MENTAL DISORDERS 600
METABOLIC SYSTEM
INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
METAL POISONING 270
MICROWAVES (NON-IONIZING RADIATIONS EFFECTS) 291
MIGRAINES 560
MULTIPLE INJURIES 195
MUSCLES INFLAMMATION OR IRRITATION 260

#### - M - Concluded

MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM
INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270

#### - N -

NEOPLASM, TUMOR, UNS 550
NEOPLASM, TUMOR, MALIGNANT 551
NEOPLASM, TUMOR, BENIGN 552
NERVOUS SYSTEM
DISEASES OF 560
INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270
NON-IONIZING RADIATION EFFECTS (MICROWAVES, SUNBURN, ULTRA-VIOLET RAYS) 291
NON-IONIZING RADIATION EFFECTS (WELDER'S FLASH) 295
NON-PERSONAL DAMAGE ONLY 405

#### - 0 -

OCCUPATIONAL ILLNESSES, NEC 399
OCCUPATIONAL ILLNESSES, UNS 200
OCCUPATIONAL INJURY OR ILLNESS, NEC (INCLUDES TOXIC HEPATITIS) 999
OCCUPATIONAL INJURY, NEC 199
OCCUPATIONAL INJURY, UNS 000
OPEN WOUND
CUT 170
LACERATION 170
PUNCTURE 170
OPHTHALMIA 205
ORGANIC DISEASES POISONING 270

#### - P -

PACEMAKER DAMAGE 405 PHARYNGITIS 273 PHENOMENON - RAYNAUD'S 399 PNEUMOCONIOSIS, NEC 280 **BYSSINOSIS 280** SIDEROSIS 280 WITH PNEUMOCONIOSIS 280 PNEUMONIA 274 **POISONING** BACTERIAL 205 CHEMICAL 270 **DRUG 270 FOOD 205** METAL 270 ORGANIC DISEASES 270 POISONING SYSTEMIC 270

## - P - Concluded

VENOMOUS INSECT AND REPTILE BITES 270
VIRAL, FOOD 205
PROSTHESES DAMAGE 405
PSYCHOLOGICAL DISORDERS 600
PUNCTURE, CUT, LACERATION - OPEN WOUND 170

#### - R -

RADIATION EFFECTS, UNS 290 **IONIZING - ISOTOPES 294 IONIZING - X RAYS 293** NON-IONIZING 291 WELDER'S FLASH 295 RADIUM (IONIZING RADIATIONS EFFECTS) 290 **ISOTOPES 294** X RAYS 293 RASH-SKIN 215 **RAYNAUD'S PHENOMENON 399** REPTILE BITES (VENOMOUS) - POISONING 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM INGESTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 INHALATION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 LOWER RESPIRATORY CONDITION 274 SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING 270 **UPPER RESPIRATORY CONDITION 273** RHINITIS 273 **RUPTURE OF BONES 178** RUPTURE OR HERNIA (INGUINAL OR NON-INGUINAL) 182 RUPTURED INTERVERTEBRAL DISCS 182

#### - S -

SCALD OR BURN (HEAT) 120

SCRATCHES, ABRASIONS - SUPERFICIAL WOUND 185

SENSITIZING CHEMICALS (CONTACT WITH) 215 SEPTICEMIA 205 SHOCK - ELECTRIC 175 SIDEROSIS 280 SILICOSIS 286 SINUSITIS 273 SKIN ABSORPTION OF TOXIC SUBSTANCE AFFECTING FUNCTIONING OF THE **CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 270 DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 270 EXCRETORY SYSTEM 270** GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM 270 **METABOLIC SYSTEM 270** MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 270 **NERVOUS SYSTEM 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 270** OR TISSUE INFLAMMATION 215 **RASH 215** SLIPPED DISCS 182

#### - S - Concluded

SPRAINS, STRAINS 188
STRAINS, SPRAINS 188
STRANGULATION, ASPHYXIA, DROWNING 110
STRESS 605
STROKE - HEAT 240
SUNBURN (NON-IONIZING RADIATION EFFECTS) 291
SUNSTROKE 240
SUPERFICIAL WOUND
ABRASION 185
SCRATCHES 185
SYNOVITIS 260
SYSTEMIC POISONING 270

#### - T -

TEETH- DAMAGE TO 178 TEMPERATURE - EFFECTS OF EXPOSURE TO LOW TEMPERATURE 220 TENDONS, INFLAMMATION OR IRRITATION 260 TENOSYNOVITIS 260 **TETANUS 205** TISSUE DAMAGE RESULTING FROM THE CORROSIVE ACTION OF CHEMICALS 203 CHEMICAL COMPOUNDS 203 **CHEMICAL FUMES 203** OR SKIN INFLAMMATION 215 TOXIC HEPATITIS 999 TOXIC SUBSTANCE INGESTION AFFECTING FUNCTIONING OF THE CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 270 **DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 270 EXCRETORY SYSTEM 270 GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM 270 METABOLIC SYSTEM 270** MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 270 **NERVOUS SYSTEM 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 270** INHALATION AFFECTING FUNCTIONING OF THE **CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 270 DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 270 EXCRETORY SYSTEM 270 GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM 270 METABOLIC SYSTEM 270** MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 270 **NERVOUS SYSTEM 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 270** SKIN ABSORPTION AFFECTING FUNCTIONING OF THE

CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 270 DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 270 EXCRETORY SYSTEM 270

**METABOLIC SYSTEM 270** 

**GENITO - URINARY SYSTEM 270** 

MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 270

## - T - Concluded

NERVOUS SYSTEM 270 RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 270

**TUBERCULOSIS 205** 

TUMORS - BENIGN 552

- MALIGNANT 551 -

- UNS 550

TYPICAL ANGINA 991

- U -

ULTRA-VIOLET RAYS (NON-IONIZING RADIATION EFFECTS) 291 UPPER RESPIRATORY CONDITIONS 273

- V -

VENOMOUS ANIMAL, INSECT OR REPTILES BITES - POISONING 270 VIRAL FOOD POISONING 205

- W -

WELDING FLASH 295 WHITE FINGER VIBRATION DISEASE 399

- X -

X-RAYS (IONIZING RADIATION EFFECTS) 293

#### PART OF BODY

- A -ABDOMEN 410 **INTERNAL ORGANS 410** ADRENALS - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 410 - BODY SYSTEM, NEC 899 ANKLE 520 ARM(S) (ABOVE WRIST), UNS 310 **ELBOW 313** FOREARM 315 **MULTIPLE 318 NEC 319 UPPER ARM 311** ARTERIES - CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 801 ARTIFICIAL TEETH AND LIMBS 990 **AUDITORY NERVE 124** - B -BACK, NEC 429 BACK, UNS 420 LUMBAR SPINE 425 **MULTIPLE 428 MUSCLES 420 NEC 429** SACRUM AND COCCYX 426 SPINAL CORD 420 **SPINE 420** THORACIC SPINE 423 **BLADDER 440 BLOOD - CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 801** BODY PARTS, NEC 900 **BODY SYSTEM, NEC 899 ENDOCRINE SYSTEM 899 IMMUNE SYSTEM 899** BODY SYSTEM, UNS 800 **BONES - MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 830 BRAIN 110 BREAST BONES 430 BUTTOCKS 440** - C -**CALF 515** CANAL, EAR(S) 121 CHEST 430 **BREAST BONES 430** HEART 430 **INTERNAL ORGANS 430 LUNGS 430 RIBS 430** 

**CHIN 141** 

#### - C - Concluded

CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 801
ARTERIES 801
BLOOD 801
HEART 801
VEINS 801
CLAVICLE 450
COCHLEA 124

- D -

DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 810 DEFECATION 810

- E -

EARDRUM 124 EAR(S), UNS 120 CANAL 121 **EXTERNAL 121** EAR CANAL 121 **PINNA 121** TRAGUS 121 **INTERNAL 124 AUDITORY NERVE 124** COCHLEA 124 EARDRUM 124 **HEARING 124** SEMI-CIRCULAR CANALS 124 **NEC 129 ELBOW 313 ENDOCRINE SYSTEM 899 EXTERNAL GENITALIA 440** EYEBALL 130 EYELID 130 **EYEGLASSES 990** EYE(S) 130 EYEBALL 130 LACRIMAL APPARATUS 130 **OPTIC NERVES 130** VISION 130

- F -

FACE, UNS 140
MULTIPLE PARTS 148
NEC 149
FEMUR 511
FIBULA 515
FINGER(S) 340
FOOT (NOT ANKLE OR TOES) 530
HEEL 530
FOREARM 315

- G -

GENITOURINARY SYSTEM 820
REPRODUCTIVE FUNCTION 820
URINE PRODUCTION 820
GLASSES, EYE 990
GUMS 144

- H -

**HAIR 150 HIPS 440 BLADDER 440 BUTTOCKS 440 EXTERNAL GENITALIA 440 OVARIES 440 PELVIC ORGANS 440** PELVIS 440 PROSTRATE 440 UTERUS 440 HAND (NOT WRIST OR FINGERS) 330 HEAD, UNS 100 **MULTIPLE 198 NEC 199 HEARING 124 HEARING AIDS 990 HEART - CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 801** - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 430

- I -

IMMUNE SYSTEM 899
INTERNAL ORGANS OF THE
ABDOMEN 410
CHEST 430
INTESTINES - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 410
- DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 810

- J -

JAW 141 CHIN 141 JOINTS - MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 830

- K -

KIDNEYS - EXCRETORY SYSTEM 820 - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 410 KNEE 513

#### - L -

PROSTHESES 990

LACRIMAL APPARATUS 130 LEG 510 **MULTIPLE 518 NEC 519** LIMBS, ARTIFICIAL 990 **LIPS 144** LIVER - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 410 - DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 810 LOWER **EXTREMITIES, UNS 500 MULTIPLE 598 NEC 599 LEG 515 CALF 515** FIBULA 515 **TIBIA 515** LUMBAR SPINE 425 **LUNGS - RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 850** - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 430 - M -MOUTH 144 **GUMS 144 LIPS 144** TASTE 144 **TEETH 144** THROAT 144 **TONGUE 144** MULTIPLE PARTS (APPLIES WHEN MORE THAN ONE MAJOR BODY PART HAS BEEN AFFECTED, SUCH AS AN ARM AND A LEG) 700 **MUSCLES BACK 420** MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 830 **MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 830** BONES 830 JOINTS 830 **MUSCLES 830 TENDONS 830** - N -**NASAL PASSAGES 146 NECK 200 NERVOUS SYSTEM 840** NON-PERSONAL DAMAGE ONLY 990 ARTIFICIAL TEETH AND LIMBS 990 **EYEGLASSES 990 HEARING AIDS 990** 

## - N - Concluded

NOSE 146 NASAL PASSAGES 146 SENSE OF SMELL 146 SINUS 146

- 0 -

OPTIC NERVES 130 OVARIES 440

- P -

PANCREAS - A SEPARATE ENTITY 410
- DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 810

PART OF BODY, NEC 999

PART OF BODY, UNS 000

PINNA 121

PELVIC ORGANS 440

PELVIS 440

PROSTHESES 990

PROSTRATE 440

- R -

RESPIRATORY SYSTEM 850
BRONCHI 850
LUNGS 850
TRACHEA 850
REPRODUCTIVE FUNCTION 820
RIBS 430

- S -

SACRUM AND COCCYX 426 SCALP 150 **HAIR 150** SCAPULA 450 SEMI-CIRCULAR CANALS, EAR(S) 124 SENSE OF SMELL 146 SHOULDER(S) 450 **CLAVICLE 450** SCAPULA 450 **SINUS 146** SKULL 160 SPINAL CORD 420 SPINE 420 SPLEEN - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 410 - BODY SYSTEM, NEC 899 STOMACH - AS A SEPARATE ENTITY 410 - DIGESTIVE SYSTEM 810

- T -

TASTE 144 **TEETH 144** TEETH, ARTIFICIAL 990 TENDONS - MUSCULO-SKELETAL SYSTEM 830 THIGH 511 FEMUR 511 MUSCLES 511 **THORACIC SPINE 423** THROAT 144 **TIBIA 515** TOE(S) 540 **TONGUE 144** TRAGUS 121 TRUNK, UNS 400 **MULTIPLE 498 NEC 499** 

- U -

UPPER EXTREMITIES, UNS 300
ARM 311
EXTREMITIES
MULTIPLE 398
NEC 399
URINE PRODUCTION 820
UTERUS 440

- V -

VEINS - CIRCULATORY SYSTEM 801 VISION 130

- W -

**WRIST 320** 

#### SOURCE OF INJURY

- A -

ABRASIVE STONE OR WHEEL GRINDER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2301 ACETALDEHYDE 0964 **ACETIC ACID 0919** ACETONE AND OTHER KETONES 0903 ACIDS, NEC (INCLUDES ACETIC ACID) 0919 ACIDS, UNS 0910 ACTS OF GOD 8899 **AGITATOR - MACHINE 3001** AGRICULTURAL MACHINE, NEC 3050 GUN (TOOLS USING COMPRESSED AIR) 2399 **HOIST 2641** PRESSURE - NOT SPECIFIED, NEC 0199 AIRCRAFT 5610 ALCOHOL 0920 ALKALI - CAUSTIC SODA 0932 ALKALIES, NEC (INCLUDES SODA ASH) 0939 ALKALIES, UNS 0930 **ALL TERRAIN VEHICLE 5670** ALPH-METHYLOTYRENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 **ALUMINUM 0985** AMMONIA AND AMMONIUM COMPOUNDS 0940 AMMONIUM HYDROXIDE 0940 **AMPHIBIANS 0299 AMPLIFIER 1999 ANGLES - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115** ANHYDROUS AMMONIA 0940 ANILINE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 ANIMALS, NEC 0299 ANIMALS, UNS 0200 **DRAWN VEHICLE 5601 FIBER 5500** PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD), NEC 0399 PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD), UNS 0300 NOT PERSON 0201 ANTIFREEZE, ANY TYPE 0920 **ANTITOXIN - BIOLOGICAL PRODUCT 1401** APPAREL, NEC 1099 **AQUA FORTIS 0913** AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 ALPH-METHYLOTYRENE 0942 **ANILINE 0942** AROMATIC HYDROCARBON 0942 BENZOL 0942 BENZOPYRENE 0942 CARBOLIC ACID 0942 **CUMENE 0942 DIVINYLBENZENE 0942** ETHYLBENZENE 0942

NAPHTHALENE 0942

#### - A - Concluded

PHENOL 0942
STYRENE MONOMER 0942
TOLUENE 0942
VINYLTOLUENE 0942
XYLENE 0942
ARSENIC COMPOUND 0945
ARSINE GAS 0945
AUTOMOBILE PARTS 4110
AVALANCHES 1202
AXE - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2201

#### - B -

REPTILE 0270

**BACTERIA 2700** BAGS, SACKS 0605 **BAKER'S DOUGH BOARD 1999** BALES, BUNDLES 0660 BANDS, WIRES, STRAPPING 4160 BARRELS, KEGS, DRUMS (EMPTY OR FULL) 0601 BARS - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115 BASKETS 0620 **BATTERY ACID 0915 BEAMS - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115** BEAUTY PREPARATIONS, COSMETICS 0946 BED 1999 **BELT - MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4010 BENCH 1910** BENZOL - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 BENZOPYRENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 BICYCLES 5605 BIN, TANK - NOT PRESSURIZED (EMPTY OR FULL) 0670 BIOGAS (GAS FROM MANURE) - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 BIOLOGICAL PRODUCT 1401 ANTITOXIN 1401 **BLOOD 1401** PLASMA 1401 **SERUM 1401 TOXIN 1401** VACCINE 1401 **BIRDS 0230** BLEACH 0958 **BLOOD - BIOLOGIC COMPOUND 1401** BLOUSE, SHIRTS, SWEATER, COAT 1040 BLOW TORCH - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2205 **BODILY** DISCHARGE (E.G. STOOL) FROM BIRD 0230 INSECT 0250 MAMMALS 0201 **NEC 0299** PERSON 0280

## - B - Concluded

SECRETION (E.G. SALIVA AND URINE) FROM BIRD 0230 INSECT 0250 MAMMALS 0201 NEC 0299 PERSON 0280 REPTILE 0270 MOTION (NO LIFTING, PULLING, PUSHING, ETC) 0400 - DUE TO REPETITIVE MOTION 0401 - DUE TO RUNNING, WALKING 0402 - DUE TO TRIPPING OR STEPPING ON 0403 - DUE TO SLIPPING 0404 - NEC 0409 BOILER 0501 BOILERS, PRESSURE VESSELS, UNS 0500 **BOLT SETTER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2360** BONES - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0301 **BOOKCASE 1901** BOOT, SHOE 1001 BOTTLE, FLASK, JAR, JUG - ANY TYPE (EMPTY OR FULL) 0650 **BORING MACHINE 3250** BOX, CARTON, CRATE (EMPTY OR FULL) 0630 BOXES, BARRELS, CONTAINERS, PACKAGES, UNS 0600 **BRASS 0985 BRICK 0801** BRIDGE 0710 **BUCKETS 0620** BUFFER HAND TOOL, POWERED 2305 MACHINE 3100 BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES, UNS 0700 AND STRUCTURE (FENCE), NEC 0799 OFFICE 0701 **PLANT 0701 RESIDENTIAL 0701** BULB 1960 **BULLETS, PELLETS 4120 BUNDLES, BALES 0660 BUS STRUCTURE - ELECTRIC 1520 BUTANE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 BUTYLENE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140** 

- C -

CABINET 1901
CABLE - MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4020
CADMIUM 0985
CAISSON WORK 0101
CALCIUM HYDROXIDE 0931
CANS 0615
CAPACITOR - ELECTRIC 1530
CARBOLIC ACID - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942

#### - C - Continued

**CARBON BUSULPHIDE 0925** DIOXIDE 0952 MONOXIDE 0954 **TETRACHLORIDE 0999 CARDING MACHINE 3500 CARPET 1950** CARTON, BOX, CRATE (EMPTY OR FULL) 0630 CASE OR CONTAINER, NOT SPECIFIED (EMPTY OR FULL) 0699 **CASTING MACHINE 3150** CASTINGS 4150 **CAUSTIC SODA 0932** CEDAR WOOD DUST 5749 CELL, INFECTIOUS AND PARASITIC AGENTS, NEC 2700 CERAMIC ITEMS, NEC 0899 CERAMIC ITEMS, UNS 0800 **CHAFTS - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115 CHAIN SAW 2356** HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2270 MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4020 **BLOCK 2642 HOIST 2642 CHAIR 1910** CHEMICAL AND CHEMICAL COMPOUNDS, NEC 0999 ANTIFREEZE (ANY TYPE) 0920 CHLORINE 0958 MANUFACTURE OF OXYGEN 0999 NON-HYDROCARBON GAS 0999 **RUBBER DUST 0999** CHEMICAL AND CHEMICAL COMPOUNDS, UNS 0900 **CHINA 0810** CHIPS, WOOD 5749 CHISEL HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2210 HAND TOOL, POWERED 2310 CHLORINE 0958 BLEACH 0958 METHYL CHLORIDE 0958 PENTACHLOROPHENOL 0958 PERCHLOROETHYLENE 0958 TRICHLOROETHYLENE 0958 CHROMIUM MERCURY 0985 CIRCUIT BREAKER - ELECTRIC 1520 CLAMPS 4155 CLAY - MINERAL ITEM, NON-METALLIC 4300 CLEANER NAPHTHA - NAPHTHA SOLVENT 1180 CLEANING COMPOUND, DETERGENT, SOAP 5100 CLOTHING, APPAREL, SHOES, UNS 1000 **COAL 1101** COAL AND PETROLEUM PRODUCTS, NEC 1199 COAL AND PETROLEUM PRODUCTS, UNS 1100 COAT, BLOUSE, SHIRT, SWEATER 1040

#### - C - Concluded

**COKE 1110 COLD, UNS 1200** ATMOSPHERIC 1201 **ENVIRONMENTAL 1201 NEC 1299 COMBING MACHINE 3500 COMPRESSOR 3999 CONDUCTOR - ELECTRIC 1515** CONTAINER, NEC (EMPTY OR FULL) 0699 CONTROL APPARATUS - ELECTRIC 1530 CONVERTER, TRANSFORMER - ELECTRIC 1510 **CONVEYOR 1300 GRAVITY 1301** POWERED 1350 **NEC 1399** COOLING APPLIANCES 1560 COUNTER 1920 COUPLINGS 4155 COVERALL, DRESS, PANT, SUIT 1050 **CRANE 2610** CRATE, BOX, CARTON (EMPTY OR FULL) 0630 CROWBAR - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2215 CRUDE OIL, FUEL OIL 1120 CRUSHING MACHINE 3200 CUMENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 CUTTING AND LUBRICATING OIL AND GREASE 1160 CYANATES 0988 CYANIDE OR CYANOGEN COMPOUND 0960 DIPHENYLEMETHANE 4.4 - DIISOCYANATE 0960 HEXAMETHYLENE DIISOCYANATE 0960 **ISOCYANATE 0960** METHYLENE DI-JARA-PHENYLENE ISOCYANATE (MDI) 0960 PHENYL ISOCYANATE 0960 POLYMETHYLENE 0960 TOLUENE 2,4 - DIISOCYANATE (TDI) 0960

#### - D -

DAM, LOCK 0720
DEAD
ANIMAL 8800
PERSON 8800
DEBRIS, SCRAP, WASTE MATERIAL 5300
DEEP DIVING 0101
DERRICK 2610
DESK 1930
DETERGENT, CLEANING COMPOUND, SOAP 5100
DIAZINON 0978
DIES, MOLDS, PATTERNS 4125
DIPHENYLEMETHANE 4,4 - DIISOCYANATE 0960
DIRT - MINERAL ITEM, NON-METALLIC 4300
DISHES 0610
DISINFECTANT 0961

#### - D - Concluded

DIVINYLBENZENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 DOCK, WHARF 0760 **DOLLIES - NON-POWERED VEHICLE 5631** DOORS, GATES INSTALLED 0705 DRAIN TILE 0820 DREDGE 2630 DRESS, COVERALL, PANT, SUIT 1050 DRILL - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2315 **DRILLING MACHINE 3250** DRUGS AND MEDICINES, NEC 1490 DRUGS AND MEDICINES, UNS 1400 **DRUMS 0601** MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4030 **DRY ICE 0952 DUCT 4140 DUST 4600** DUST, CEDAR 5749 **DUST, WOOD 5749** DYNAMITE 6010

#### - E -

EARTH MOVING MACHINE, NEC 3300 **EARTHQUAKE 8899** ELECTRIC APPARATUS, UNS 1500 APPARATUS, NEC 1599 ARC - RADIATING EQUIPMENT 5070 **HOIST 2643 ELECTROLYTIC AND MAGNETIC APPARATUS 1540** ELEVATOR 2620 **ENGINE INTERNAL COMBUSTION 4910 STEAM 4910** ETHANE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 ETHER - NAPHTHA SOLVENT 1180 ETHYLBENZENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 ETHYLENE DIBROMIDE 0970 ETHYLENE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 ETHYLENE OXIDE 0962 **EXCAVATING PRODUCT - NON-METALLIC 4300 EXPLOSIVES, NEC 6099** EXPLOSIVES, UNS 6000 **EXTENSION LADDER 2831** 

#### - F

FEATHERS - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0310 FENCES 0755 FERTILIZER 0963 FILE HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2220 CASE 1901

#### - F - Concluded

FIRE AND FLAME 1701 FISH 0299 FIXED LADDER 2810 FIXTURE, NEC 1999 FLAME AND FIRE 1701 FLASK, BOTTLE, JAR, JUG - EMPTY OR FULL 0650 **FLOOD 8899 FLOOR COVERING 1950** OF A BUILDING - WORKING SURFACE 5801 OF A MINE - WORKING SURFACE 5801 OF A VEHICLE - WORKING SURFACE 5801 FLUE LINING 0820 FLUOROCARBONS 0970 FLUOROSCOPE EQUIPMENT 5080 FOOD PRODUCTS, NEC 1890 FOOD PRODUCTS (INCLUDING ANIMAL FOOD), UNS 1800 FORCETS 4140 FORGINGS 4150 FORGING MACHINE 3150 FORK - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2225 FORKLIFT - POWERED CARRIER 5635 FORMALDEHYDE AND OTHER ALDEHYDES 0964 FORMALIN 0964 FRAMES, WINDOWS 0708 FREON 0970 FRICTION CLUTCHES - MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4040 FRUIT AND FRUIT PRODUCT 1810 FUEL OIL, CRUDE OIL 1120 **FUMIGANT HERBICIDE, NEC 0979 FUNGI 2700 FUNGICIDE 0979** FUR (RAW) - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0320 **FURNACE-NOT ELECTRIC 2500** FURNISHINGS, NEC 1999 FURNITURE, FIXTURES, FURNISHINGS, UNS 1900 FURNITURE, NEC 1999 FUSE - ELECTRIC 1520

- G -

GAMMA RAYS 5099
GASOLINE AND LIQUID HYDROCARBON COMPOUND 1130
OLEFIN 1130
PARAFFIN 1130
GATES, DOORS 0705
GEARS - MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4050
GENERATOR - ELECTRIC 1505
GIN POLE 2644
GLASS ITEMS 2000
FIBER 2000
GLASSWARE 2000
SHEET 2000

#### - G - Concluded

GLAZED TILE - MOSAIC TILE (DECORATIVE NOT LOAD BEARING) 0830 GLOVE 1010
GLUE, ADHESIVE, PASTE 0965
GLYCOL 0920
GRAIN AND GRAIN PRODUCT 1820
GRANDSTAND, STADIA 0730
GRATES - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115
GRAVEL - MINERAL ITEM NON-METALLIC 4300
GRAVITY CONVEYOR 1301
GREASE 1160
GRINDER - MACHINE 3100
GROUND (OUTDOOR) - WORKING SURFACE 5810
GUTTERS 4140

#### - H -

HAIR (RAW) - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0320 HALOGENATED COMPOUNDS 0970 ETHYLENE DIBROMIDE 0970 FLUDROCARBONS 0970 **FREON 0970 REFRIGERANTS 0970** VINYL CHLORIDE GAS 0970 HAMMER HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2230 HAND TOOL, POWERED 2320 HAND TOOLS NOT POWERED, UNS 2200 NOT POWERED, NEC 2299 HAND TOOLS, POWERED, UNS 2300 POWERED, NEC 2399 HANDTRUCK - NON-POWERED VEHICLE 5631 HATCHET - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2235 HAT, HEAD COVERING 1020 HEAT ATMOSPHERIC (NOT OBJECT OR SUBSTANCE) 2400 ENVIRONMENTAL (NOT OBJECT OR SUBSTANCE) 2400 HEATING APPLIANCE - ELECTRIC 1550 EQUIPMENT, NEC 2500 HERBICIDE 0979 HEXAMATHYLENE DIISOCYANATE (HDI) 0960 HIDE - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0330 HIGH PRESSURE 0101 **HIGHWAY** CONSTRUCTION MACHINE, NEC 3300 VEHICLE, POWERED 5620 HOE - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2240 HOISTING APPARATUS, NEC 2699 HOISTING APPARATUS, UNS 2600 HOME ENTERTAINMENT EQUIPMENT (TELEVISION, RADIO, STEREO, AMPLIFIER) 1999 HOSE FOR PRESSURIZED GAS 0530

#### - H - Concluded

LIQUID 0530 **VAPOR 0530 HYDROCARBON GAS 1140** BIOGAS (GAS FROM MANURE) 1140 **BUTANE 1140 BUTYLENE 1140 ETHANE 1140** ETHYLENE 1140 **ISOBUTANE 1140 ISOBUTYLENE 1140** LP GAS 1140 METHANE 1140 PROPANE 1140 HYDROCHLORIC ACID 0911 HYPODERMIC SYRINGE - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2299 HYDROFLUORIC ACID 0912 **HYDROGEN SULPHIDE 0975** 

- I -

ICE 1202 ICE VEHICLE 5650 **INFECTIOUS AND PARASITIC AGENT 2700** INGOT - METAL 4100 INSECTS 0250 INSECTICIDE, NEC 0979 INSECTICIDE (ORGANOPHOSPHATE) 0978 **INVERTEBRATES 0250** IRONER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2325 IRRADIATED SUBSTANCE FOR **INDUSTRIAL USE 5010** MEDICAL USE 5010 ISOBUTANE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 ISOBUTYLENE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 **ISOCYANATE 0960** ISOTOPE FOR **INDUSTRIAL USE 5010** MEDICAL USE 5010

- J -

JACK
AIR 2645
HYDRAULIC 2645
MECHANICAL 2645
JAMMER (LOGGING) 2646
JAR (ANY TYPE), BOTTLE, FLASK, JÚG - EMPTY OR FULL 0650

#### - K -

KEGS (EMPTY OR FULL) 0601
KEROSENE 1150
KEYTONES, ACETONE AND OTHER 0903
KNIFE
HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2245
HAND TOOL, POWERED 2330
KNITTING MACHINE 3950

## - L -

LACQUER 0987 LADDER 2800 **EXTENSION 2831 FIXED 2810** SINGLE 2835 STEP 2833 STRAIGHT 2835 NEC 2899 LAMP 1960 LANDSLIDE PRODUCT NON-METALLIC 4300 **LASERS 5095 LATHE 3250** LAWN MOWER, SIT-ON TYPE - POWERED 5699 LEAD 0984 LEATHER - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0330 LIGHT FLASHES 5099 LIGHTING EQUIPMENT 1960 LIGHTNING 8899 LIMBED LOGS 5710 LIME 0931 LINE - HOSE OR PIPE FOR PRESSURIZED LIQUID 0530 **GAS 0530** VAPORS 0530 LIQUID HYDROCARBON COMPOUND AND GASOLINE 1130 LIQUIDS, NEC 2999 LIQUIDS, UNS 2900 LOCK, DAM 0720 LOCKER (AS FOUND IN GYMNASIUM) 1901 NOT FIXED OR IS NOT PART OF BUILDING 1901 FIXED AND IS PART OF BUILDING 0701 LOG, WOOD ITEMS 5710 LOW PRESSURE (RAREFIED AIR AS AT EXTREME ELEVATION) 0120 LP GAS - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 LUBRICATING AND CUTTING OIL AND GREASE 1160 **LUMBER 5720** LUMBER CARRIER POWERED 5635 LYE 0932

- M -

**MOLTEN METAL 4130** 

MOSAIC TILE (DECORATIVE NOT LOAD BEARING) 0830

**MACE 0994** MACHINES, NEC 3999 MACHINES, UNS 3000 MAGNESIUM 0985 MAGNETIC AND ELECTROLYTIC APPARATUS 1540 **MACHETIC RADIATION 5099** MALLET - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2230 MALTHION 0978 MAMMALS (NOT PERSONS) 0201 MANUFACTURING OF ANY NON-HYDROCARBON GAS 0999 CHLORINE 0958 OXYGEN 0999 **RUBBER DUST 0999** MANUFACTURED GAS 1140 MARBLE 4300 **MAT 1950** MEAT AND MEAT PRODUCT 1840 MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS, NEC 4099 MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS, UNS 4000 MEDICAL INSTRUMENT AND APPARATUS - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2299 METAL ITEMS, NEC 4199 METAL ITEMS, UNS 4100 METAL CHIPS, SPLINTERS, PARTICLES 4165 **METAL BINDERS 4160 METAL FASTENERS 4155 METAL PARTS 4150** METALLIC COMPOUND, NEC 0985 **METHANE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140** METHANOL 0920 METHYL CHLORIDE 0958 METHYLENE DI-JARA-PHENYLENE ISOCYANATE (MDI) 0960 MICROWAVE EQUIPMENT 5090 MILK 1850 MILK PRODUCT 1850 MINE BUCKET 2647 MINERAL ITEM, METALLIC, UNS 4100 ITEM, NON-METALLIC, NEC 4300 MINERAL ITEMS, METALLIC 4200 SPIRIT - NAPHTHA SOLVENT 1180 MINING MACHINE, NEC 3350 PRODUCT (METALLIC) - RAW OR SEMI-PROCESSED 4200 PRODUCT (NON-METALLIC) 4300 MISCELLANEOUS, NEC 8800 MIXER - MACHINE 3001 MOLD (AS FOUND ON MUSHROOM FARMS) 2700 **MOLDER - MACHINE 3550** MOLDS, PATTERNS, DIES 4125

## - M - Concluded

MOTOR - ELECTRIC 1501 MULE - POWERED TOWING VEHICLE 5638 MURIATE OF POTASH 0963 MURIATIC ACID 0911

## - N -

**NAILS 4155** NAPHTHA SOLVENT 1180 **ETHER 1180 CLEANER NAPHTHA 1180 MINERAL SPIRITS 1180** PETROLEUM 1180 **RUBBER SOLVENT 1180** NAPHTHALENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 NITRIC ACID 0913 NITROUS FUMES 0976 **NOISE 4400** NON-HYDROCARBON GAS - MANUFACTURING OF 0999 **NON-METALLIC** PANELLING INSTALLED IN BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 0799 PARTITION INSTALLED IN BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 0799 NON-POWERED VEHICLE (DOLLIE) 5631 **NUTS 4155** 

## - O -

OFFICE, BUILDINGS 0701
OFFICE MACHINE 3400
OLEFIN 1130
ORE AND ORE CONCENTRATE 4200
ORGANOPHOSPHATE 0978
OUTER COAT, RAINCOAT 1030
OXIDE OF NITROGEN, NITROS FUMES 0976
OXYGEN - MANUFACTURING OF 0999

## - P -

PACKAGING MACHINE 3450
PAILS, BUCKETS, BASKETS 0620
PAINT 0987
PAINT REMOVER 0992
PAINT THINNER 0992
PANELS - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115
PANS 0610
PANT, COVERALL, DRESS, SUIT 1050
PAPER AND PULP ITEM, NEC 4500
PARAFFIN 1130
PARASITIC ORGANISM 2700
PARTICLES, METAL 4165
PARTICLES (UNIDENTIFIED) 4600
PATH (OUTDOOR) - WORKING SURFACE 5830
PATTERNS, DIES, MOLDS 4125

## - P - Continued

PELLETS, BULLETS 4120 PENTACHLOROPHENOL 0958 **PETROLEUM** AND COAL PRODUCT, NEC 1199 ASPHALT AND ROAD OIL 1190 **ETHER 1180** NAPHTHA SOLVENT 1180 PERCHLORETHYLENE 0958 PERSONS 0280 PERSONS - POWERED VEHICLES 5605 PHENOL - AROMATIC COMPOUNDS 0942 PHOSPHORIC ACID 0914 PICK - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2250 PICKING MACHINE 3500 **PINS 4155 PIPE 4140** PIPE AND FITTINGS 4140 PIPE FOR PRESSURIZED **GASES 0530** LIQUIDS 0530 VAPORS 0530 PIPE VALVES 4140 PLANE - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2255 PLANER - MACHINE 3550 PLANT, BUILDINGS, OFFICE 0701 PLANT OR INDUSTRIAL VEHICLES, NEC 5639 PLANT OR INDUSTRIAL VEHICLES, UNS 5630 PLANT, TREE, VEGETATION (IN NATURAL OR UNPROCESSED CONDITION) 4700 PLASMA - BIOLOGICAL COMPOUND 1401 PLASTICS 0988 PLATFORM (PERMANENT ELEVATED SURFACE) - WORKING SURFACE 5825 **PLASTIC** ITEM, NEC 4800 POWDER 4800 **ROD 4800 SHAPE 4800 SHEET 4800** PLATES - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115 PLIERS, NOT POWERED 2260 PLYWOOD 5720 **POLES BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES 0750** WOOD ITEM, UNS 5700 POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLS (PCB'S) 0990 POLYMER 0988 **POLISHER** HAND TOOL, POWERED 2305 MACHINE 3100 POTASH, MURIATE OF 0963 POTASSIUM OR SODIUM HYDROXIDE 0932 POTS, PANS, DISHES, TRAYS 0610 POTTERY 0840 POWDER ACTUATED TOOL, - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2335

## - P - Concluded

POWDERS, PLASTIC ITEMS 4800 POWERED CARRIER 5635 CONVEYOR 1350 TOWING MACHINE 5638 PRE-CAST CONCRETE ITEM 9999 PRESSES - MACHINES (NOT PRINTING PRESSES) 3600 PRESSURE **HIGH 0101** LOW (RAREFIED AIR AS AT EXTREME ELEVATIONS) 0120 LINE, HOSE OR PIPE FOR **GASES 0530** LIQUIDS 0530 VAPORS 0530 VESSELS, NEC 0599 CONTAINER FOR **GASES 0510** LIQUIDS 0510 PRIME MOVER AND PUMP, NEC 4999 PRINTING MACHINE 3650 PRODUCT OF **EXCAVATING 4300** LANDSLIDE 4300 MINING (NON-METALLIC) 4300 MINING (METALLIC) - RAW OR SEMI-PROCESSED 4200 PROPANE - HYDROCARBON GAS 1140 PRY BAR - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2215 PULLEY - MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4030 PULP ITEMS AND PAPER, NEC 4500 **PULVERIZING MACHINE 3200** PUMP 4930 PUMP AND PRIME MOVERS, NEC 4999 PUMP AND PRIME MOVERS, UNS 4900 **PUNCH** HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2265 HAND TOOL, POWERED 2340

#### - R ·

RADIATING SUBSTANCE OR EQUIPMENT, NEC 5099
RADIATING SUBSTANCE OR EQUIPMENT, UNS 5000
RADIO 1999
RADIUM 5020
RAIL VEHICLE 5640
RAILS - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115
RAINCOAT, OUTER COAT 1030
RAMP - WORKING SURFACE 5815
RAMSET GUN 2335
RANGE - NOT ELECTRIC 2500
RAREFIED AIR AT EXTREME ELEVATION 0120
REACTOR
FUEL RAW OR PROCESSED 5030
WASTE 5040

## - R - Concluded

**RECTIFIER - ELECTRIC 1530** REELS, ROLLS 0665 **REFRIGERANTS 0970** REPTILES 0270 RESIDENTIAL 0701 RESINS 0988 **RETORT - NOT ELECTRIC 2500** RHEOSTAT - ELECTRIC 1530 RIVETER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2345 RIVETS 4155 ROAD OIL AND PETROLEUM ASPHALTS 1190 **ROAD - WORKING SURFACE 5845** RODS, PLASTIC 4800 **RODS - STRUCTURAL METAL 4115 ROLL - MACHINE 3700** ROLLS, REELS 0665 ROPE HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2270 MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4020 **ROOF - WORKING SURFACE 5820** RUBBER **DUST 0999** MANUFACTURING OF 0999 SOLVENT - NAPHTHA SOLVENT 1180 RUBBER PRODUCTS, NEC 6299 RUBBER PRODUCTS, UNS 6200 **RUG 1950** 

RUNWAY (PERMANENT ELEVATED SURFACE) - WORKING SURFACE 5825

- S -

**SACKS 0605** 

SAND - MINERAL ITEM, NON-METALLIC 4300 SANDBLASTER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2350 SANDER - MACHINE 3100 SAW **CHAIN 2356** HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2275 HAND TOOL, POWERED, OTHER THAN CHAIN SAW 2355 MACHINE 3750 SCISSOR - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2280 SCAFFOLD, STAGING 0740 SCALPEL - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2299 SCRAP, DEBRIS, WASTE MATERIAL 5300 **SCREENING MACHINE 3800** SCREWDRIVER HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2285 HAND TOOL, POWERED 2360 **SCREWS 4155** SEPARATING MACHINE 3800 **SERUM - BIOLOGICAL PRODUCT 1401** SEWER PIPE 0820

#### - S - Continued

SEWING MACHINE 3900 NEEDLE (BUT NOT PART OF A SEWING MACHINE) - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2299 SHAKES, WOOD ITEMS 5720 SHAPER - MACHINE 3550 SHAPES, PLASTIC 4800 SHEAR HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2280 MACHINE 3850 SHEAVE - MECHANICAL POWER TRANSMISSION APPARATUS 4030 SHEET, METAL 4115 SHEETS, PLASTIC 4800 SHELF (AS FOUND IN STORE) 1999 SHELLAC 0987 SHINGLES, WOOD ITEMS 5720 SHIRT, BLOUSE, COAT, SWEATER 1040 SHOE, BOOT 1001 SHOVEL HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2290 **HOISTING APPARATUS 2630** SIDEWALK (OUTDOOR) - WORKING SURFACE 5830 SILICA 5200 SILICONE RESIN 0988 SINGLE LADDER 2835 **SLAB 5749** SLEDGE - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2230 SLED - VEHICLE 5650 SLICER - MACHINE 3850 **SLITTER - MACHINE 3850 SMOKE 1702 SNOW, ICE 1202 SNOW VEHICLE 5650** SOAPS, DETERGENTS CLEANING COMPOUNDS 5100 SOCK, STOCKING 1060 SODA ASH 0939 SODA, CAUSTIC 0932 SODIUM OR POTASSIUM HYDROXIDE 0932 **SOFA 1910** SOLDER 0984 SOLVENTS AND DEGREASERS, NEC 0992 SOURCE OF INJURY, NEC 9999 SOURCE OF INJURY, UNS 0000 SPACE HEATER - NOT ELECTRIC 2500 SPADE - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2290 SPIGOTS 4140 **SPIKES 4155** SPINNING MACHINE 3950 SPLINTERS, METAL 4165 SPORE, INFECTIOUS AND PARASITIC AGENTS, NEC 2700 SPORTS EQUIPMENT 9999 STACKER - POWERED VEHICLE 5635 STADIA, GRANDSTAND 0730

## - S - Concluded

STAGING, SCAFFOLD 0740 STAIR - WORKING SURFACE 5840 STAPLE GUN, POWERED 2399 STAPLES 4155 STARTER - ELECTRIC 1530 **STEAM 5400** STEP - WORKING SURFACE 5840 STEP LADDER 2833 **STEREO 1999** STITCHING MACHINE 3900 STOCKING, SOCK 1060 STONE - MINERAL ITEM, NON-METALLIC 4300 STORAGE BATTERY - ELECTRIC 1530 STORGINGS 4150 STOVE - NOT ELECTRIC 2500 STRAIGHT LADDER 2835 STRAPPING 4160 STREET - WORKING SURFACE 5845 STRUCTURAL METAL 4115 STRUCTURAL TILE GLAZED 0850 **PLAIN 0850** STRUCTURE AND BUILDING, NEC 0799 STYRENE MONOMER - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 SUIT, COVERALL, DRESS, PANT 1050 **SULFURIC ACID 0915** SUN 5050 SUPERPHOSPHATE 0963 SWEATER, BLOUSE, COAT, SHIRT 1040 SWITCHBOARD AND BUS STRUCTURE - ELECTRIC 1520 SWITCH - ELECTRIC 1520 SYNTHETIC FIBER (EXCEPT GLASS) 5500 SYRINGE 2292 SYSTOX 0978

## - T -

TABLE 1970

TAMPER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2320

TANK, BIN - NOT PRESSURIZED (EMPTY OR FULL) 0670

TEAR GAS 0994

TELEVISION 1999

TEXTILE

ITEMS 5500

TILE

MOSAIC 0830

STRUCTURAL

GLAZED 0850

PLAIN 0850

GLAZED (DECORATIVE NOT LOAD BEARING) 0830

TIRES 6210

## - T - Concluded

TOLUENE AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942 2.4 - DIISOCYANATE (TDI) 0960 TONG - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2260 TOOL-USING COMPRESSED AIR 2399 TORNADO 8899 TOWERS, POLES, ETC 0750 TOXIN - BIOLOGICAL PRODUCT 1401 TRACTOR - POWERED TOWING VEHICLE 5638 TRANSFORMER, CONVERTER - ELECTRIC 1510 **TRAYS 0610** TREE, PLANT, VEGETATION (IN NATURAL OR UNPROCESSED CONDITION) 4700 TRICHLORETHYLENE 0958 TUMBLER - MACHINE 3001 TUNNELLING MACHINE, NEC 3350 TURBINE AIR 4950 **HYDRAULIC 4950 TURNING MACHINE 3250** TURPENTINE 0992

- U -

ULTRAVIOLET EQUIPMENT 5060 ULTRAVIOLET LIGHT 5050 UNDERWEAR 1070 URETHANE 0988

- V -

VACCINE - BIOLOGICAL COMPOUND 1401
VACUUM CLEANER 2399
VALVES 4140
VARNISH 0987
VEGETABLE AND VEGETABLE PRODUCT 1870
VEGETABLE FIBER 5500
VEGETATION, PLANT, TREE (IN NATURAL OR UNPROCESSED CONDITION) 4700
VEHICLES, NEC 5699
VEHICLES, UNS 5600
VINYLTOLUENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942
VIRUS 2700

- W -

WALKWAY (OUTDOOR) - WORKING SURFACE 5830
WALLS, FENCES 0755
WASTE MATERIAL, DEBRIS, SCRAP 5300
WATER 2910
WATER VEHICLE 5660
WAXER - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2305
WEAVING MACHINE 3950
WEED KILLERS 0979
WEIGHTS 4150

## - W - Concluded

WELDING **EQUIPMENT - RADIATING EQUIPMENT 5070 FUMES 0985** MACHINE 3150 TOOL, - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2370 WHARF, DOCK 0760 WHEEL CHAIRS 5605 WHEEL GRINDER OR ABRASIVE STONE - HAND TOOL, POWERED 2301 WINDOWS, WINDOW FRAMES 0708 **WIRES 4160** WOOD ITEMS, UNS 5700 CHIP 5749 **DUST 5749** ITEMS, NEC 5749 LOG 5710 **LUMBER 5720** PLYWOOD 5720 **POLE 5720** PRODUCT 5749 **SHAKES 5720** SHINGLES 5720 SKIDS, PALLETS 5730 **SLAB 5749** WOOD ITEMS, NEC 5749 WOOL (RAW) - ANIMAL PRODUCTS (NOT FOOD) 0320 WORK BENCH 1920 **WORKING SURFACES, NEC 5899** WORKING SURFACES, UNS 5800 **WRAPPING MACHINE 3450** WRENCH - HAND TOOL, NOT POWERED 2295

- X -

X-RAY EQUIPMENT 5080 XYLENE - AROMATIC COMPOUND 0942

- Y -

YARN, BEAMS OF 0665

- Z -

ZINC 0985

## ACCIDENT TYPE

- A -

ABRADED OR RUBBED
BY FOREIGN MATTER IN THE EYES 084
BY KNEELING ON OBJECTS (NOT VIBRATING) 081
BY LEANING ON OBJECTS (NOT VIBRATING) 081
BY OBJECTS BEING HANDLED (NOT VIBRATING) 082
BY REPETITION OF PRESSURE 085
BY SITTING ON OBJECTS (NOT VIBRATING) 081
BY VIBRATING OBJECTS 083
ACCIDENT TYPE, NEC 999
ACCIDENT TYPE, UNS 000
ACTS OF VIOLENCE 900
AIRCRAFT ACCIDENT 201
AIR PRESSURE, EXTREMES OF CONTACT WITH 170

- B -

BICYCLE ACCIDENTS 700
BOAT OR SHIP ACCIDENT 205
BODILY REACTION, UNS 100
FROM INVOLUNTARY MOTIONS 101
FROM VOLUNTARY MOTIONS 102
NEC 109
BUS ACCIDENT 203

- C -

CAISSON DISEASE - DIVING ACCIDENTS 751 CALASHES, ACCIDENTS 700 CAUGHT IN, UNDER OR BETWEEN, UNS 060 A MOVING AND A STATIONARY OBJECT 062 A STATIONARY AND A MOVING OBJECT 062 CAVE-INS 065 **COLLAPSING BRIDGES 066 BUILDINGS 066** STRUCTURES 066 LAND SLIDES 065 **MESHING OBJECTS 061 NEC 069 RUNNING OBJECTS 061** TWO OR MORE MOVING (NOT MESHING) OBJECTS 063 CONTACT WITH ANIMALS 189 **BACTERIA 189 BODY LICE 189** CAUSTICS SUBSTANCES, UNS 180 BY ABSORPTION 183 BY INGESTION 182 BY INHALATION 181 **NEC 189** 

## - C - Concluded

COLD **OBJECTS 154 SUBSTANCES 154 ELECTRIC CURRENT 130** EXTREMES OF AIR PRESSURE 170 **GENERAL** COLD **ATMOSPHERIC 152 ENVIRONMENTAL 152 HEAT** ATMOSPHERIC 151 **ENVIRONMENTAL 151** HOT **OBJECTS 153 SUBSTANCES 153** NOXIOUS SUBSTANCES, UNS 180 BY ABSORPTION 183 BY INGESTION 182 BY INHALATION 181 **NEC 189** RADIATIONS, UNS 180 BY ABSORPTION 183 BY INGESTION 182 BY INHALATION 181 **NEC 189** TEMPERATURE EXTREMES, UNS 150 COLD, GENERAL 152 COLD OBJECTS OR SUBSTANCES 154 **HEAT, GENERAL 151 HOT OBJECTS OR SUBSTANCES 153 NEC 159** TOXIC SUBSTANCES, UNS 180 BY ABSORPTION 183 BY INGESTION 182 BY INHALATION 181 **NEC 189 VIRUS 189** 

- D -

DIVING ACCIDENTS 751
DROWNING OTHER THAN DIVING ACCIDENTS 750

- E -

EXPLOSIONS 500
EXPOSURE TO NOISE 400
REPEATED NOISE 405
SUDDEN OR SINGLE 402

# - F -FALL AGAINST OR ONTO OBJECTS 052 FROM ELEVATION, UNS 030 LADDERS 032 **NEC 039** ON STAIRS 035 PILED MATERIALS 033 PLATFORMS 031 SCAFFOLDS 031 **VEHICLES 034** WALKWAYS 031 INTO **EXCAVATIONS 036** FLOOR OPENINGS (FROM EDGE OF OPENING) 036 SHAFTS 036 ON SAME LEVEL, UNS 050 **NEC 059** TO THE WALKWAY 051 TO THE WORKING SURFACE 051 ONTO OR AGAINST OBJECTS 052 - M -MOTOR-VEHICLE ACCIDENTS, HIGHWAY TYPE, NEC 399 MOTOR-VEHICLE ACCIDENTS, HIGHWAY TYPE UNS 300 COLLISION WITH, A STANDING VEHICLE, UNS 320 AT SIDE OF ROAD 322 IN ROADWAY 321 **NEC 329** STRUCK BY ANOTHER VEHICLE WHILE STANDING IN ROADWAY 323 STRUCK BY ANOTHER VEHICLE WHILE STANDING OFF ROADWAY 324 COLLISION WITH, BOTH VECHILES IN MOTION, UNS 310 A VEHICLE MOVING IN AN INTERSECTING TRAFFICWAY 313 A VEHICLE MOVING IN SAME DIRECTION ON SAME ROAD, STREET OR TRAFFICWAY 312 AN ONCOMING VEHICLE ON SAME ROAD, STREET OR TRAFFICWAY 311 ANOTHER VEHICLE, BOTH VEHICLES IN MOTION, NEC 319 - N -NON-COLLISION ACCIDENTS, UNS 330 **OVERTURNED 331** RAN OFF ROADWAY (OUT OF CONTROL) 332 SUDDEN START, THROWING CONTENTS OF VEHICLE AGAINST OCCUPANTS 333 OCCUPANTS AGAINST INTERIOR PARTS OF THE VEHICLE 333 OCCUPANTS OUT OF THE VEHICLE 333 SUDDEN STOP, THROWING CONTENTS OF VEHICLE AGAINST OCCUPANTS 333 OCCUPANTS AGAINST INTERIOR PARTS OF THE VEHICLE 333

OCCUPANTS OUT OF THE VEHICLE 333

**NEC 339** 

## - N - Concluded

NON-HIGHWAY TYPE MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENTS, UNS 600
COLLISION WITH, BOTH VEHICLES IN MOTION 610
COLLISION WITH, STANDING VEHICLE OR STATIONARY OBJECT 620
NON-COLLISION 630
FALL FROM VEHICLE 635
NEC 639
NON-COLLISION 639
OUT OF CONTROL 632
OVERTURNED 631
STRUCK BY SHIFTING LOAD OR FALLING OBJECT 634
SUDDEN STOP OR START 633
VEHICLE MOVEMENT 636

- 0 -

OVEREXERTION, UNS 120
IN LIFTING OBJECTS 121
IN PULLING OBJECTS 122
IN PUSHING OBJECTS 122
IN THROWING OBJECTS 123
IN WIELDING OBJECTS 123
NEC 129

- P -

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ACCIDENTS, NEC 299
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ACCIDENTS, UNS 200

- R -

RUBBED OR ABRADED, UNS 080
BY FOREIGN MATTER IN THE EYES 084
BY KNEELING ON OBJECTS (NOT VIBRATING) 081
BY LEANING ON OBJECTS (NOT VIBRATING) 081
BY OBJECTS BEING HANDLED (NOT VIBRATING) 082
BY REPETITION OF PRESSURE 085
BY SITTING ON OBJECTS (NOT VIBRATING) 081
BY VIBRATING OBJECTS 083
NEC 089

- S -

SHIP OR BOAT ACCIDENT 205
STEP ON STATIONARY OBJECT 013
STREETCAR OR SUBWAY ACCIDENT 207
STRUCK
AGAINST, UNS 010
MOVING OBJECT 012
STATIONARY OBJECT 014
NEC 019
BY, UNS 020
FALLING OBJECT DURING HANDLING 023
FALLING OBJECT, NEC 024

## - S - Concluded

FLYING OBJECT 022 NEC 029 SUBWAY OR STREETCAR ACCIDENT 207

- T -

TAXI ACCIDENT 209
TRAIN ACCIDENT 211
TYPE OF ACCIDENT, NEC 999
TYPE OF ACCIDENT, UNS 000

- V -

VEHICLE ACCIDENTS, NOT MOTOR-POWERED 700 BICYCLES 700 CALASHES 700 C3 00c

STATISTICS CANADA LIBRARY
BIBLIOTHEQUE STATISTIQUE CANADA
1010246166